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Financial Highlights

I EE

Revenue of the Group decreased by 6.1% or RMB52.2 million
to RMB806.7 million for the Reporting Period (2016: RMB858.9
million), primarily due to a decline in sales of Human Albumin
Solution of RMB106.9 million during the Group’s adjustment process
of marketing network in response to the implementation of new
policies across the pharmaceutical distribution industry in China.

Gross profit of the Group decreased by 10.6% or RMB11.1 million to
RMB93.5 million for the Reporting Period (2016: RMB104.6 million),
due to a decrease in sales volume and an increase in average unit
cost of sales as a result of the depreciation of RMB against USD.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded net loss of
RMB185.9 million (2016: net profit of RMB18.3 million), primarily
due to a decrease in gross profit as mentioned above, an increase
in selling and distribution expenses of RMB84.4 million, an increase
in finance costs of RMB24.5 million and impairment losses on
inventory, intangible assets and goodwill of RMB91.7 million.

During the Reporting Period, loss attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to RMB185.9 million, representing a decrease
of RMB205.3 million as compared to the net profit attributable to
owners of the Company of RMB19.4 million in 2016.

Basic loss per share amounted to RMBO0.115 during the Reporting
Period (2016: basic earnings per share of RMB0.013).

The Board resolved not to declare any final dividend for the
Reporting Period (2016: Nil).
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2014 2015 2016 2017
20144 20154 20164 20174
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2013
20134
RMB’000
AREFTT
Operating results ReExE
Revenue W e 532,480
Gross profit ER=E 61,119
Profit/(loss) before tax BH#EET (BE) 50,919
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF, () 42,987
Profit/(loss) attributable to RATHEB NEA
owners of the Company w7 (B18) 36,539
Profitability EF|
Gross margin (%) FEFE(%) 11.5%
Net profit/(loss) margin (%) wF (B1E) E(%) 8.1%

950,079 1,096,071 858,894 806,723
129,770 152,507 104,568 93,533
93,812 86,638 25,566 (194,868)
80,129 69,441 18,337 (185,897)
69,367 69,614 19,367 (185,896)
13.7% 13.9% 12.2% 11.6%
8.4% 6.3% 2.1% (23.0%)
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Financial Highlights (Continued)

SRR (E)
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(;hairman’s Statement
FERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
Shareholders for their attention and support to the Company, and present
the report of the Group for the Reporting Period.

2017 is a year for the reform of the pharmaceutical industry in China with
the launch and full implementation of numerous new policies. The policies
such as the “Two-Invoice System” across the pharmaceutical circulation
industry, quality consistency evaluation for generic drugs and zero mark-
up for hospital drug sales have generated significant impact on the field
of the sale of pharmaceutical products. In response to the centralization
of implementation of new policies and the increasingly stringent
regulations in this industry, all enterprises engaging in the pharmaceutical
operation in China are seeking self-reformation and experiencing the
tough challenges arising from the reform. Given the gradual nationwide
promulgation and implementation of the detailed implementation plan of
the “Two-Invoice System” during the Reporting Period, the Group, as a
provider of marketing, promotion and channel management (“MPCM")
services of imported pharmaceutical products in the Chinese market, shall
destruct its existing distributor marketing network system and develop
and construct a new marketing network system with substantial funds
and human resources within a short period of time. In the process of
reform and adjustment, the sales volume of various product portfolios of
the Group has decreased to a certain extent, whereas the costs of human
resources and marketing expenses have significantly increased.

In terms of market condition, there has been a continuous growth in
the overall supply of Human Albumin in the Chinese market during
2017, with the overall annual lot release’ reaching 41.22 million bottles,
representing an increase of 5.10% as compared with the annual lot
release of approximately 39.22 million bottles in 2016. The increase of
supply has heightened market competition, as shown by the decrease of
approximately RMB106.9 million in the sales volume of Human Albumin
Solution of the Group during the Reporting Period as compared with that
in 2016, representing a decrease of 20.8%. As for the procurement, there
were substantial fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB during the
Reporting Period, which represented a general depreciation against the
US dollar as compared with that in 2016, and hence led to the increase in
purchase cost for the Group’s imported pharmaceutical products.

1 The data is derived from the data published by various drug inspection
institutes, with the specification of each Human Albumin Solution calculated
at 10g(20%50ml)/bottle
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Chairman'’s Statement (Continued)
FERE(E)

In addition, in order to concentrate its resources on the business of
its core products, such as the products of Human Albumin Solution
and antibiotics, the Group conducted thorough review and prudent
business assessment of its existing product portfolio, and has taken
steps to terminate or suspend the business of some non-major products,
such as the products of Taurolite and Esafosfina, during the Reporting
Period. Such business restructuring resulted in a plunge of approximately
RMB64.0 million in the sales revenue of such non-major products as
compared with that in 2016, and the provision for impairment and
price decrease was provided for their corresponding distribution rights
and inventories during the Reporting Period, respectively, with affected
amount of approximately RMB52.7 million.

Based on the comprehensive analysis above, the Group recorded a loss in
operating activities in 2017, which further contributed to the impairment
of the Group’s goodwill of approximately RMB39.0 million. During the
Reporting Period, net loss amounted to RMB185.9 million, representing
a decrease of RMB204.2 million as compared with the net profit of
RMB18.3 million in last year.

Although the Group recorded a significant loss for the Reporting Period,
the adjustments to the Group's business model has promoted further
localization of its marketing network and hence stronger control over
the terminal sales network. At the same time, the adjustments to the
business of non-major products enabled our Group to further concentrate
its resources on its core products. In terms of existing business of MPCM
for pharmaceutical products, the Company will continue to maintain
close cooperation with overseas suppliers, focusing on the development
of blood products and antibiotics as core products, and actively respond
to changes in domestic and overseas economic situations, policies
and market conditions. Through strictly controlling risks, seeking for
opportunities amidst challenges and striving for innovation, the Group
will have a quick recovery in its business of the sale of pharmaceutical
products. In addition, according to its developing plan, the Group also
actively seeks for opportunities to enter the downstream industry. The
Group believes that new business and existing business of MPCM for
pharmaceutical products will be integrated seamlessly and create synergy
effect, strengthening the Group's core competitiveness and profit stability.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

FEHRE (E)

Apart from the business of the Group as described above, the Group
believes that outstanding staff and quality management talents are
crucial to successful promotion of its strategic development. Therefore,
it also put efforts into the establishment of system and functions such as
management, marketing, human resources and hospital management
through employing new employees for key positions and continuously
promoting management ability and internal training of staff. While
continuing to develop its system of internal control and risk management,
the Company also paid significant attention to its corporate social
responsibilities and practised them during the Group’s governance.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank our
Shareholders, customers and partners for their trust and support during
the Group's difficult time, and all the employees of the Group for their
hard work and contribution. The Group will seize the market opportunities
brought by the upgrade and transformation of the pharmaceutical
industry and continuously improve its competitiveness, in an effort
to create maximum value for the Shareholders, customers and other
stakeholders.

Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

29 March, 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BRI DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical imports,
the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for small and medium
sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers. Meanwhile, the Group is
the only MPCM service provider for imported blood products in the PRC,
leveraging our quality product portfolio that centers on blood products
and nationwide marketing and promotion network. The Group’s existing
product portfolio encompasses many quality products produced by small
and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers, covering
multiple therapeutic areas such as anti-infectives, blood products, and
products for digestive and cardiovascular systems. Included in such
products are blood products (which are in short supply in the Chinese
market) and prescription drugs which can meet the huge demand for
high-quality drugs with excellent clinical results among medical institutions
and patients.

1. Core products

Human Albumin Solution

Dating back to the early 1940s, blood products have undergone
decades of fast development. Such products have grown from
Human Albumin at the very beginning to the current 20-plus
categories in three series, encompassing such sub-categories as
Human Albumin, immune globulin and blood coagulation factors.
Given the approval granted to new indications and an improved rate
of diagnosis, the Plasma Protein Therapeutics Association (PPTA)
predicts that the market demand for blood products will retain a
high-speed growth around the globe. In these two years, as many
new plasma collection stations have been put into service, the
amount of plasma collection increases every year and production
capacity of domestic manufacturers also increased rapidly. As the
largest sales category in the market of blood products in the PRC,
Human Albumin is the only kind of blood product allowed to be
imported at the present, and its lot release of imported and domestic
categories maintains a rapid growth every year. In 2017, the annual
lot release’ amounted to 41.22 million bottles (2016: 39.22 million
bottles), among which the percentages of imported and domestic
categories were 57.2% and 42.8% respectively. Manufactured by
Octapharma, a global leading manufacturer of blood products, and
included as a Category B product in the National Reimbursement
Drug List (NRDL), the Human Albumin Solution operated by the
Group is used to remedy the shock caused by hypovolemia, remove
edema and poisonous substances, and treat neonatal hyper-
bilirubinemia. Based on the lot release of the Human Albumin
Solution® in the PRC in 2017, the market share of the Human
Albumin Solution manufactured by Octapharma was approximately
6.98%.

g The data is derived from the data published by various drug inspection
institutes, with the specification of each Human Albumin Solution calculated
at 10g (20%50ml)/bottle.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Axetine (Cefuroxime Sodium for injection)

Manufactured by Medochemie Ltd. from Cyprus, the Axetine
operated by the Group is classified as the second generation of
cephalosporin antibiotics. It is used to remedy bacterial infections
caused by sensitive bacteria, including respiratory infection, urinary
tract infection, and skin and soft tissue infections. The product has
been included in the National Catalogue of Essential Pharmaceuticals
and the Category A products of NRDL.

Medocef (Cefoperazone Sodium for injection)

Also manufactured by Medochemie Ltd. and operated by the Group,
Medocef is classified as the third generation of cephalosporin
antibiotics. The product is used to remedy bacterial infections caused
by sensitive lactamase, including respiratory infection, urinary tract
infection, biliary tract infection, abdominal infection, skin and soft
tissue infections, pelvic infection and septicemia. The product is also
effective in treating the brain infections caused by influenza and
meningococcus.

Trifamox IBL (Amoxicillin Sodium and Sulbactam Sodium for
injection)

Manufactured by Laboratorios Bago S.A. from Argentina, Trifamox
IBL is a classic compound preparation of penicillin-amidase
inhibitors, and an imported original product recommended by
the relevant guideline for the empirical treatment of community
acquired pneumonia (CAP) of children. Characteristic of an extensive
antibacterial range, a great effect of enzyme inhibition, safety and
reliability, Trifamox IBL is a top choice of empirical medication in the
early-stage antibacterial treatment of community-acquired infection
and nosocomial infection. The product is used to remedy the
respiratory infection, skin and soft tissue infections, pelvic infection,
urinary system infection, oral cavity infection and severe systemic
infection caused by B —
—lactam antibiotics and cephalosporin.

lactamase generating bacteria resistant to 3
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Marketing Network Development

The Group provides its marketing service through its internal teams
and their cooperation with third-party promoters. Hence, one of
the Group’s key development strategies is to continuously expand
the marketing network and enhance distributor and promotor
management. During the Reporting Period, the Group took “Flexible,
Professional and Efficient” as its objective, and strove to develop
its marketing team in respect of the ability of quickly responding
to market environment changes and executing operational plans
with high efficiency. Furthermore, the Group sorted out its human
resources in each division. The marketing team had its structure
streamlined and its performance management further refined,
with optimised allocation of sales resources that are invested in
each product and higher efficiency of business operation. As at
31 December 2017, the Group had an internal marketing team of
approximately 50 members.

At the same time, the implementation of “Two-Invoice System”
took place at a faster pace in each province. To positively respond to
such implementation, the existing structure of distributor network
was comprehensively sorted out. Based on sufficient communication
with its distributors, the Group has further extended its sales
channels to end markets through the collaboration between its
internal sales team and local distributors. Originally, promoters were
allocated by region. Now, the promoters are matched with each
hospital of the region concerned, which enables the Company’s
sales network to reach the end market. Besides, the coverage of the
network has also been extended from large top Class-lll hospitals to
provincial, municipal and county hospitals, to keep improving market
penetration, thereby establishing a precision management system
that each hospital will have its respective promoters.

In addition, the Group has further improved the direct participation
of its internal marketing team in product marketing activities.
In this regard, approaches include regularly training third-party
promoters on product knowledge, hosting or taking part in medical
or pharmaceutical conferences, symposiums and product seminars
to directly partake in the academic promotion activities of products,
and extend the opinion leadership network for the main therapeutic
areas of products. All the approaches serve to ensure accurate and
timely delivery of product information to doctors. In addition to
product promotion, the Group has taken the initiative to invite third
party promoters from across the country to discuss and interpret
the major impact of national policies, to increase the added value
and attraction of the Group's training. During the Reporting
Period, the Group had over 500 distributors and promoters in 31
provinces, municipalities and autonomous regions in China, covering
approximately 1,200 Class-Ill hospitals, 1,500 Class-II hospitals,
and over 1,200 Class-I hospitals, pharmacies and other medical
institutions.
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The Cold Chain Storage Facility

Considering the future demand for business expansion and the
significant demand for pharmaceutical cold chains in the storage
and delivery of blood products and bio-products, the Group has
constructed a cold chain storage facility in Shuangliu District,
Chengdu, Sichuan Province. The Group has completed the first
phase of its cold chain storage facility (15,000 square meters), which
can satisfy the Group's storage demand and provide better control
for the quality and safety of the blood products in our product
portfolio. Additionally, we will be able to provide third parties
with high quality pharmaceutical cold-chain storage services upon
completing the second-phase construction (which includes 25,000
square meters of cold chain storage and 47,000 square meters of
research and development base), which will be a new business unit
of the Group.

Currently, the Group has applied to Shuangliu District Government
for land transfer, with its procedures well under way. On 13 June
2017, the Group has entered into an equity transfer agreement with
an independent third party to acquire a company with qualifications
for pharmaceutical operation in Shuangliu District at a consideration
of RMB4.52 million. The acquisition was completed on 19 September
2017.

Save as mentioned above, the Company did not hold any material
investments, and there was no material acquisition or disposal of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Reporting Period.

Research and Development

The Group has entered into a collaboration agreement with the
China Academy of Chinese Medical Sciences to develop “Sinco
I”, a new realgar-based chemical medicine for treating acute
promyelocytic leukemia. The collaboration aims for the upstream
extension of the Group’s business and the future provision of a
new medicine for patients in the therapeutic area. The Group is
currently making efforts in designing and building a pilot plant for
pilot experiments. During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred
RMB2.0 million as the research and development expenses for
developing Sinco I.
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OUTLOOK

In 2018, the domestic and global macro-economic environment still
remains in uncertainty. Under the top-level strategy for a “Healthy China”,
the Chinese pharmaceutical and healthcare reform will enter a crucial
year that features full implementation of multiple medical-reform policies,
optimization of industrial structures, upgrade of technologies and facilities,
and more support for international development. Meanwhile, there will
be greater disparity in corporate and product landscape, together with
faster industrial integration, presenting both opportunities and challenges.
Factors, such as an aging population, greater health awareness, changes
to disease spectrum and the application of new technologies, will
generate long-term rigid demand to support the development of the
Chinese pharmaceutical industry. As an important sector in China relating
to people’s livelihood, the pharmaceutical and healthcare industry still
enjoys a strong growth momentum and huge rigid demand. The Group
will continue with its corporate development strategies of optimizing
the marketing network and the product portfolio, and maintain the
business of blood products and antibiotics as a core therapeutic area. By
concentrating its advantageous resources, the Group spares no effort in
reaching a speedy completion of the adjustment on sales pattern under
the new policies for stabilising its business. In respect of expanding
its marketing network, the Group will build its sales team at a faster
pace, continuously localise the channels in its marketing network, and
extend it to the end market by establishing multi-mode cooperation with
hospitals, all in a bid to contribute higher profit to the Group, develop
core marketing capabilities and build a terminal network to accommodate
more products. In terms of the direction of business development, the
Group will proactively expand its business to the downstream hospital
industry. The Group believes that the hospital industry business and the
current pharmaceutical sales business will be integrated seamlessly and
create synergy effect, strengthening the Group’s core competitiveness and
profit stability.

Apart from the above, the Group will continue to enhance the
development of its internal control system and risk management, pay
much attention to and fulfill its corporate social responsibilities throughout
the Group’s governance. The Group will offer its staff a great platform
for career development, and keep working to create greater value for the
Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group recorded revenue of RMB806.7 million for the Reporting

Period, representing a decrease of RMB52.2 million as compared with
RMB858.9 million in 2016, with a decrease rate of 6.1%, mainly due to
the following factors:

(i)

(ii)

Human Albumin Solution

Affected by the Group’s adjustments to its marketing network and
restructure of the blood products market, the Group’s sales volume
of Human Albumin Solution during the Reporting Period decreased
by approximately 16.9% as compared with 2016. Moreover, in
response to market competition, the Group also lowered the
average selling price for approximately 4.6%. As a result, revenue
contributed by Human Albumin Solution decreased by RMB106.9
million as compared with that in 2016.

Antibiotics

Medocef only contributed RMB5.6 million to our revenue for the
Reporting Period as its supply has not yet been restored, representing
a decrease of RMB20.7 million as compared with 2016. Introduced
in late 2016, sales revenue of Trifamox IBL was RMB28.5 million for
the Reporting Period, representing an increase of RMB27.7 million
as compared with 2016, offsetting the effects from the decrease in
sales volume of Medocef.

During the Reporting Period, sales revenue of Axetine was
RMB292.0 million, representing an increase of RMB47.1 million as
compared with 2016, mainly due to the changes in the Group’s
marketing model under the impact of the “Two-Invoice System”,
which led to the simultaneous increase of both sales revenue and
sales expenses. Without taking into account the “Two-Invoice
System” factor, during the Reporting Period, the sales revenue of
antibiotics remained stable as compared with that in 2016.
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(iii) Other products

On one hand, in order to concentrate its resources on the business
of its core products, such as the products of Human Albumin
Solution and antibiotics, the Group conducted thorough review and
prudent business assessment of its existing product portfolio, and
has taken steps to terminate or suspend the business of some non-
major products, such as the products of Taurolite and Esafosfina,
resulting in a plunge of approximately RMB64.0 million in the
sales revenue of such non-major products during the Reporting
Period as compared with that in 2016; on the other hand, Qingdao
Ruichi Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Ruichi”) was acquired
by the Group by the end of 2016, and it generated revenue of
approximately RMB64.7 million mainly from the sales of Diphereline,
Tanakan and Etiasa during the Reporting Period. Affected by both
factors, the Group recorded revenue of RMB73.3 million for other
products during the Reporting Period, which basically remained
stable as in 2016.

Cost of sales

The Group recorded the cost of sales of RMB713.2 million for the
Reporting Period, representing a decrease of RMB41.1 million as
compared with RMB754.3 million in 2016, with a decrease rate of 5.4%,
which was mainly due to the decrease in sales volume.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB93.5 million, representing a decrease of RMB11.1 million or 10.6%
as compared with 2016. Gross profit margin decreased from 12.2% in
2016 to 11.6% for the Reporting Period. Such decrease could be further
analysed as below:

(i)

the average selling price of Human Albumin Solution was reduced
by approximately 4.6%, as well as the increase in unit cost of sales
of approximately 4.3% under the impact of depreciation of RMB
against USD, which led to a drop of 8.2% in gross profit margin of
Human Albumin Solution;

resulting from the depreciation of RMB against USD and the
adjustment of purchase price, the purchase costs of Axetine and
Medocef increased, causing the average unit cost of sales to increase
by approximately 10.5% during the Reporting Period as compared
with that in 2016. However, meanwhile, the selling price increased
under the model of “Two-Invoice System”, which led to the increase
in average selling price of antibiotics during the Reporting Period.
The combined effects of the above two factors resulted in an
increase of 10.4% in the gross profit margin of antibiotics;
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(i) due to the gradual termination or suspension in the sales of part of
our products, and the lower gross profit margin of the products sold
by Qingdao Ruichi, gross profit margin of other products therefore

decreased by approximately 10.1% as compared with that in 2016.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains for the Reporting Period amounted to RMB4.2
million, representing a decrease of RMB4.3 million as compared with
2016, primarily because the Group recorded foreign exchange gains
of RMB4.2 million in 2016, while in 2017 the Group recorded foreign
exchange loss in the other expense account.

Selling and distribution expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded selling and distribution
expenses of RMB95.9 million, representing an increase of RMB84.4
million as compared with 2016, primarily because in responding to
the gradual implementation of “Two-Invoice System”, the Group has
undertaken marketing and promotion expenses, and has also streamlined
its distributor network in order to involve more internal sales team to
cooperate with regional third-party promoters. As a result, the Group's
marketing and promotion expenses increased by RMB80.7 million, while
staff costs and travelling expenses and entertainment fee incurred by
internal sales team also increased by RMB2.1 million during the Reporting
Period.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded administrative expenses
of RMB57.3 million, representing a decrease of RMB5.1 million as
compared with 2016, primarily due to the decrease in listing expenses of
RMB17.5 million. The decrease was partially offset by the increase in the
following aspects:

(i)  depreciation of RMB5.0 million in relation to additions of property,
plant and equipment;

(i) amortisation expenses of the distribution rights of RMB4.6 million
were reclassified from cost of sales to administrative expenses; and

(iii)

professional consultation fee of RMB3.2 million.
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Impairment loss on intangible assets

During the Reporting Period, based on prudent business assessment and
thorough review of the product portfolio, the Group had taken steps
to terminate or suspend the business of Taurolite and Esafosfina, and
concentrated resources on the marketing and promotion of the Group’s
core products. Such business restructuring resulted in a plunge in the
sales revenue of Taurolite and Esafosfina during the Reporting Period and
impairment loss of RMB27.5 million in relation to the distribution rights of
these two products.

Impairment loss on goodwill

During the Reporting Period, affected by the implementation of “Two-
Invoice System” across the pharmaceutical circulation industry, the
heightened competition within Human Albumin market, the fluctuations
in the exchange rate of RMB against USD, the Group has suffered
a decrease in gross profit and an increase in selling and distribution
expenses. Due to the above factors, the Group's profitability has declined,
which in turn led to an impairment of goodwill of RMB39.0 million during
the Reporting Period.

Other expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other expenses of
RMB39.2 million, representing an increase of RMB34.7 million as
compared with 2016, primarily due to (i) inventory provision of RMB25.2
million resulting from the termination or suspension in the sales of certain
products; (ii) foreign exchange losses of RMB2.1 million; and (iii) loss on
settlement of forward foreign currency transactions of RMB8.1 million.

Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded finance costs of
RMB33.7 million, representing an increase of RMB24.5 million as
compared with 2016, primarily due to the extension of the import cycle
and sales cycle of Human Albumin Solution, as well as the increase in use
of capital during the process of adjustments in the sales pattern, which led
to the increase of the Group's finance costs. The increase in the finance
costs includes (i) increase in the bond interest expense of RMB11.0 million;
(ii) increase in the interest expenses on bank and other loans of RMB9.7
million; and (iii) increase in the interest on discounted bills receivable of
RMB3.8 million.

Income tax credits/(expense)
During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded income tax credit of
RMB9.0 million as the operation result was in a loss position.
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(Loss)/profit for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded net loss of RMB185.9
million, representing a decrease of RMB204.2 million as compared with
the net profit of RMB18.3 million in 2016.

Inventories

Inventory balances increased by RMB153.6 million to RMB291.2 million
as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB137.6 million). The
increase was mainly due to the increase of year-end inventories in Human
Albumin Solution by RMB199.7 million as a result of the decline in
sales volume affected by the market adjustment of blood products. The
increase was partially offset by the decrease in inventories of antibiotics
of RMB13.5 million and the decrease in inventories of other products of
RMB32.6 million.

The Group's average inventory turnover days increased from 45 days for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to 110 days for the Reporting Period,
primarily due to the sales volume decrease and inventory balance increase
of Human Albumin Solution.

Trade and bills receivables

Trade receivables increased by RMB14.7 million to RMB26.5 million
as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB11.8 million). Bills
receivables increased by RMB2.5 million to RMB10.6 million as of 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB8.1 million). During the
Reporting Period, the Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on full payment in advance of delivery either in cash or in bills receivable
accepted by a bank, except for certain customers which are granted credit
terms ranging from 45 days to 90 days. Average bills and trade receivable
turnover days decreased from 21 days for the year ended 31 December
2016 to 13 days for the Reporting Period, mainly reflecting the impact of
Qingdao Ruichi acquisition.

Based on the invoice date, all trade receivables of the Group as of 31
December 2017 were aged within three months and were neither past
due nor impaired.

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables increased by RMB79.6 million
to RMB146.7 million as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
RMB67.1 million), mainly due to the increase in prepaid marketing and
promotion service fee of RMB74.6 million made to ten independent
third-party distributors. During the Reporting Period, the Group entered
service agreements with these distributors with aggregate amount of
approximately RMB85.5 million to perform marketing and promotion
activities within the areas where the distributors are located. The service
agreements cover period from 1 September 2017 to 31 October 2018,
among which RMB10.9 million has been recorded as marketing and
promotion service expense during the Reporting Period.
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Payments in advance

Payments in advance decreased by RMB59.2 million to RMB40.7 million
as of 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB99.9 million),
primarily due to (i) the transfer of RMB94.0 million for the first-phase
construction of cold chain storage facility to property, plant and
equipment during the Reporting Period; (ii) payment of RMB30.8 million
in relation to the second-phase construction of cold chain storage facility;
and (iii) prepayment of RMB8.6 million in relation to the research and
development expenses for Sinco I.

Trade payables

Trade payables decreased by RMB23.3 million to RMB22.5 million as of
31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB45.8 million), primarily due
to the settlement of payments for Diphereline and Tanakan of RMB32.2
million, and increase in payables for the purchase of antibiotics of RMB8.9
million. Average trade payable turnover days decreased from 26 days for
the year ended 31 December 2016 to 17 days for the Reporting Period.

Borrowings and gearing ratio

As of 31 December 2017, the Group has (i) interest-bearing bank loans
of RMB157.7 million (31 December 2016: RMB165.0 million), all of
which were repayable within one year; (ii) interest-bearing other loans of
RMB118.1 million (31 December 2016: Nil) repayable within one year; and
(iii) bonds of RMB133.9 million (31 December 2016: Nil) repayable within
one year.
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v o/
BEENWR DM (E) =
At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group’s gearing ratio was ~ RIREEIR  KEENE B RFENT ¢
calculated as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Interest-bearing bank and other loans SERITREMER 275,815 165,000
Trade payables Z S ENRIE 22,522 45,832
Other payables H A R IR 70,029 61,734
Tax payable eI 2,546 12,221
Bonds &% 133,856 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B HERIRESEEY (22,710) (102,050)
Less: Pledged bank balances B BEARITES (52,941) (52,029)
Net debt BEFHE 429,117 130,708
Equity s 272,730 457,275
Equity and net debt Rk B EFE 701,847 587,983
Gearing ratio BEL =R 61.1% 22.2%

2017 3 « HEIA B SR AR AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) % @ €8 3(235
v o/
EBEENRR O E) =
Liquidity and capital resources MEBEERERRKR
The following table is a condensed summary of the Group's consolidated ~T& AAEBNFERRNEGLE S REREBARE
statement of cash flows during the Reporting Period. Fo
2017 2016
20174 20164F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Net cash used in operating activities BTN &R (358,654) (29,903)
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities W& EBE, (FrA)IRE S5 71,985 (206,206)
Net cash from financing activities S8 EHEREFE 209,498 321,921
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents R4 RIRSZEWILI, CHd ) F5E (77,171) 85,812
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXREFHTE (1,257) 8,061
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#HR & MRS EEY 154,079 60,206
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRIBENIBEEEED 75,651 154,079

Net cash used in operating activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s net cash used in operating
activities was RMB358.7 million (2016: RMB29.9 million). This was mainly
due to the cash used in purchase of products and the payment of selling
and distribution expenses were greater than the cash received from sales
of these products.

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group's net cash from investing activities
was RMB72.0 million (2016: cash outflow of RMB206.2 million), including
(i) redemption of an available-for sale investment of RMB108.1 million;
and (ii) payment in relation to capital expenditure of RMB36.4 million with
details set out in the capital expenditure analysis below.

Net cash from financing activities

During the Reporting Period, the Group's net cash from financing
activities was RMB209.5 million (2016: RMB321.9 million), which mainly
included (i) proceeds from bank and other loans of RMB632.5 million; and
(i) proceeds from the issue of bonds of RMB139.9 million. Cash inflow
was partially offset by (i) repayment of bank and other loans of RMB520.9
million; (ii) payment of interest of RMB33.6 million; and (iii) payment of
service fee in relation to financing activities of RMB8.4 million.

KETHMARSFE

RBEHA - AEEREEEDMIARSFEAAR
#3587 BT (2016%F « ARM2998ET) « LTY
FEHRBEERURTAHEE MCHERY AR
PR EEMPTRECRE T °

REEEE(FTR)REFE

RBEHR - AEERREETDMBRSFEAAR
7208 87L(20165F : e R ARK206288
L) BEOERTHDEEREARKI081BET
R NEBEAEIAREIcAAET BEFE
R T BRI T

E5THMEBHRSFHE

RREIR - AEBPREL TSRS FEAAR
#209.5587L(2016%F : AR¥3219B8L) =B
BEOERTREMEROMSERNIBARKEE32588
TC s R(NEITEFMSHTEAREI13995E T - R
SRABEERTREMEEARKS2098ET
(i ZAFIBARKEIZ6EET  MiZ T EREFE
RSB ARBATE T DE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN®R D (&)

The following table sets out the Group's cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the Reporting Period:

TREJIAKENRERRNA S RREEED

2017 2016

201745 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT AREEFIT

Denominated in RMB LAAREEEHE 70,897 100,945
Denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 3,303 36,467
Denominated in HK$ A TTEHE 1,451 16,251
Denominated in Euro LABRTETHE - 416
75,651 154,079

Foreign currency risk

The Group's purchase of products from the overseas suppliers is
denominated in US$. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank balances, other receivables, trade payables,
bank loans and bonds that are denominated in US$ and HK$.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage the
potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management monitors the
Group's foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

Capital expenditure
The following table sets out the Group’s capital expenditure for the
periods indicated:

SN LB
AEEMBIMERBEEMRALITAE - AEEX
MOBEMABUAREE  EETRERESS
BY - CEWRITAER - HRKRSUR - BHEAR
B SRITER - BNESFAB RIASTT B TRTE -

AEEW ER LM PR HAERINEBERD ©
ERESERAEEINERR  YHKEEFTERERE
EhERIMNER -

BRI
TR AKERRBENEARF

2017 2016
20175 2016%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETTT

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and BEWE  BEL®RE
intangible assets AR\ EE 29,802 42,780
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B A ) 6,616 59,688
36,418 102,468

2017 54 - ARRBEEZRARAF)



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) (@ @ €8
o O
EEEN®R D (&) 2

Indebtedness &%
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the U TAAXEEE @ E BERREPHREN S LHRLEN
Reporting Period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as  FREIZ|EHIE N ¢

follows:
2017
20174
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERE LPR=EA =Z+={EA wEE
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTR AR%®TR AR%®TR AR¥Tx
Interest-bearing bank and other loans 5t BIRITE R R EME R - 209,696 71,512 281,208
Trade payables FERHE 570 - 22,522 - 22,522
Other payables Hh fE7E 1,262 32,395 34,931 68,588
Bonds &% - 138,569 - 138,569
1,262 403,182 106,443 510,887
2016
20164
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REXRE DPR=@EA =&=+=f@A ek
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBFT ARBTT ARETT
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER = 10,092 158,623 168,715
Trade payables B S EMFE - 45,832 - 45,832
Other payables Hih B 926 2,755 54,362 58,043

926 58,679 212,985 272,590
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN®R D (&)

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2017.

Pledge of assets

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's buildings with net carrying amount
of RMB84.7 million (31 December 2016: RMB76.1 million), bank balances
of RMB30.0 million (31 December 2016: Nil) and inventories of RMB125.7
million (31 December 2016: Nil) were pledged to secure certain bank
and other loans, and the Group’s bank balances of RMB22.9 million (31
December 2016: RMB52.0 million) were pledged for issuance of letters of
credit.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Reporting Period.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had a total of 112 employees. For
the Reporting Period, the total staff costs of the Group were RMB15.1
million (2016: RMB12.8 million).

The Group's employee remuneration policy is determined by factors such
as remuneration in respect of the local market, the overall remuneration
standard in the industry, the inflation level, corporate operating efficiency
and employee performance. The Group conducts performance appraisals
once every year for its employees, the results of which are applied
in annual salary reviews and promotional assessments. The Group's
employees are considered for annual bonuses according to certain
performance criteria and appraisals results. Social insurance contributions
are made by the Group for its PRC employees in accordance with the
relevant PRC regulations.

The Group also provides continuous learning and training programs to its
employees to enhance their skills and knowledge, so as to maintain their
competitiveness and improve customer service quality. The Group did
not experience any major difficulties in recruitment, nor did it experience
any material loss in manpower or suffer from any material labor dispute
during the Reporting Period.

In addition, the Company adopted a share option scheme to recognise
the contribution by certain employees of the Group, and to provide them
with incentives in order to retain them for their continuing support in the
operation and development of the Group.

2017 4 - ERAREEERAR AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) %9 @ €8
EEEN®R D (&) 22

RISK MANAGEMENT b E

The principal risks and uncertainties identified by the Company which may A FEEalAR R & FTskpIA F EEMS L TR ZE © %
have material and adverse impact on our performance or operation are S [&E & TAAREA E 1] se & B R PRI R IR S 2 1E EK
summarised below. There may be other principal risks and uncertainties in =~ EATRNFIZ L « B TR ES - AJRLIB B HMAE
addition to those set out below which are not known to the Company or ~ ATRASIABAEAEBERKRKAIEAEANEER
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the [ & TBHEAREZ -

future.

o Failure to maintain relationships with existing suppliers — The Group o  CRELHIAEMHERNERBEER - AEFRRFRE R
currently sources all the products in portfolio from limited suppliers, BRENHENEENEBEERIEMERENE
either directly or indirectly through their sales agents. EmAs -

o Exchange rate fluctuation — The Group’s purchase of products from o [EXFH-AEERSIMIEEBENERUE

the overseas suppliers is denominated in US$, and certain items of TTEHE - BETIRITARS - B EIGIE -« R17
bank balances, other receivables, bank borrowings and bonds are BENEFEBHUAET B TEE -

denominated in US$ and HKS.
o Decrease in gross profits due to increase in cost and competition. o RANIEINKRERFENBIERFEERTE -

e Experience prolonged delays or significant disruptions to the supply o ERLEEBRFMIEREEATE -
of the products.

The Company believes that risk management is essential to the Group's ~ ZAATEE @ AR EREAREB L ERR LB T
efficient and effective operation. The Company’s management assists the S EZE - AA RN ERE B EE TGN EE XS
Board in evaluating material risk exposure existing in the Group's business,  FTEI ¥ AV E KR - W2 ERITAENRR EIE &R
and participates in formulating appropriate risk management and internal  ZF3R4IIEHE - U NMERER S EE BT YEEHE
control measures, and to ensure such measures are properly implemented B4 ©

in daily operational management.

26 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2017



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN®R D (&)

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Human resources is one of the most important assets of the Group. The
Group strives to motivate its employees by providing them with a clear
career path as well as comprehensive and professional training courses. In
addition, the Group also offers competitive remuneration packages to its
employees, including basic salary, certain benefits and other performance
based incentives.

The Group purchases imported pharmaceutical products from overseas
suppliers, either directly or indirectly through their sales agents, and
generate revenue by on-selling them to hospitals and pharmacies through
distributors and deliverers. Our suppliers or their sales agents have
granted us the rights to market, promote and manage sales channels
for their products in China. The Group maintains a stable and long-term
relationship with its suppliers by providing them access to the growing
Chinese market with steady sales growth.

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to distributors, who on-sell
the products to hospitals and pharmacies either directly or indirectly
through their sub-distributors. The Group maintains stable and long-term
relationship with its distributors by providing them guidance, training
and support to carry out more targeted field marketing and promotion
activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is primarily engaged in MPCM for imported pharmaceutical
products, a line of business that does not have material impact on the
environment. The key environmental impact from the Group's operation
is related to electricity, water and paper consumption. The Group is fully
aware of the importance of sustainable environmental development, and
has implemented the following measures to encourage environmental
protection and energy conservation:

e Promoting paperless office
o Encouraging low-carbon commuting
e Ensuring reasonable energy consumption

During the Reporting Period, we did not incur any material cost of
compliance with relevant environmental laws and regulations.

2017 4 - ERAREEERAR AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN®R D (&)

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group's business and operations are subject to related laws and
regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong
and the PRC. During the Reporting Period, we have complied with all
related laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the British Virgin
Islands, Hong Kong and the PRC, which would have significant impact on
the Group.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

On 27 June 2017, the Company issued unlisted bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to RMB104,150,000).
The maturity date of the bonds falls 24 months after the date of issue.
The interest rate is 10% per annum and the interest should be payable
quarterly. With effect from 12 October 2017, the nominal effective
interest rate was amended to 15% per annum with interest payable
quarterly and the maturity date was amended to 27 March 2018. On 27
March 2018, the maturity date has been further amended to 30 April
2018.

On 30 June 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to RMB34,717,000).
The maturity date of the convertible bonds falls 24 months after the date
of issue. The interest rate is 8% per annum and the interest should be
payable quarterly. With effect from 18 December 2017, all rights and
obligations of the holder of the convertible bonds and the Company in
relation to the conversion rights were deleted. Meanwhile, the maturity
date was amended to 30 March 2018 and the interest rate was amended
to 15% per annum with interest payable quarterly. On 27 March 2018,
the maturity date has been further amended to 30 April 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN®R D (&)

On 12 October 2017, the Company and Crede CG Il Ltd. (the
“Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription
Agreement”). On 6 December 2017, the Company and the Subscriber
entered into an amended and restated subscription agreement (the
“Amended and Restated Subscription Agreement”) to amend, restate,
supersede and replace in its entirety the Subscription Agreement. Pursuant
to the Amended and Restated Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber
shall subscribe for, and the Company shall issue, the convertible bonds
(the “Convertible Bonds") with an aggregate principal amount of up
to US$150,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,170,000,000)
to be issued in up to 30 tranches, comprising the first part of the
Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of up to US$50,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$390,000,000) (the “First Part CB") and
the second part of the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of up
to US$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$780,000,000). The
maturity date of the Convertible Bonds is falling 36 months after the issue
date of such tranche of the Convertible Bonds or, if that is not a business
day, the first business day thereafter. The interest rate is 4% per annum
and the interest should be paid semi-annually.

On 17 January 2018, the first tranche of the First Part CB (the “First
Tranche”) in the principal amount of US$5,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$39,000,000) has been issued to the Subscriber. The
initial conversion price in respect of the First Tranche is HK$0.50869,
being 70% of the volume weighted average price of the shares of the
Company in the 20 trading days prior to 17 January 2018.

On 17 January 2018, the Subscriber exercised its conversion rights
attached to the First Tranche in full. As a result, 76,670,585 conversion
shares were issued to the Subscriber, representing approximately 4.7 %
of the issued share capital of the Company before the issue of the
conversion shares and approximately 4.5% of the issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the issue of such conversion shares.

2017 4 - ERAREEERAR AR
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Basis of Preparation

The Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “HKEx") as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Listing Rules and complies with the reporting principle of “comply
or explain” and compilation in relation to key performance indicators
("KPIs") in the environmental area under ESG Guide.

The data and information cited in the Report are referenced from
the archived questionnaires, records, statistics and research of the
Company. The Report covers an information period that spans from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017, exactly the financial year
covered by the 2017 annual report of the Company.

The Report encompasses the information of the Company and all its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Contact
Should you have any query or feedback on the Report, please
contact us via the following methods:

a. Address: E5-1805, Global Center, 1700 Tianfu Avenue North,
Hitech Industrial Development Zone, Chengdu City, Sichuan
Province

b.  Tel: +86 28 62912988

c.  Fax: +86 28 62912922

d.  Email: sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com

e.  Official website: http://www.sinco-pharm.com

Overview

With extensive experience in the distribution of pharmaceutical
imports, the Group provides comprehensive MPCM services for
small and medium-sized overseas pharmaceutical manufacturers.
Meanwhile, the Group, leveraging its quality product portfolio
that centers on blood products and nationwide marketing and
promotion network, is the only MPCM service provider for imported
blood products in the PRC. Currently, the Group’s product portfolio
includes blood products, antibiotics, and other pharmaceutical
imports that enjoy high-speed growth or a sizable market.

2017 4 - BN ABEEERAR AR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIE - HERERRSE (E)

Core Values

Constant in pursuing excellence of product quality and
pharmaceutical technology services, the Group aspires to become a
top partner for overseas pharmaceutical businesses who intends to
enter the Chinese pharmaceutical market. Sticking to its core values
“Simplicity, Innovation, National, Collaboration, and Openness”,

e @ 8 @

BOMEESE

RS ENETE K o B S A B B AN BR BERH
fRTS - BIZRAEINERE AR BIEEEMISN S
BEERE o RE B FAGTAE S R (Simplicity) ©
B B8l #(Innovation) + & B 7& & (National) ~ &
{E £ 5% (Collaboration) & B i 2 7 (Openness) £

ZOBER - WERMEXES HRENME
BEENETERAFERR  #E#BEREE
BT - R - KD - BT - HERSREE
FEANSTREA °

the Group wishes to deliver good corporate governance and fulfill
its environmental and social responsibilities, to realize sustainable
development and safeguard the investors, staff, suppliers,
distributors, governments, communities, financial institutions and
other stakeholders.

fEm ARBISRERE

AR B A B T RS A RIS R R A
B SFESeRKEMNEENER - RM2MK
FFEENESAEABIERREROSTER
{ERER MR A EIRENABFITE «

5. Stakeholder Identification and Communications 5.
The Group will continue to maintain close contact and
communications with the stakeholders, and receives valuable opinion
from them each year. In order to decide the content and direction of
the Annual Report for the Year, we referred to the analysis results of
material concern raised by the stakeholders last year and the relevant
response.

BEABARIHERDE

Significant Subjects for Stakeholders and Response

Type of Stakeholders Focus Means of Communication Response and Feedback

EREAER BIES FTEBBEAR et R
Shareholders/Investors ~ Continuous, stable investment Annual reports, interim reports and Publishing AGM notices and
returns announcements resolutions according to
Timely information disclosure ~ General meetings regulations
Corporate operation in Roadshows/telephone conferences/ Timely disclosing corporate
compliance with laws and meet-and-greets information

regulations Media communication mechanism  Publishing disclosure
Press conferences announcements and
Opinion monitoring regular reports according to
Consultation via telephone/email/ regulations
website
Investor visits
RRR A E FHERENREER FERE FHBRERAE REEBEMRREFRG @M
R B8R BRAE =S
BRHPERES BE/EEeE/ REE RERBEATEE
BB B RIBERB NS FEAN E A
mEEhE s
B EELH|
BB BN
REERED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI HEREBHRE (E)

Type of Stakeholders Focus Means of Communication Response and Feedback
R AER BEXEH FEBEBSR SR g
Staff Training and career Direct communication Providing a healthy and safe
development Performance appraisal work environment
Remuneration and benefits Medical checkups Establishing a fair mechanism
Health and safety Training programmes for promotion
Staff opinion surveys Organizing staff activities
Safety management
8T BRI R EEER REERE R ITERER
FroNeaE R BUERZ NN T EVE T
[EE iy B BB TS
H AR
BTEREGA
ZERER
Suppliers Standard supplier Execution of orders/contracts Performing contracts as agreed
management and purchase Direct communication Maintaining long-term
process Supplier management system collaboration with
Timely performance of Supplier archives outstanding suppliers
contracts Timely payment
Corporate reputation Ensuring pharmaceutical quality
and safety
Keeping complete supplier
archives
e RE R R EIE M F18 ARMT RAOETER
EREEAZ BEER HESHERRERPEIE
REITERKE HERERHE R R
rEEE HEFER HREREELE
B ERIER
Distributors A robust process of customer  Daily communication Enhancing quality management
service Aftersales service Performing contracts as agreed
A complete mechanism of Customer satisfaction surveys Providing distributors with
information communication Customer archives pharmaceutical knowledge
A stable and safe supply of Visits to distributors training and marketing
pharmaceutical products support
Timely response to requests Sufficient communication
KEHE EERHE P RERIZ HEER msESER
TEEMEEmM ERR® BEBITER
BT RERHELHE BRmERERAT A SH PR A B AN RS D) AD
FF s K B [o] g BRER B E
¥E28,/EH 0 EE
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Type of Stakeholders Focus

Means of Communication

Response and Feedback

R AER BEXEH FEBEFR SR g
Governments/ Corporate operation in Government visits Strict complying with laws and
Communities compliance with laws and  Participation in government regulations
regulations meetings and regular visits Enhancing safety management
Contributing to community Government projects Actively assuming social
development Community service responsibility
B,/ & SR TRES B2 E8EE BAR P ERER
R R ER DEBFEE  THED gz 2ER
B R BEAEMEEE
[ AR
Financial Institutions Good corporate credit, and Financial reports and Timely repayment of loans
stable capability of loan announcements Maintaining good cooperative
repayment Visits relations
Stable corporate development Direct communication
TRIEE REWNEEER @ BEH ImERNE REERE R
EEs 2E8E R¥s RUFEVEIERIR
RENPEER HEER
6. Social 6. &

To perform social responsibility, the Group always attaches great
importance to the details of staff, product management and
community benefit at work to provide a fair and equitable treatment
to the related stakeholders of the Group and deeply believes that

RETEEMSEM - NEE-FZFRERIIE
EHET EREENRAEEREN AL - B3K
UAREBEABNOER AL AFMRENSR -
¥ EREUEETHEASAEBRENKRE

this management direction is a long-term investment for the Group.

a.

34

Employment

The Group has been aware of a number of laws and
regulations on the protection of the labor force established
by the People’s Republic of China and has strictly complied
with their requirements to carry out all of the relevant laws
and regulations when employing staff members. The relevant
laws and regulations include: PRC Labor Law, Employment
Promotion Law, Labor Contract Law, Tentative Provisions on
Salary Payment, Regulations on the Management of Housing
Provident Fund, Labor Dispute Mediation and Arbitration Law,
Regulation on Work-related Injury Insurances, and local labor
laws and regulations. The Group also ensures the entitlement
to all statutory social insurance and statutory holidays of its
staff members. Furthermore, to provide staff members with
better welfare, the Group has formulated Remuneration
Management System, Staff Fund Management System, and
Staff Reward and Punishment Provisions, and also provides
staff members with allowances for transport and lunch,
staff activities and group tours, with an aim at achieving fair
treatment for all staff members of the Group. In addition to the
said welfare, the Group also attaches great importance to raise
intrinsic value of the staff. Therefore, the Group provides staff
members at all levels with targeted development and incentive
schemes, and clear and fair promotion opportunities through
performance appraisal according to the Group’s Performance
Management System.
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Employment Indicators

EfEEEZ
Staff by Gender Staff by Age
BI MRS BIFERED M
Number of Staff Number of Staff
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During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a staff outflow of 44, representing a demission* rate of 28.2%.
AREEAR - NEEBEBRE T44A - BEBE*A28.2% o

Departed Staff by Gender Departed Staff by Age
BEELB T1ERID M BB TFEREDM
Number of Staff Number of Staff
BT AR BT A
Above 50 g 40050 g 301040 gm 20to 30
20 - female g ot 55— somoct M aoso M 3040 M 20505
351 ig . 44
30 26 40 -
25 N
30
20 251
15 20
10 15
10
5 5
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2016 2017 2016 2017

*  Demission rate = Number of staff departed during the Reporting Period / (Headcount at the end of the Reporting Period +
Number of staff departed during the Reporting Period)
o BREE = IEHINBBE TAR (RESHRAS+REHNBEBE TE)
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In addition to the existing staff policies, the Group’s strict
recruitment system that can ensure it enjoys comprehensive
human resources allocation. The Group has always been
recruiting talents externally and keeping contact with
recruitment agencies, universities and colleges to attract
potential talents to join the Group. It has set up a “Staff
Referral Award” to encourage its staff members to recommend
capable talents to join the Group.

Moreover, the Group ensures all the job applicants and staff
enjoy equal opportunities for employment, with zero tolerance
of any discrimination over gender, age, ethnicity, nationality
and disability. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a staff
of 112 in total, with a proper gender balance (46.4% being
male staff and 53.6% being female staff). During the Reporting
Period, no employment discrimination has occurred within the
Group.

Health and Safety

Staff health and safety are also areas that the Group attached
great importance to. The Group, at all times, strictly complies
with all requirements of relevant regulations, including the
PRC Labor Law, Fire Prevention Law, Occupational Health and
Safety Management System, Special Regulation on the Labor
Protection of Female Staff, Measures for the Ascertainment
of Work-related Injuries, and the Regulation on Work-related
Injury Insurances.

The Group strives to offer its staff a safe work environment
and minimize all potential risks on health and safety. We
conduct ongoing risk assessment and inspection on work
environment with certain high-risk to mitigate the risks. During
the Reporting Period, the Group implemented a series of health
management measures, so that its staff members can work in
a safe environment free of occupational hazards:

e  Staff medical examination

° Fire Drills

. Regular maintenance of electrical equipment

e Traffic safety study for drivers

KBS BT

-
£

&

Sy’ =

ERRD AL EiHhEEGES
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During the Reporting Period, the Group incurred no work-related
fatalities among its staff; nor did any staff lose any work days due
to work-related injuries.
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C.

Development and Training

Improving the quality and techniques of staff members is a
momentum for the Group’s development. To ensure effective
implementation of staff training schemes, the Group has
formulated Management Measures for Staff Training, which
expressly set out an integrated system and implementation
process that encompass induction, internal training and
external training:

i. Induction
New recruits are introduced to the general knowledge
of the Group, such as corporate culture, product
knowledge, basic internal control system and process, the
work process of the department concerned, and details
of the work position.

ii.  Internal Training

Based on the actual demands at work, the Group applies
its internal training resources to the communications on
professional knowledge and skills, to share experience.
Such training takes place in the following forms: self-
learning with shared training materials on the Group's
online work platform, and discussions at regular
departmental meetings, communication sessions for
business teams and inter-departmental sharing sessions.

iii. — External Training
The Group encourages its staff members to improve their
professional techniques and, given their efficient work
arrangement, attend training and policy seminars hosted
by external institutions.

In order to share and inherit the Group’s knowledge and
experience with internal staff members, the Group has
formulated its Internal Lecturer Management Measures
to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of training. At
the beginning of each year, human resources department
formulates annual training scheme according to feedback
from the previous year, the Group’s strategic planning and
the actual demand of each department, and prepares training
curricular and course content on a quarterly basis.
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Training-related Indicators

EIAERER

Staff Training Ratio by Gender Staff Average Training Hours by Gender

RIERIBI DBV ANNE LB RIERIBI D B TFHEX IR 2

2016 - 2017 2016 - 2017

20165 20174 2016%F 20174
21

55% 89% 89% 17 .

14 14
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Male Female Total Male Female Total
B z &t 3 28 a5t
Staff Training Ratio by Category Staff Average Training Hours by Category
RERRIEID XN E LA LI RIE D B TR IR 81
2016 - 2017 2016 - 2017
20165 201745 201645 201745
100% .
88%  87% Gk
199 51% 83% 84% 25
18
7 16 16
14
1
Directors  Managers  Juniors Total Directors  Managers  Juniors Total
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d. Labor Standards d. IR
The Group's policies on staff recruitment and treatment are in AEEERBEEE TS THBEE R
strict compliance with relevant national and local regulations, BIRBER MM TN ERBRENT B8
including the PRC Labor Law, Law on the Protection of Minors, R ARAFBIKEENE) - CRVF ARE
and Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor. The FEOYRKEINFERETHTEY AEBKKE
Staff Manual of the Group clearly states that child labor shall ITFMFPEERIAREEREL  B#H
not be allowed. Relevant departments also regularly monitors EBFINE E AR E E AR E A R EUE
employment-related information and data, to ensure there is LRI EEAETISEHEE -
no child labor or forced labor.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not discover any use RIMEIA » NEBKRERBREMET KL
of child labor or forced labor. RHBEEVIER
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Supply Chain Management

The Group is well aware that effective management of
procurement is the most critical part to maintaining quality and
safety of product and service. To systemize the complicated
procurement process of pharmaceutical imports, the Group has
formulated procurement business standardised documents for
various pharmaceutical products. Such documents are based on
the Management Regulation on the Procurement of Imported
Products with reference to the regulations of special authorities
such as the PRC General Administration of Customs, Entry-Exit
Inspection and Quarantine Bureau, and China Food and Drug
Administration (CFDA). In addition to the internal management
system, the Group has established a good relationship with
our suppliers and kept liaison, exchanging news on the market
updates and sales data of products for coordinating and
adjusting procurement and sales plans accordingly.

Prior to establishing any partnership with suppliers or its sales
agents, the following factors are considered by the Group:

1. Product compliance

2. Brand influence

3. Strategic synergy with the Group’s development
4. Prospects in the Chinese market

5. Other potential risks

The Group appraises its existing suppliers according to the
Appraisal Measures for Suppliers, to ensure that suppliers
cooperating with the Group can maintain quality. Currently,
the Group’s suppliers are mainly small and medium-sized
pharmaceutical manufacturers from overseas countries,
including Austria, Sweden and Cyprus.

To protect information privacy of the suppliers, the Group
continually enhances its information security, establishing
targeted security principals for the business network, office
network, servers, cyber computer room management and
controlled visits. The staff members are required to sign an
agreement to avoid the leak of information.
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f.

40

Product Responsibility

As the Group is a member of the pharmaceutical industry
and the products are prescription drugs, the product quality
is crucial and potential risks must be properly controlled.
To ensure product quality and safety, the Group strictly
complies with all national laws and regulations on product
safety, including the PRC Pharmaceutical Administration Law
and its Implementation Regulations, Good Supply Practice
for Pharmaceutical Products and its Implementation Rules.
Besides, the Group has a systematic system for managing
pharmaceutical quality in place with active cooperation with
the regulators in their inspections. The Group proactively
provides internal training on the knowledge of safety and
quality and promotes the policies, systems and concepts of
quality management.

In respect of hardware, the Group has always been storing
pharmaceutical products with advanced technology and
facilities and operates a product mix composed of quality
pharmaceutical imports with an outstanding track record
of safety. The Group also has cooperated with creditworthy
collaborating parties of long-term partnership on the provision
of warehousing and logistics services. Apart from that, the
Group has built its cold chain storage facility with advanced
temperature-control technology and a precision system
of quality control in Shuangliu District, Chengdu, Sichuan
Province, which can ensure a more stable quality control for
the Group.

The Group has a comprehensive system for process of quality
inspection and product recall, establishes and strictly executes
the policies on the Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical
Product Procurement, the Management Regulation on
Pharmaceutical Product Reception, the Management
Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product Acceptance, and the
Management Regulation on Pharmaceutical Product Return,
ensuring that all product quality and safety operation program
has taken place in standard processes. In addition to this, we
have formulated relevant management document such as
Distributor Management Measures, Sales Management System
and the Code of Conduct on Customer Servicing to protect the
security and privacy of its customer information.

The Group has no corresponding measures for advertising
and labeling, because all of its products are prescription drugs
which are prohibited from advertising according to national
regulations, and because CFDA issues the permit on product
packaging and specifications.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not recall any
product due to product quality issues, nor did it receive any
complaints about its products and services. All products are
examined by the Institute for Drug Control after their customs
clearance, with an examination report of pharmaceutical
imports issued.

Anti-corruption

The Group has been advocating honesty, integrity and
responsibility as its ethical concepts, opposes any form of
corrupt behavior, such as bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. The Group has formulated its Anticorruption and
Anti-bribery Management Regulations and its Staff Code of
Conduct against Corruption and Bribery, according to national,
regulations and the actual industrial condition. The Group also
requires its staff and partners to sign an Anti-corruption and
Anti-bribery Letter of Undertaking on a mutual agreed basis,
included anti-corruption into the staff induction system, and
set up a comprehensive reporting procedure for reporting
non-compliance behaviors and protecting whistleblower. The
Group's internal audit department will also conduct audits to
executives in sales who are departing.

During the Reporting Period, no case of corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering occurred within the Group,
with confirmation that it strictly complied with relevant
laws and regulations such as the PRC Criminal Law and its
Judicial Interpretation, Criminal Procedure law and its Judicial
Interpretation, Interpretation on Several Issues Concerning the
Applicable Laws to Handling Criminal Cases of Embezzlement
and Bribery, and Anti-Money Laundering Law.

Community investment

Community charities and public welfare have always been one
of the considerations for business development of the Group.
The Group attaches great importance to each stakeholder who
is affected by its business scope. In order to maintain good
relationship, we keep close liaison with them, which includes
participating in community activities to ensure the business
development of the Group has fully taken into account the
interests of the community.
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Establishing charity funds

In March 2017, the Group has established Sinco
Charitable Foundation (BR}Zz5% £ %) named after
the enterprise in Chengdu Charity Federation. The fund
aims at providing assistance to the impoverished such
that they can receive better medical treatment; improving
the unhealthy living habit and health conditions of low-
income patients; enhancing publicity of health knowledge
and changing outdated concept of getting medical
treatment. Currently, the”Taurolite charity assistance
project” under Sinco Charitable Foundation has been
launched to provide economic subsides for patients who
purchase medicine.

Co-organizing college competitions

In November 2017, the Group has participated in the
7th “Sinopharm Engineering — East Fulong Cup” (%2 T
T2 — & #EM), a pharmaceutical engineering and design
competition for college students in the PRC, to leverage
the Group's experience in pharmaceutical engineering
to deepen mentors’ understanding on the competitions
subject, enhance guidance ability of pharmaceutical
engineering of young teachers, and guarantee the quality
of the entries.

Organizing staff activities

While respecting and safeguarding the rights and
interests of staff members, the Group is also attentive
to their physical and mental health, and committed to
creating a beneficial work environment and a harmonious
work atmosphere for them. To do that, the Group has
hosted diverse activities, such as annual gatherings,
birthday parties and sports activities, during which staff
members can relax and balance work with life. This also
makes the Group a more cohesive community.

7. Environmental

Emissions

The Group operates all relevant business in strict compliance
with the PRC Environmental Protection Law, Law on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, Law on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, and Law on

a.
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the Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental
Noise, as well as other laws and requirements on environmental
protection to ensure that the Group did not cause any negative
impact to the environment.
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However, as the Group is mainly engaged in the MPCM, it
will not cause significant impact to the environment. The
Group also consumes no direct combustion fuel other than
transportation, therefore it does not produce any hazardous
wastes. Instead, the emissions mainly comprise the exhaust
of all vehicles of the Group, the greenhouse gases indirectly
emitted during its operation, and such non-hazardous wastes as
scrap paper, plastics and house refuse.

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted various
control measures to reduce emissions and the results were
more significant, whether on exhaust of automotive or
electricity consumption.

The Group always encourages employees to travel in a quicker
and greener way, such as taking subway when the destination
is easily accessible or sharing bikes when destination is
close. In addition, benefitted from rapid development of the
transportation road network in the PRC, staff is more willing
to implement the energy conservation direction of the Group,
hence the exhaust of vehicles reduced by approximately 20%
during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group redesigned the
management system of business trip, which requires staff to
plan Itinerary of business trip ahead for avoiding low efficiency.
Meanwhile, by assigning sales staff based on the regions, sales
staff can basically visit clients within their assigned region by
bullet train. The aforesaid measures successfully reduced over
30% of CO, emissions of the Group which arose from flight
travel.

The rise in consumption of scrap paper is mainly attributable to
business development and increase in the number of clients,
resulting in increase in consumption of paper for administrative
purposes. At the same time, product information was
newly printed in the Reporting Period for introduction while
there was no such material printing in the previous year,
therefore, the paper consumption of the Group has increased
significantly. In view of this, the Group will review the policies
of paper consumption for administrative purposes in the
future, and assess the feasibility of replacing the current way
with electronic files to save more paper and pose no burden on
the environment.
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Major Emissions Indicators

Increase/

Year (Decrease)

Emissions of Vehicle Exhaust Unit 2017 2016 %
NO, Emissions Kilogram 1486 2035 (27.0)
S0, Emissions Kilogram ~ 0.17 0.23 (26.1)
Particles Emissions Kilogram ~ 13.8 181 (23.9)
Increase/

Year (Decrease)

C0, Emissions Unit 2017 2016 %

From Electricity Consumption
From Flights

Tonne 1069  109.2 2.1)
Tonne 93.0 1455 (36.1)
Tonne 8.8 5.7 54.4
Tonne 0.59 0.66 (10.6)
209.29  261.06 (19.8)

From Processing Scrap Paper
From Processing Sewage
Total Tonne

Resource Consumption

The paperless office and low-carbon travel activities promoted
by the Group during the Reporting Period received keen
support from the staff and were successful. Therefore, apart
from the activities previously held, the Group will also take
more measures to support environmental protection in the
future.

Energy and Water Consumption Indicators

T EHNDIENZ
#/
£ (&)
BHBERHN B 2017 2016 %
AELINOJHEME T 1486 2035 (27.0)
ZEECo)ERE TR 017 023 (26.1)
BRAPVHERE Tr 138 181 (238)
#/
f ()

“ERCO)RER Bfr 2017 2016 %

AEEE B 1069 1092 (1)
FURBES B 930 1455 (36.1)
RERRES B 88 57 544
RRTKEE B 059 066 (106)
Bt B 209.29 261.06 (19.8)

b. BREH
ARG S B HETT MY AR A KA
HITASSHE TERSSMSEKY -
FTARREGR T @REETUNENEE 2
S TRETREE Z M SIFIRIR ©

RENR R K E R IBFEREIR

Increase/ %/

Year (Decrease) £ (B)

Energy consumption Unit 2017 2016 % RS B 2017 2016 %

Total Electricity Consumption Kilowatt Per Hour  110,563.3  112,741.7 (19 BHEEE TRE 1105633 1127417 (19

Total Gasoline Consumption Kilogram 11,4740  15,769.6 272 RERERE TR 114740 157696  (27.2)

Total Water Consumption Cubic Meter 15534 13932 15 ke UAK 15534 13932 115
¢. The Environment and Natural Resources ¢ BRERRARER

The business of the Group does not cause any material impact

on the environment and natural resources.

AEEMRENEFBETSHRERK
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI HEREBHRE (E)

The guideline to the content &R & 5|

Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General
Disclosures

BRIE - HERERBREESIE Pages/Notes
ER—RIFEE Description it BEfEE
A. Environmental
A RIR
Aspect A1: Emissions
JEEAT © HEY)
General Disclosures A1 (@) The policies; and ERBEEEERED N - MK 43-44
— M Ko s - AEREEEE
(b) compliance with relevant laws and ¥ EAFHY -
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer (@ BX: Rk
relating to air and greenhouse gas (b) BTHBEITABEAZE
emissions, discharges into water and land, BIABRE AR AR
and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste
KPI A1.1  The types of emissions and respective BER Y ELE M AR R B EUE 44
A SRS emissions data
A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and BERBEHENEREE 44
intensity
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and MEAEEREYEE RTE The Group did not
intensity produce hazardous
wastes
TEEREES
BEEREY
A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and FREABEEFEYHEE RTE The Group did
intensity not produce
non-hazardous
wastes
rEEREES
A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate HEAUBEPEE B S i L P15 Ak 43
emissions and results achieved e
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- HWERIBAENEEREFZYHI  The Group did not

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved

& RRELENEIERPTISK
R

produce any waste
REBERBESE
EAIREED
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued) %9 @ €8 9(235
o
RIE - HERERRSE (E) =
Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General
Disclosures
R HEREARREIESIE Pages/Notes
Bk —REE Description ik BHEY B
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
JEEAZ - EFEH
General Disclosures A2 Policies on the efficient use of resources, BRERER(BIEER - KK 44
— AR ER including energy, water and other raw HbEM R Bk
materials

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption 1ZREREEIS I E K Sk AL 44
RSB BUEE by type in total and intensity REBERERTE

A2.2  Water consumption in total and intensity  {@FEXKE RERE 44

A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency i BE R (5 AR AR e T 8 R FTIS AR 44

initiatives and results achieved £
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue  #W#lUKEUER/KR LA ATME  The Group did not

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved

A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished

products

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 - IRFRXAEIR

General Disclosure A3 Policies on minimising the issuer’s

—RIEE significant impact on the environment
and natural resources

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts

RS IA BUEIE of activities on the environment and

natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them

7 - AR R ET &I R PR

have any issue

in sourcing water
that is fit for
purpose.
REEREEM
SKERE A KR B 78
The Group did not
use any packaging

K mAABEMHNEE

material

AEEREFER

B EME

IR ITAERIBERRAAERE 44
RERNZERIBUR

WG R B HIRIBERRAER 44

WEARERERREREMRY
BHHTH)
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

BRI HEREBHRE (E)

Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General

Disclosures
B HEREABREESE Pages/Notes
HE—RIEE Description it BE
B. Social
B.ALE
Employment and Labour Practices
EREBIER
Aspect B1: Employment
[EEB] : EE
General Disclosure B1 (a) The policies; and BREH L ERE - BERER - 34-36
— M TIERE - REA - TEHRE %
(b) compliance with relevant laws and oAb« RIEHR R E A S M AE A
regulations that have a significant R
impact on the issuer
(@ BX: Rk
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working (b) BTFEHBEITABERTE
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, HAEREEE AR
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
JEEB2 - EFHEZT S
General Disclosure B2 (@) The policies; and EHRRHELTE TIERERRER 36
—MAREE BREREMEESEN
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant (@) BoR: &
impact on the issuer
(b) BEFHBTAGEAZE
relating to providing a safe working HAERE AR ARG
environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards
Aspect B3: Development and Training
[BEIB3 : &R EIEH
General Disclosure B3  Policies on improving employees’ BRRARERITIERENA 37-38
—MH = knowledge and skills for discharging LR REMRE o i IE

2017 4 - ERAREEERAR AR

duties at work. Description of training
activities.

& o
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Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General

Disclosures
R HEREARREIESIE Pages/Notes
Bk —REE Description ik BHEY B
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
JEEB4 - 5T A
General Disclosure B4 (a) The policies; and BRPH IEE ToloaH4 T ¢ 38
—RRE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and (@) BE &

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer (b) BTHETABEATE
O RRRBE R RARY)

relating to preventing child and forced

labour
Operating Practices
EES
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
JEEBS < HIERETE
General Disclosure B5 Policies on managing environmental and &Rt fE G RIS Rt & AR IL 39
— MR R social risks of the supply chain %
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BEB6 : BB T
General Disclosure B6 (a) The policies; and B ARHAERMREHE 40-41
— MR ER FREZ2 - FEE - SEIILEE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and B IA R T EH -
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer (@ X R

relating to health and safety, advertising, (b) BESFHEBEITAEGEAFE
labelling and privacy matters relating HIAE AR AR 51

to products and services provided and

methods of redress
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BRI HEREBHRE (E)

Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting
Guide Aspects and General

Disclosures
R HEREARREIESIE Pages/Notes
HR—RIRE Description i BHE fEE
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
JEEB7 - KBS
General Disclosure B7 () The policies; and BRAPT IEBAE ~ R - BGF ML 41
—MAREE B

(d) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant (0 BER: &
impact on the issuer
(d) BTFHEITABERTE

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and B EE ARG

money laundering
Aspect BS: Community Investment
JEEIBS : {ERE
General Disclosure B8  Policies on community engagement to BB ER T REITAL 41-42
—R understand the needs of the communities &+ [RE EFFEIR B 2755

where the issuer operates and to ensure  Eh&E Eit B RHEEE

its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution HrEREE 42
SR SRS

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR
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Director and Senior Management
EENSREEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Z%##), aged 52, founder of our Group, has
been the Chairman and executive Director of our Group since April 2011.
He is also the Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is mainly
responsible for overall strategic planning and operation management. Mr.
Huang has served as the director of Risun, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, and all the subsidiaries of the Company except
for Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd., Chengdu
Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd., Sichuan Sinco
Biological Technology Co., Ltd., Qingdao Ruichi pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.,
Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd. and Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co.,
Ltd.. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Huang was the director and chairman
of Vast Surplus since November 2004 up until now, mainly responsible
for strategic planning and operation of Vast Surplus. After Vast Surplus
transferred its exclusive distribution rights to service Taurolite, TAD and
Esafosfina to Hong Kong Prosperous Group Holding Limited in March
2015, it has no other business operations. Since then, Mr. Huang has been
devoting a majority of his time to our Group’s business. In addition, Mr.
Huang was also a founder, chief executive officer and director of Chengdu
Ruixin Biopharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd (“Ruixin”) from February
2004 to April 2011. The principal business of Ruixin was consultation in
the pharmaceuticals industry, which included testing and sampling new
pharmaceutical products, providing marketing and promotion services
as well as assisting in obtaining regulatory approvals and registrations
for pharmaceutical products. However, the pharmaceutical products
serviced by Ruixin were mainly traditional Chinese medicine extracts,
which are different from those of the pharmaceutical products serviced
by the Group. Ruixin was not engaged in any business which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business. Furthermore, Ruixin was jointly owned as to 50% by Mr. Huang
and 50% by Mr. Chen Xiangui (an independent third party who is not
considered a connected person or associate of a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules (“Independent Third Party”)) and was
never a member of the Group which was readily disposable for corporate
reorganisation solely based on Mr. Huang's decision. Eventually, as the
management of Ruixin began to focus on the business development of
the Group since Mr. Huang incorporated Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals in
2011, Ruixin did not have any business or operations, which subsequently
led to the passing of the shareholders’ resolutions on 22 September 2015
to voluntarily dissolve Ruixin.

Mr. Huang worked in the Drug Inspection Institute of Guangyuan (&
JUTH 2252 FT) from July 1988 to July 2004 as pharmacist in charge
of drug quality research as well as collection and delivery of drug safety
information.
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Director and Senior Management (Continued)

ESNSREEE (&)

Mr. Huang had been a director of Beijing Guangtong Shidai Medical
Consulting Company Limited (“Beijing Guangtong”) (1t R EiRAF 5
B BRI AR A R]), a limited liability company established in the PRC
in 2003, since its establishment up until 2004. Prior to the revocation
of its business license, Beijing Guangtong was owned as to 50%, 40%
and 10% by Mr. Huang, Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao respectively. Both
Mr. You Fei and Mr. You Hao are Independent Third Parties. Mr. Huang
confirmed that at the time of the revocation of the business license
of Beijing Guangtong, he was not involved in the daily operation of
Beijing Guangtong as he was focusing on the development of Ruixin’s
business. To the best of Mr. Huang's knowledge, Beijing Guangtong
had ceased attending annual inspection (%F42) as it had no business
operation, resulting in its business license being revoked subsequently on
26 November 2004. Mr. Huang confirmed that there is no wrongful act
on his part leading to the revocation and he is not aware of any actual or
potential claim that has been or will be made against him as a result of
the revocation.

Mr. Huang obtained a master’s degree in EMBA from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University (/8238 AE) in December 2008 and graduated from the
MBA programme of Renmin University (78 A R AKZ2) in August 2002.
He also obtained a bachelor’s degree in botanical resources (24 18 ¥4 R)
from Jilin Agriculture University (F 2% KE2) in July 1988. Mr. Huang
has been studying in the Université Paris — Dauphine under the Executive
Doctorate in Business Administration (EDBA) program since December
2013.

Ms. Zhang Zhijie (GRE&#E), aged 49, joined our Group in November
2013 and is an executive Director and vice president for technics of our
Company, mainly responsible for new pharmaceuticals research and
development. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Zhang successively served as
a postdoctoral fellow of the research center, an associate chief physician
(starting from July 2013) and a research fellow (starting from December
2014) of the pharmacognosy study center of the Institute of Chinese
Medical Sciences from July 2008 up until now, and was responsible
for the coordination and management of the daily researches of the
pharmaceutical research centre and was also involved in the process of
setting up the pharmaceuticals research centre. Although Ms. Zhang is
concurrently working at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, she is
heavily involved in the Group’s research and development programme. Ms.
Zhang is leading the Group’s Sinco | programme as a research fellow for
the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences.

2017 4 - ERAREEERAR AR
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ESNSREEE (&)

The Directors are of the view that Ms. Zhang has been and will continue
to be able to allocate sufficient time to fulfill her duties and responsibilities
as an executive Director based on the following reasons: (i) as Ms. Zhang
is responsible for overseeing the Group’s new pharmaceuticals research
and development, her position as a researcher at the Institute of Chinese
Medical Sciences, in particular her involvement in the development of
Sinco |, is directly related to her role as an executive Director. By working as
a researcher at the Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences, Ms. Zhang is, at
the same time, also fulfilling her responsibilities as an executive Director;
(i) to enable Ms. Zhang to allocate sufficient time to carry out her duties
as an executive Director, the Group has assigned four personnel to
assist Ms. Zhang with the development of Sinco | with respect to clinical
trials, patent applications and manufacturing processes, including two
researchers each with over 15 years of experience in the production and
quality control of pharmaceuticals, a researcher with a master’s degree
in clinical pharmacology specialising in the design and implementation
of pharmaceutical testing and a researcher with a bachelor’s degree in
business administration focusing on pharmaceutical laws who is in charge
of drafting reports and registration-related matters; and (i) Ms. Zhang has
been diligently attending the Board meetings held by the Company since
she was appointed as an executive Director. In the event that Ms. Zhang
is unable to attend a Board meeting in person, according to the Articles
of Association, she is able to participate in such Board meeting by way of
telephone conference.

Ms. Zhang served as the general manager of Zhaoye Bio-Technology
Co., Ltd JRELEMEIHE AR AR, a subsidiary of Nanjing Xiaoying
Pharmaceuticals Group Co., Ltd (/& BEEEB AR T]), from July
2006 to October 2008, mainly responsible for new drug research and
development. She has also engaged in national research projects, which
involved contributing to the testing of mineral medicine and its quality
control. Ms. Zhang was the co-editor of two books and published several
research papers in national and international academic journals. Ms.
Zhang has also been awarded Second Prize for Science and Technology by
the China Association of Chinese Medicine in November 2005. Ms. Zhang
obtained her Ph.D degree in June 2006 from Nanjing University of Chinese
Medicine (Fg AR 882K £2). Ms. Zhang worked as a pharmacist in Henan
Provincial Pingdingshan City Chinese Medicine Hospital (i fgg& F I8 LT
FREEBT) from September 1990 to August 2003. She obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Chinese medicine from Henan University of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (A Eg A B8 £2F5) in July 1990.
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chow Siu Lui (88/)\Z), aged 58, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 1 February 2016.

Mr. Chow currently holds or once held directorship in the following
companies listed on the HKSE:

BYIEHITES
WNREERE 585 BEEZATARRRBIUIENITE
F B2016F 2 1 HFEAR -

WAL EENBEEUTEBBRA LT AR
BERT

Name of listed company HKEX stock code Position held Period

EHRE AR EBRZROAS B HE

Universal Medical Financial & Technical ~ HKEX: 2666 Independent non-executive director ~ From June 2015 to present
Advisory Services Company Limited — Z&/&3 507 : 2666 B IENITES 2015F6 AES

REBESRERMEAREBERAR

Independent non-executive director

Independent non-executive director

Independent non-executive director

Independent non-executive director

Independent non-executive director

Independent non-executive director

Fullshare Holdings Limited HKEX: 607
LRERER AT BRI 607 BN IFMITES
Kong Shum Union Property HKEX: 8181

Management (Holding) Limited BEERFFT 8181 BYERITES
BRI EMEEE(ER)ERAR
NWS Holdings Limited HKEX: 659
elEEEAR LR BB HPT  659 B FMITESR
Shanghai Dazhong Public Utilities HKEX: 1635

(Group) Co., Ltd. BERHFT 1635 BYERITES
FERBABEE(EER)RNHBRAF
Futong Technology Development HKEX: 465

Holdings Limited BERHFT 465 BYEHITES
SRR ERERERAT
China Everbright Greentech Limited HKEX: 1257
PEX AR ERRER AT BRERZFP 1257 BN IFMITES

From December 2013 to present
2013512 ES

From February 2015 to October
2015
201552 HZ2015% 10

From March 2012 to June 2012
201263 A%20129F 68

From April 2016 to present

2016F4 A ES

From December 2016 to present
2016F12AES

From May 2017 to present
20175755

Mr. Chow has a wealth of experience in fund raising and IPO activities in

BAERBENEERER ARBEE B R G K

Hong Kong and accounting & financial areas. Mr. Chow was in service
with KPMG Hong Kong for about 28 years and was admitted as one of
its partners in 1995. He was then mainly responsible for providing advice
in pre-IPO group structuring and fund raising in local and overseas stock
exchanges. He is currently a partner of VMS Group. He is a core member
of the Investment Committee and responsible for VMS Group private
equities investment, including due diligence of all investment projects.

Mr. Chow is currently a member of the investment strategy task force of

the HKICS and also the former chairman of the Mainland Development
Strategies Advisory Panel of the HKICPA.

2017 4 - ERAREEERAR AR
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ESNSREEE (&)

Apart from being an independent non-executive Director of the Company,
Mr. Chow is now an independent non-executive director of China
Everbright Greentech Limited (whose shares are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1257)), Universal Medical Financial
& Technical Advisory Services Company Limited (whose shares are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2666)), Fullshare
Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 607)), NWS Holdings Limited (whose shares are
listed on the main board of Stock Exchange (stock code: 659)), Futong
Technology Development Holdings Limited (whose shares are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 465)) and Shanghai
Dazhong Public Utilities (Group) Co., Ltd. (whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1635)), respectively. He
acted as an independent non-executive director of Kong Shum Union
Property Management (Holding) Limited (whose shares are listed on the
growth enterprise market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8181)) from
February 2015 to October 2015.

Mr. Chow was awarded a Professional Diploma in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as Hong Kong
Polytechnic), Hong Kong in November 1983. By profession, he became a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in July 1991,
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries both in October 2009, and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in December 1993.

Mr. Wang Qing (JX#8), aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016, mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. Mr.
Wang worked at Dalian University of Technology (EIE T AZ8) from
April 2003 up until now. Mr. Wang served as an associate professor when
he first joined Dalian University of Technology and was later promoted
to professor in November 2010 and he was responsible for research and
development and teaching. From July 1986 to September 1997, Mr.
Wang worked as a pharmacist supervisor at Liaoning Provincial Medical
Company Limited (GEZ4 24 AR = F A 7)), where he was responsible
for drugs inspection and evaluation and participated in research and
technical renovation.

Mr. Wang obtained his Ph.D. in treatment therapy system at Kyushu
Institute of Technology (JLMN T X&) in Japan in March 2003 and
a master’s degree in treatment therapy system at Kyushu Institute of
Technology in March 2000. Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree
in medicinal plants at Jilin Agricultural University (F#EZE KAL) in July
1986.
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Mr. Liu Wenfang (21323), aged 80, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 1 February 2016, mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to the
Board. Prior to joining our Group, from February 2011 to present, he
serves as an independent director of China Biologic Products, Inc. (Z=H4
B ER A7), a company listed on NASDAQ (stock code: CBPO). From
2007 to 2011, Mr. Liu Wengfang worked as a chief consultant at Sichuan
Yuanda Shuyang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd (PU)I32 K &S 22N AR
‘A a]) where he was responsible for research and promoting new theories
and applications in the medical field. From 2000 to 2007, he served as
the chief engineer and director of Hualan Biological Engineering Inc. (2
BAEYM IR AR AR]) where he was responsible for supervising
the manufacturing process and quality management. From May 1998
to May 1999, he served as the chief engineer of Guiyang Qianfeng Bio
Manufacture Company (Ef5% &4 YR MAREEAF]) where he was
responsible for research and developing new products. From 1978 to
1988, he worked in the Institute of Blood Transfusion, Chinese Academy
of Medical Sciences (P& 2R S P MAFFLFAT) and was engaged
in the segregation and purification of blood and protein and research,
development and quality analysis of blood products.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in biochemistry from the
Shenyang Institute of Applied Ecology, Chinese Academy of Sciences
(Fh BRI 2B B (5 E B HE BEFF 95 FT) (formerly known as the Institute of
Forestry and Soil Sciences) in August 1963.

Mr. Chen David Yu (BR=), aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 19 January 2018. Mr. Chen has
been an executive director and the vice chairman of the board of directors
of Hengxing Gold Holding Company Limited, a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) with stock code of 2303 (“Hengxing”), since March 2013
and the president of Hengxing since September 2013. Mr. Chen founded
Huashan Capital, a venture investment company in China. He is also a
venture partner at a private equity firm Tripod Capital. Mr. Chen began his
career in sales marketing positions with international media companies.
He has over 15 years of experience in venture investment and corporate
development. Mr. Chen was an independent director of Zhonglu Co., Ltd.
(PR BBRAF]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600818) from May 2009 to November 2014. He has been a
non-executive Chairman of Range Resources Ltd, a company dual listed on
the Australian Securities Exchange (stock code: RRS) and the AIM market
of the London Stock Exchange (stock code: RRL), from December 2014
to November 2016. He is also a board member of numerous technology
venture companies.

Mr. Chen obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree from Monash
University in Australia in 1992.
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Director and Senior Management (Continued)

ESNSREEE (&)

Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng (EE #), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 19 January 2018.
Mr. Wong has more than 15 years of international investment experience
specializing in alternative investments. Mr. Wong has been serving as
chief executive officer since August 2017 and as executive director since
September 2017 at Pine Capital Group Ltd., a company listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange (stock code: ADJ.SI) (“PCG"). Mr. Wong has
been serving on the board of directors of both Advance Capital Partners
Asset Management Private Limited, a regulated fund management
company regulated by the Monetary Authority of Singapore since April
2017 and Pine Asia Asset Management Inc. (“Pine Asia”), an asset
management company regulated by the Financial Supervisory Service of
South Korea, since April 2015. Mr. Wong served as co-chief executive
officer of One Asia Investment Partners, an asset and wealth management
firm headquartered in Singapore, from October 2016 to January 2017. He
also served as chairman and chief executive officer of Shanghai Tongjia
Asset Management in the People’s Republic of China from May 2014 to
January 2017.

Mr. Wong graduated from St. Ignatius of Loyola Secondary School with
Ontario Secondary School Diploma in June 1997.

We have entered into service agreements with each of our executive
Directors and have issued letters of appointment to each of our
independent non-executive Directors. The term of each of the service
agreements and letters of appointment with our Directors is three years.

Senior Management

Mr. Wu Qingjiang (& &35I), aged 55, joined our Group in February
2017 and was appointed as the Co-chief Executive Officer of the
Company in May 2017. Mr. Wu is mainly responsible for the Group’s
overall business development, operation and management. Mr. Wu has
over 30 years of experience in managing production and quality control
of pharmaceutical products and is familiar with the regulations about
drug administration and new drug research and development. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Wu served as an executive director in Chengdu
Haizhong Investment Co., Ltd.* (FX&BEFILE AR R]) from 2014 to
February 2017, held the position of chairman and general manager in
Sichuan Weiao Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (PU)I| 4R EZEHER 2 A]) and
Sichuan Weiao Sanjiang Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (FIJ1| 45 = )T $U %z
ABRA7]) from 1997 to 2015, worked as an executive deputy general
manager in Sichuan Jinhui Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (I0)|| & B2 AR
A a]) from 1995 to 1996, and successively served as a technician, section
manager, and deputy factory manager in Sichuan Jisheng Pharmaceutical
Factory (PU)1|7%& g5 4= 84Z288) from 1983 to 1995. Mr. Wu graduated
from the Department of Pharmacy of Chengdu University of Traditional
Chinese Medicine in July 1983 and obtained a bachelor degree in Chinese
medicine.
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Mr. Hu Haibin (#&8), aged 45, joined our Group in April 2011
and was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Company in
December 2017, mainly responsible for marketing management of the
Group. Mr. Hu has over 10 years of experience in sales management.
Before joining the Group, from June 2004 to March 2011, Mr. Hu served
as a sales manager of Ruixin and was mainly responsible for its sales
management. From August 1995 to May 2004, Mr. Hu served as a project
manager of Sichuan Yuan Zhou Information Technology Company Limited
(7)1 #=M1E B RHEBBR A F)), responsible for project management. Mr.
Hu obtained an associate degree in economic information and computer
application from Sichuan Economic Management Cadre Institute (79)11%&
KBS IR ERERT) in July 1995.

Mr. Li Yifan (Z—1f), aged 38, joined our Group in February 2015 and
was appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company in June
2015, mainly responsible for the overall financial strategic planning,
internal control system management, and investment and financing
management of the Group. Mr. Li is also the director of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Before joining the Company,
Mr. Li worked for China Polymetallic Mining Limited, a company listed
on the HKSE (stock code: 2133) from March 2011 to January 2015, and
last served as the deputy chief financial officer responsible for financial
accounting and management. From February 2005 to February 2011,
Mr. Li successively served as an auditor of the Shenzhen branch and a
senior auditor of the Chengdu branch of Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP.
Mr. Li obtained a Master of Science in Finance degree from the University
of Stirling in January 2005 and graduated from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (FERIBA AL A£2) in July 2002 with a bachelor’s
degree in management. Mr. Li has been a Chinese Certified Public
Accountant since January 2012.

Ms. Wu Yue (R3H), aged 38, joined our Group in December 2014 and
currently holds the position of Vice President for public affairs of the
Group. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Wu served as a business manager
of Baxter Healthcare Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (B EERARE S (L
&) AR A A) for Southwest China and Northwest China from October
2014 to December 2014, responsible for business management. She
served as a regional business manager of Jin Bao Shen Nursing Products
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (&% B#2E R (1/8) AR 2AA]) from June 2013 to
September 2014, mainly responsible for business management. Ms. Wu
served as a senior regional business manager of Becton Dickinson Medical
Devices (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (EBHhE&ERM (L)8) AR AA]) from
November 2008 to June 2013. Ms. Wu worked for Pfizer Investment Co.,
Ltd. where she served as a regional manager of its commercial and retail
business department from September 2004 to October 2008. Ms. Wu
received a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Southwestern University
of Finance and Economics (TR B4 AE2) in June 2004,
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Mr. Lei Shifeng (Ft$£), aged 51, joined our Group in July 2016 as
the general manager of Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology
Co., Ltd. and was appointed as the general manager of Sichuan Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. in October 2016, mainly responsible for
its overall operation and management. Mr. Lei is also the director of
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd., Chengdu Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd., Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. and Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co.,
Ltd.. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lei worked for Sichuan Derentang
Traditional Chinese Medicine Technology Co., Ltd. (P9)I|18{= & %R}
B AR A7), mainly responsible for procurement, manufacturing
and quality. From May 2001 to May 2007, he worked as the vice general
manager of Chengdu Zhongxin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (BXEB-RHT
BEAHR N A]), mainly responsible for the overall business operation
and management. From July 1988 to April 2001, he was a manager
at Chengdu Traditional Chinese Medicine Company (&R AR B&41 A
7)), mainly responsible for the procurement and business operation and
management of its branches. Mr. Lei earned his bachelor’s degree from
Jilin Agricultural University (57 &2 KE2) in July 1988 and the Certified
Pharmacist qualification in January 2000.

Mr. Peng Fei (327), aged 44, joined our Group in April 2011 and was
appointed as the Financial Controller of our Company in June 2015,
mainly responsible for overall finance management. Mr. Peng is also
the director of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. and Qingdao
Ruichi Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Peng
served as the finance manager of Ruixin from September 2004 to
March 2011, responsible for finance management. Mr. Peng also served
as the finance staff of the Third Construction Section of the Factory
Construction Engineering Bureau, the Ministry of Railway and China
Railway Construction Engineering Group North Project Co., Ltd. ({518 3F5E
BIRRE=TER PEHEIEEIL T TEERAR]) from September
1991 to August 2004, mainly responsible for the company’s finance
management. Mr. Peng obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (FaFg B 48K E£) in
December 2006. He also obtained the qualification of Registered Tax
Agent issued by Sichuan Provincial Human Resources Department (/9)]
A ANZEEE) in April 2009, and obtained the license as a senior accountant
from Chengdu Reform Leading Group of Professional Titles in April 2013.
He has been a Chinese Certified Public Accountant since December 2016.
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Company Secretary

Ms. Ko Wing Yu (S 58%4F), was appointed as the joint company secretary
of the Company since April 2015 and has over 10 years of experience of
management in the pharmaceuticals industry. Before joining the Group,
from January 2013 to April 2015, Ms. Ko served as the general manager
of Vast Surplus, and was mainly responsible for its daily operation. From
August 2011 to January 2013, Ms. Ko worked at Industrial Securities
(HK) Financial Holdings Limited (¥ (H/8) € @iEik AR AF)]) as an
administrative manager. From October 2002 to August 2011, Ms. Ko
served as the deputy general manager of Vital Group Holdings Limited (#
BEEPTEIAFR AR (currently known as CGN Mining Company Limited
whose shares are listed on the HKSE (Stock Code: 1164)). From November
1994 to December 2000, Ms. Ko served as the general manager of Yinli
Foreign Investors Golf Club Company Limited (8|41 S B K BRAE 4450
BBRAR]), and was mainly responsible for building the golf course and
its daily management and planning. Ms. Ko holds a bachelor’s degree in
Accountancy.

Ms. Wong Sau Ping (E%E3¥) is a joint company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Wong is a senior manager of the Listing Services
Department of TMF Hong Kong Limited. She has over 15 years of
experience in the company secretarial field. Ms. Wong had worked for one
of the four largest international audit firms, where she served large and
well-known companies listed on the HKSE. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration and a master degree in professional
accounting and information system. She is an associate member of the
HKICS and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom.
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Report of the Directors

ESEWE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive marketing,
promotion and channel management service for imported pharmaceutical
products and medical devices in China. The analysis of the revenue of the
principal activities of the Group during the Reporting Period is set out in
the note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review and Results

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period is
provided in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 29. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Reporting Period using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial Highlights
on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income on page 98 of this annual report.

Final Dividends
The Directors do not recommend a final dividend for the Reporting Period.

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
21 May 2018 to Friday, 25 May 2018, both days inclusive, in order to
determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to attend
the forthcoming AGM to be held on Friday, 25 May 2018. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 18 May 2018.

Financial Summary

A summary of the Group’s results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EESRE(E)

Use of Net Proceeds from Listing

Net proceeds from the listing of the Company (after deducting
underwriting fee and relevant expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$260.0 million (equivalent to approximately RMB217.2 million).
As of 31 December 2017, RMB217.2 million had been utilised in the
manner consistent with the allocation set out in the Prospectus and the

EHERIEFEARE

RAT EWASRIEFEENReEBe kAR
)4 AE260.08BET(HEERNARK21728
° FA2017F12A318 » AR¥E2172HETE
HRIBRESRA QT HEA2016512 530 22017
F6AI6HEMEEMSRERRNRAEMAN N

87r)

Company’s announcements dated 30 December 2016 and 16 June 2017  &f -
regarding the changes in use of proceeds.
Utilised
Proposed use Proceeds as of
Uses of proceeds 31 December 2017
R-ZB—+tHF
+=HA=+—H
Jickes FISFEZZEAR B AMBREA
RMB million RMB million
AREBET AREBET
(i)  Acquisition of (i UeEE
— Sales and distribution rights of new — ¥NEE M IE S RIS i E
products
— businesses in the pharmaceutical BT EEEENEER
industry with proprietary intellectual FIERE M
property or growth potential 39.5 39.5
(i) Repaying a portion of the outstanding (i) (EEZFD B &K AIEERHA
loans and bank trade credits due from EEREEEFRRBITESHE
the Group which were guaranteed by B
Mr. Huang 60.7 60.7
(iii) Developing cold chain facility and (i) 7EP)IERRT BRI
research and development base located 7t B B 2 L 4
in Sichuan Shuangliu Bonded Area
(iv) Deposits for obtaining letters of credit  (iv) E{S=HENLS 43.3 433
(v) Repaying letters of credit at maturity (v) EECRINHEAE 48.3 48.3
(vi) Repaying bank loans (vi) ERIEITER 8.0 8.0
(viiy Working capital and other general (viip HEESREM—REERSE
corporate purposes 17.4 17.4
Total BET 217.2 217.2
Major Customers and Suppliers FEEFRMEER

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s products purchased from the
largest supplier, accounted for 75.0% (2016: 62.0%) of total products
purchased, and products purchased from five largest suppliers accounted
for 96.5% (2016: 100.0%) of our total products purchased.

For the Reporting Period, the Group'’s sales to largest customer accounted
for 11.4% (2016: 18.6%) of our revenue, and sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 25.2% (2016: 44.3%) of our total revenue.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EESRE(E)

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Subsidiaries
Details of the major subsidiaries of the Company as of 31 December 2017
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the Reporting
Period are set out on page 101 in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Cayman
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Associations,
amounted to approximately RMB255.0 million (as at 31 December 2016:
RMB271.0 million).

Bank and other Loans
Particulars of bank and other loans of the Group as at 31 December 2017
are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the Shareholders, the Company had
adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) which
became effective on 10 March 2016 (the “Listing Date”).

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive
or reward for Eligible Participants (defined below) for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries.
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Eligible participants

The Board may subject to and in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, at its discretion
grant options to any full-time or part-time employees, including
executives, senior management or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, its subsidiaries or any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interest, and to any company wholly owned by one or
more persons belonging to any of the above classes of participants
who, in the absolute discretion of the Board has contributed or will
contribute to the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants”).

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years from 1 February 2016, after which time no further option
will be granted.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 160,000,000, representing 9.91% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted to any participant
(including exercised and outstanding options) under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the total Shares in issue.

Offer period and amount payable for options

An option may be accepted by an Eligible Participant within 15
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A nominal
consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the grant
of option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

The period during which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
shall be one year after the date on which the option is granted. The
Board may in its absolute discretion impose further restrictions on
the exercise of the option.
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8. Period within which the Share must be taken up
Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions
on the exercise of the option, any option may be exercised one year
after the date on which the options is granted and shall expire on
the earlier of the last day of (i) a six year period from the date of
such grant and (i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

9 Basis of determining the subscription price
The price per Share at which a Grantee may subscribe for Shares
upon exercise of an option (the “Exercise Price”) shall be a price
determined by the Board but in any event shall be at least the

highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's daily
quotations sheets on the date on which the option is granted;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the HKSE's
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of that option; and

(iii)  the nominal value of the Shares.

The summary of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme that

were still outstanding as at the date of this report are as follows:
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Number of Options
BREHE
On On
1 January 31 December
2017 2017 Exercise
Grantee's name R20175 Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed R20175 Price® Date of grant Exercise period®
RRARE 1A1A Bit ik B %% 12A31A fkEe RUHAH fIRAHe
Mr. Hao Jinghui® 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000 - HK$0.568 21 September 2016 21 September 2017-
RBEAED 05687 201659A218 20 September 2022
20178982182
202269A208
Employees in 25,000,000 - - - 7,150,0004 17,850,000 HK$0.568 21 September 2016 21 September 2017-
aggregate 056837 2016897218 20 September 2022
ERAL 21759A218%
202269A208
Total 30,000,000 - - - 12,150,000 17,850,000
a9
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Notes:

(1

@)

)

Mr. Hao Jinghui is the former Co-chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Pursuant to Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules, the grant of options to the Co-
chief Executive Officer has been approved by the independent non-executive
Directors. Save as disclosed above, none of the Grantees is a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder or an associate of any of them, 5,000,000
share options granted to Mr. Hao Jinghui lapsed in July 2017, two months
after his resignation as the Co-chief Executive Officer.

The exercise price represents not less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of HK$0.540 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets on 21
September 2016, being the date of such grant; (ii) the average closing price
of HK$0.568 per Share as stated in the HKSE's daily quotation sheets for
five business days immediately preceding the date of such grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Share at HK$0.0001 per Share.

40% of the options granted shall be vested and can be exercised upon one
year commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2017) and a
continuous employment of one year. Another 30% of the options granted,
shall be vested and can be exercised upon two years commencing the date
of such grant (i.e. 21 September 2018) and a continuous employment of two
years. The remaining 30% of the options granted, shall be vested and can
be exercised upon three years commencing the date of such grant (i.e. 21
September 2019) and a continuous employment of three years.

7,150,000 share options granted to several employees lapsed two months
after their cessation of employment.

Equity-linked Agreements
Other than the following agreements, no equity-linked agreements

that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the

Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the Reporting Period:

M

)

the Share Option Scheme of the Company as disclosed above;

the subscription agreement dated 24 June 2017 and entered into
between the Company as issuer, Harvest Progress International
Limited as investor and Mr. Huang Xiangbin as guarantee, the
bond instrument dated 30 June 2017 by the Company, and
the supplemental deed dated 12 October 2017 in relation to
the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$40,000,000 as disclosed in the note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements; and

the Subscription Agreement and the Amended and Restated
Subscription Agreement as disclosed in the note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Directors
The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin (Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Siu Lui

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Chen David Yu (appointed with effect from 19 January 2018)

Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng (appointed with effect from 19 January 2018)

In accordance with article 16.02 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Chen
David Yu and Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng shall hold office only until the
forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Zhang
Zhijie and Mr. Wang Qing will retire and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming AGM are set
out in the circular to the Shareholders.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies
Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 50 to 59 of this annual report.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received a confirmation of independence pursuant to
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and the Company considers such Directors to be independent in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Service Contracts and Letter of
Appointments

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company on 2 June 2015 for a term of three years commencing from
the same date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party to the other.

Mr. Chow Siu Lui, Mr. Wang Qing and Mr. Liu Wenfang each has signed
a letter of appointment on 1 February 2016 for an initial term of three
years commencing from the same date. Mr. Chen David Yu and Mr. Philip
Wong Yee Teng each has signed a letter of appointment on 19 January
2018 for an initial term of three years commencing from the same date,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party to the other.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements
or Contracts of Significance

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had, directly or indirectly, a material
interest subsisted during or at the end of the Reporting Period.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

None of the Directors or their respective associates had engaged in
or had any interest in any business which competes or may compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the
Reporting Period.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Emolument Policy

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had an aggregate of 112 full-
time employees. The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.
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Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest paid
individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Changes to Information in Respect of Directors
Up to the date of this report, there were no changes to information which
are required to be disclosed and had been disclosed by Directors pursuant
to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, no rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
were granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by them. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate during the
Reporting Period.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

and Short Position in Shares, Underlying Shares

and Debentures

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the
register maintained by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(i) Interestin Shares or Underlying Shares of the (i) RZARQTRMDRAEBERDOER
Company
Number of Approximate
Shares or percentage of
Name of Director and underlying shareholding
chief executive Nature of Interest Shares® interest®
BB R e
EERFETHABHR ERtE HERGHE® BHEIe
Mr. Huang®@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 (L) 65.01%
=RAD REPEEE
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(if)

Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2)  Mr. Huang was the settlor of a trust in which UBS Trustees (B.V.1.)
Limited was the trustee and held the entire interest in Fullwealth
Holdings Limited, which in turn held the entire beneficial interest in
Risun. Mr. Huang was deemed to be interested in the 1,050,000,000
Shares beneficially held by Risun.

(3)  The calculation is based on the total number of 1,615,220,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 Decemebr 2017.

Interest in associated corporation

(1) FEILEZBALREOAHENGEE

2 EBEEEAR—BREFANMERTA - EFUBS
Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited & Z E st M X T A I
# B Fullwealth Holdings Limited 2 &F # & -
il Fullwealth Holdings Limited #§ A& Risun & #F
EmEm &8 EERBIERBRsunE &= I
1,050,000,000/% & 15 #1245

B) ZENLNBEMN2017F12A31BLH
1,615,220,0000% 2 31T D Mt E/SH ©

(i) MAEESEE M

Approximate

Name of Amount of percentage of
associated registered shareholding
Name of Director corporation Nature of Interest share capital interest
BEEuE HELEER EEitE EEfREeE RESNEIL
Ms. Zhang Zhijie Sichuan Sinco Biological Interest in controlled corporation® RMB300,000 30%
Technology Co., Ltd.
R W) ERIREMRBERRAR NI EEERY AR #300,0007T
Note: Hist -

(1) Sichuan Sinco Biological Technology Co., Ltd. was owned as to 30%
by Beijing Kang Tai Yun Dao Technology Co., Ltd., which was in turn
owned as to 60% by Ms. Zhang Zhijie.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was
required to be recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

(i) Interestin the Company
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(i) MAREHER

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Name Nature of Interest Number of Shares® interest®
8 REHEME BRGEEN  REBAEILO
Risun@ Beneficial owner 1,050,000,000 (L) 65.01%
Risun@ ExEAA
Fullwealth Holdings Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 1,050,000,000 (L) 65.01%
Fullwealth Holdings Limited® REEZERER
UBS Trustees (B.V.I.) Limited® Trustee 1,050,000,000 (L) 65.01%
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited® XEEA
Wisen Group Holding Limited Beneficial owner 90,000,000 (L) 5.57%
("Wisen")®
Wisen Group Holding Limited EEAA
(Twisen])®
Mr. Liu Sichuan® Interest in controlled corporation 90,000,000 (L) 5.57%
BN K AES REEEE R R
Harvest Progress International Limited (“Harvest” ) Person having a security interest in shares 1,049,990,000 (L) 65.01%
Harvest Progress International Limited([Harvest)®  RBROHHEFEEAL
Li Han Fa ("Mr. Li")@ Interest in controlled corporation 1,049,990,000 (L) 65.01%
FER([FEE] REEEE R
Hong Pei Hua (“Ms. Hong")® Interest of a substantial shareholder’s 1,049,990,000 (L) 65.01%

HE (Rt ])e

child under 18 or spouse

TERRAN 18R T A BiER

FRILEZBATREOMSENER -

Notes: Higt -
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. 1)
(2)  Mr. Huang was the settlor of a trust in which UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) (2)

Limited was the trustee and held the entire interest in Fullwealth
Holdings Limited, which in turn held the entire beneficial interest in
Risun. Mr. Huang was deemed to be interested in the 1,050,000,000
Shares beneficially held by Risun.
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(3)  Wisen was owned as to 100% by Mr. Liu Sichuan; therefore Mr. Liu
Sichuan was deemed to be interested in the 90,000,000 Shares held by
Wisen.

(4)  Harvest had security interest in 1,049,990,000 Shares. Harvest was
owned as to 100% by Mr. Li and Mr. Li was deemed to be interested in
the 1,049,990,000 Shares. Ms. Hong was the spouse of Mr. Li and was

therefore deemed to be interested in the 1,049,990,000 Shares.

The calculation is based on the total number of 1,615,220,000 Shares
in issue as at 31 December 2017.

(©)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors
were not aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Reporting
Period.

Connected Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules, the guarantee provided by Mr. Huang
as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements is a
connected transaction exempted from announcement, reporting, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above connected transaction.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the Cayman Companies Law where the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Tax Relief and Exemption
The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.
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Non-Competition Undertaking

On 1 February 2016, Mr. Huang and Risun, our controlling shareholders
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of our Company (for
itself and on behalf of all members of the Group), pursuant to which they
have undertaken, subject to and except as mentioned in the Prospectus,
that they, would not, and would procure that none of their associates
(other than any member of our Group) will directly or indirectly, engage in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,
with our Group’s business as described in the Prospectus in the PRC or
any other places in which our Group carries on business.

The Company has received confirmations from the controlling
shareholders confirming their compliance with the deed of non-
competition during the Reporting Period.

Permitted Indemnity Provision
As at the date of this report, all Directors of the Company were covered
under the liability insurance purchased by the Company for its Directors.

Charitable Donations
During the Reporting Period, the Group made charitable donations of
RMB100,000.

Subsequent Events
The material subsequent events are disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Disclosure Under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances resulting in the
responsibility of disclosure under Rule 13.20 of the Listing Rules regarding
the provision of advance by the Company to an entity.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements Pursuant to
Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules

On 27 June 2017, the Company issued unlisted bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to RMB104,150,000)
(the "June 2017 Bonds"). The maturity date of the June 2017 Bonds falls
24 months after the date of issue. The interest rate is 10% per annum
and the interest should be payable quarterly. With effect from 12 October
2017, the interest rate was amended to 15% per annum with interest
payable quarterly and the maturity date was amended to 27 March 2018.
On 27 March 2018, the maturity date of the June 2017 Bonds has been
further amended to 30 April 2018.
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On 30 June 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to RMB34,717,000).
The maturity date of the convertible bonds falls 24 months after the date
of issue. The interest rate is 8% per annum and the interest should be
payable quarterly. With effect from 18 December 2017, all rights and
obligations of the holder of the convertible bonds and the Company in
relation to the conversion rights were deleted. Meanwhile, the maturity
date was amended to 30 March 2018 and the interest rate was amended
to 15% per annum with interest payable quarterly. Those bonds are
referred to as the "December 2017 Bonds”. On 27 March 2018, the
maturity date of the December 2017 Bonds has been further amended to
30 April 2018.

The Company’s obligations under the above bonds are unconditionally
guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and secured by (i) 1,049,990 shares of the Company held by
Risun, a controlling shareholder of the Company; and (ii) the entire issued
share capital of Risun held by Fullwealth Holdings Limited, a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25 June 2017,
27 June 2017, 30 June 2017, 13 October 2017 and 17 January 2018 for
further details.

Code of Conduct Regarding Directors’ Securities
Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
with the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with
such code of conduct throughout the Reporting Period.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 73 to 90 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage of public float approved
by the HKSE and permitted under the Listing Rules, are held by the public
at all times as of the date of this report.
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Audit Committee

The principal duties of the audit committee of the Company (”Audit
Committee”) include the review and supervision of the Group’s financial
reporting system, the preparation of financial statements and internal
control procedures. It also acts as an important link between the Board
and the external auditor in matters within the scope of the group audit.

The annual results for the Reporting Period of the Company have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditor
Ernst & Young has acted as auditor of the Company for the Reporting
Period.

Ernst & Young shall retire in the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Huang Xiangbin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions under the CG Code except for the deviation from code
provision A.2.1 as mentioned in the paragraph headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” of this report. The key corporate governance
principles and practices of the Company are outlined later in this
report. The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

The Board

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, oversees
the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and performance.
The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established four Board committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”) and the internal control and corporate
governance committee (the “Internal Control and Corporate Governance
Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith and in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and have acted in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance in respect of

legal action against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be reviewed
on an annual basis.
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Board Composition
As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two executive
Directors and five independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Huang Xiangbin
Ms. Zhang Zhijie

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Siu Lui

Mr. Wang Qing

Mr. Liu Wenfang

Mr. Chen David Yu (appointed with effect from 19 January 2018)

Mr. Philip Wong Yee Teng (appointed with effect from 19 January 2018)

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements under rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company believes that the diversity of Board members will be
immensely beneficial for the enhancement of the Company’s performance.
Therefore, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy to ensure
that the Company will, when determining the composition of the Board,
consider Board diversity in terms of, among other things, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and knowledge.
The Board diversity policy sets out the approach towards achieving
diversity on the Board. Pursuant to the Board diversity policy, all Board
appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of
the Board.

As each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Company
considers all of them to be independent parties.
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Save as disclosed in the Directors’ biographies set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any other
Director and chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and
professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose the
number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations
and other significant commitments as well as the identity and the time
involved to the issuer, Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments
and any subsequent change to the Company in a timely manner.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her responsibilities
under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations. The Company also
arranges regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
company secretary of the Company has from time to time updated and
provided written training materials relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a Director.

2017 4 - ERAREEERAR AR

BAFRIEFRERERE | —HRAEFEEMHK
BESN MEBEERINEAEENEIETRARSR
EEARER(BRERS - X5 - KRIEMEAK
1HRERRR) -

MEEE(REBIFNTER)IREZSRRIRE
TRNEEXBLER  MBELBEERRE  EESUK
BRGEE - BIAFATESTREBMAETZEZES  H
MEeEe REZEGLAMENREEELEZE

& o
=

HAEBCEEARTARXEXEEREREEAR
NESABECBANEEMEE A MEEHBR
RENF O RR/BETARANEE - ERXERELE
AARBRBERENHB I EREMEE -

ABEFEERSR

BN R EEFHERHAFNABIEN R EFR - UARE
WRIREFFRD T RANRAIHEE MEH A RIRFREN
BUAD] AR - RAIRERFAERNERE - ARFIN
RESTHEHEE - AEAB LTRRREAM AR
HRREREEERENSNERREENRITE
B BRENEEHREHEAMARRERE - ARKA
BHRHEN  UWEREFSERELSEFETHER

= o

ARFEBEEFSEFEERER  WEEREHNA
BN ERRE o RRRIMRRIME TR B MIEHEHE
EMAE  BRERBENEmZIM -

77



Corporate Governance Report (Continued) %9 @ €8
o O
CREARE (H) >

According to the information provided by the Directors, a summary BB EEMIEHNER - EERNEE2017E12 731
of training received by the Directors throughout the year ended 31 B IFEEMESHIEIHENT :
December 2017 is as follows:

Nature of Continuous
Professional
Development Programmes

Name of Director BEEfE HESERRITENNE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Huang Xiangbin SRS A, C&D
Ms. Zhang Zhijie SRR A, B, C&D
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHRTEE
Mr. Chow Siu Lui 2 EmeE A,B,C&D
Mr. Wang Qing AR A A/ B C&D
Mr. Liu Wenfang BN e A C&D
Notes: Mzt
A:  Attending seminars and/or meetings and/or forums and/or briefings A HEEER/SNEER SRR ERE
B:  Giving talks in the seminars and/or meetings and/or forums B: REBER /S&HK HwmE ER

C:  Attending training relevant to the Company’s business conducted by lawyers C: ([HFERRRMEN RN T EBBERE

D:  Reading materials relevant to corporate governance, director’s duties and D : BIEABGEER  ESFEBELBE - EWRARE
responsibilities, listing rules and other relevant ordinances 1 ABRE ARG Rt
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Under the organization structure of the Company, Mr. Huang was
the Chairman of the Board and the co-chief executive officer of the
Company (“Co-CEQ"). With Mr. Huang's extensive experience in the
pharmaceutical industry, the Board considered that vesting the roles of
chairman and co-chief executive officer in the same person is beneficial
to the business prospects and management of the Group. The check and
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprises experienced and high
calibre individuals. Accordingly, the Board believes that this arrangement
will not impact on the balance of power and authorizations between the
Board and the management of the Company.

Mr. Wu Qing Jiang (“Mr. Wu") has been appointed as the Co-CEO with
effect from 5 May 2017 to replace Mr. Hao Jinghui, who resigned as
the Co-CEO due to other business commitments with effect from 5 May
2017. Both Mr. Huang and Mr. Wu are responsible for the Group's overall
business development, operation and management.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has signed a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from their respective date
of appointment subject to termination as provided in the service contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from their respective date of appointment.

The appointments of executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are subject to the provisions of retirement and rotation of
Directors under the Articles of Association and the applicable Listing Rules.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not determinable by

the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-appointment
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at every AGM and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or
as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself for re-election by
Shareholders at the next general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-election
of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company intends to hold Board meetings regularly, at least four times
a year, and at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all
Directors with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda
for a regular meeting.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committee members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and are adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the joint company secretary
with copies circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail about the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by Directors.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, five Board meetings and two
general meetings were held and the attendance record of each Director is
set out in the table below:

REZE2017F12A318IFE - KBTRAAESS
DEAMMABRRAD - SESHHECSIHIIOT

Attended/
Eligible to attend
the general meeting(s)

Attended/
Eligible to attend
the Board meeting(s)

BHE THEESS BHE AHE
Directors 2= SERY BERAEXE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin |EW A 3/5 12
Ms. Zhang Zhijie SRR T 5/5 2/2
Mr. Chow Siu Lui FNERAE 5/5 172
Mr. Wang Qing AR AL 4/5 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang BSOS E 4/5 2/2

Model Code for Securities Transactions EHERZWIZEST A

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
dealings in the Company’s securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. Directors could have recourse to
seek independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company's expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into
by the management.
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Corporate Governance Function and Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee

The Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee comprises
three members, namely Mr. Chow Siu Lui (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang
and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are independent non-executive Directors.

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of the Directors and delegated the corporate governance
duties to the Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee
which includes, without limitation:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the
Company;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the Company (the “Corporate
Governance Report”); and

(f)  to oversee the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and ensure that a review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company and its subsidiaries has been conducted at least
annually and report to Shareholders that it has done so in its
Corporate Governance Report. The review shall cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The written terms of reference of the Internal Control and Corporate
Governance Committee are available on the websites of the HKSE and the
Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, one Internal Control and
Corporate Governance Committee was held and the attendance records
are set out below:

HE2017F12A31HIEFE » £8BIT—ARIPZH
MiEEAZEEEE  DFELEHTAT -

Attendance/

Number of meeting

Directors B HERE EERE
Mr. Chow Siu Lui 2T ”n
Mr. Wang Qing pasli=pitas 7
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35t 11

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. Chow Siu
Lui (chairman), Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr. Wang Qing, all of them are
independent non-executive Directors.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include but not limited to the
following:

(@) to review the relationship with the Auditor by reference to the work
performed by the Auditor, their fees and terms of engagement,
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Auditor;

to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s staff
responsible for the accounting and financial reporting function,
compliance officer or the Auditor before submission to the Board;
and

to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures, including the adequacy of the
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on
the websites of the HKSE and the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, two Audit Committee
Meetings were held and the attendance records of the Audit Committee
Meeting are set out below:

84

Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors B HERE EERE
Mr. Chow Siu Lui BNt 2/2
Mr. Wang Qing ERE A 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35t 2/2

FMEES

FHERRE=HAME  BEMBEIFATEST
W SE (%) REISCS AU R — L HITEEREMH
Tt

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, including two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Wang Qing (chairman),
Mr. Liu Wenfang and one executive Director namely Ms. Zhang Zhijie.

FHZEeNTIERERBRETRNATER

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include but not

limited to the following:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration;

2. toreview and approve performance-based remuneration with
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board;

3. to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. These include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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7. toreview and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two Remuneration Committee
Meetings were held and the attendance records are set out below:

D
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Attendance/

Number of meeting(s)

Directors 2= HERE EERE
Mr. Wang Qing pasli-pirtas 2/2
Ms. Zhang Zhijie SREGE L 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 E 2/2

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members, including
one executive Director namely Mr. Huang Xiangbin (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Wenfang and Mr.
Chow Siu Lui.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

1. to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. toidentify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection

of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. toassess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
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BE/RA

4.  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment 4. SHEFSEHEFEEREE(LEEFERT

or reappointment of Directors and the succession planning for BRI EmMEESREERER &
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive officer;
and

5. to review the Board diversity policy. 5. BHNEZEEELIIEUR -

The Nomination Committee assesses the candidate or incumbent on  E£ZE@ERZIBEREHSREANTITEE - 81F
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and @18 - &8 - KEE R ABITRE LB S e AR
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of IR @ BEAEHEES RIESE S RE - 124
the Nomination Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. The & 8@y EZEEESHE D HRE BT RADFE
written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on 3k »

the websites of the HKSE and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, two Nomination Committee ~ #ZE2017F 12 A31BILFEE - HBITRAIERLREE

Meetings were held and the attendance records are set out below: e HELEEIT
Attendance/
Number of meeting
Directors BEx HERYEERE
Mr. Huang Xiangbin WA 2/2
Mr. Chow Siu Lui LT AE 2/2
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35 1/2
Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management EERSREEENHH

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the ~EFHMFBHNANF WS M BRAM TS - 2R
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. The remuneration BB (REMNBEEHR A FHRBS6E58H) REE
of senior management, whose biographies are set out on pages 56 to 58 2017412 A31 B L FERFHEEZI AT -

of this annual report, for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out

below:
Number of individual
Remuneration band (RMB) FimEE (AR A
Below 1,000,000 1,000,000~ 7
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial Reporting in
Respect of Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on Company’s performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the Auditor regarding their reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 93 to 97 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining an adequate risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard Shareholder investments and Company assets and reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

The Group’s internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major tasks of the internal
audit department are reviewing the financial condition and internal
control of the Company and conducting comprehensive audits of all
branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and considered
the risk management and internal control system to be effective and
adequate.
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Main Characteristics of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Group's risk management framework is structured in the following
“Three Lines of Defense” model as a guide:
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Board of Directors
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Internal Control and Corporate Governance Committee
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Audit Committee
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2nd Line of Defense:
Risk Management and Internal Control Team
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3rd Line of Defense:
Internal Audit Department

BETAR © NEPEZALFT

i)

1st Line of Defense:
All Business Departments

—BIhAE © B RGP

The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the Internal Control and Corporate
Governance Committee (the “ICCG Committee”) and the Audit
Committee. Such review encompasses all major control aspects, including
finance, operation and compliance. Such risk management and internal
control systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board has completed its annual review of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2017, with all the above major control aspects covered. The Board has
considered the operation of risk management and internal control systems
to be generally adequate and effective, with no significant areas brought
to its attention during the year.
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The ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee assist the Board to fulfill
its responsibilities of risk management and internal control, ensuring
adequate resources, staff qualifications and experience, staff training
courses and related budgets for the Group in executing its accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions. The committees also
considers the important investigation results concerning the matters of
risk management and internal control, reports to and raise suggestions to
the Board.

1st Line of Defense

By preparing a risk list with risk control responsibility allocated to
departments, the Group is able to deliver risk management across all
the business departments. These departments continuously review and
assess the risks that may have a potential impact on corporate operation,
and effectively execute the process control for business according to the
respective functions and departmental regulations, all in a bid to raise the
efficiency in risk management.

2nd Line of Defense

Composed of nominated department managers and senior management,
the Risk Management and Internal Control Team organizes business
departments to identify, assess and manage the risks that may have a
potential impact on corporate operation, and ensures the implementation
of proper measures and internal control regulations to address major
risks. In the meantime, the Team monitors risks and takes measures to
reduce the risks in daily operation, provides timely response to and follow
up of the investigation results of internal control from the Internal Audit
Department, and confirms to the Board as to the effectiveness of such risk
management and internal control systems.

3rd Line of Defense

The Internal Audit Department executes the actual review procedure, to
collect the evidence on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, and report the review results
to the ICCG Committee. In addition, the Department raises suggestions
to the Board and the management, to address major institutional
inadequacies or any control loopholes spotted.

External auditors further complement the third line of defense in respect

of the major risk and control issues on financial reporting procedures that
are spotted during the review process.
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Procedures Applied to Identifying, Assessing and

Managing Major Risks

—  Determining the scope: preparing uniform risk terms and risk
assessment standards for the Group

- Risk identification: identifying the risks that may have a potential
impact on corporate operation

—  Risk assessment: considering risks in respect of the degree of
importance of their impact on business and their occurrence, and
assessing the risks identified

—  Risk management: establishing risk management policies and
internal control procedures, to avert or reduce risks

- Risk monitoring and reporting: continuously monitoring relevant
risks, ensuring proper procedures of internal control, and regularly
reporting to the management and the Board on the results of risk
monitoring

Function of Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The Department’s main
responsibilities are to review the financial conditions and internal control
of the Company and all its subsidiaries, communicate with department
managers and senior management on the identified problems,
noncompliance issues and inadequacies, and jointly prepare rectification
and improvement solutions. The Department also follows such rectification
results, and reports to the ICCG Committee and the Audit Committee.

Information Disclosure System

The Group has formulated its information disclosure system, to ensure the
identification and confidentiality of potential inside information until it is
disclosed according to the Listing Rules in a consistent and timely manner.
The procedures for publishing and processing inside information include:

o Business department managers as the people in charge of
information reporting;

e  Senior management as the people in charge of the information
confidentiality of their respective business segments;

e The Board as the party in charge of information disclosure; and

e  The Investor Relations Department and the Board Secretary as
the parties responsible for managing information disclosure, the
reporting, audit and disclosure of information which needs public
announcement, and archiving and keeping such information
disclosure documents and announcements.
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Auditor’'s Remuneration

The remuneration for the audit services provided by the Auditor to the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2017 was approximately
RMB2,700,000. There is no remuneration paid to the Auditor in respect of
non-audit services.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ko Wing Yu (“Ms. Ko"”), one of our joint company secretaries of the
Company, is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, as well as
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
also engages Ms. Wong Sau Ping (“Ms. Wong"), senior manager of TMF
Hong Kong Limited (a global corporate service provider), as another joint
company secretary to assist Ms. Ko to discharge her duties as company
secretary of the Company. The primary corporate contact person at the
Company is Ms. Ko, one of the joint company secretaries of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, Ms. Ko and Ms. Wong have
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Company considers that effective communication with the
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and strategies. The
Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective
disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

The AGM provides opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor will also attend the AGM to answer
guestions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a shareholders’
communication policy which aims at establishing a two-way relationship
and communication between the Company and the Shareholders and
maintains a website of the Company at www.sinco-pharm.com, where
up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices and
other information are available for public access.
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Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution will
be proposed for each issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the HKSE in a timely manner after each
general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company according to the Articles of Association. Any
one or more members holding as at date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or any one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the headquarters
of the Company at E5-1805, Global Centre, No. 1700, North section of
Tianfu Avenue, High-Tech Zone, Chengdu, Sichuan, PRC. (email address:
sinco-pharm@sinco-pharm.com).

Change in Constitutional Documents

The amended and restated Memorandum and Articles of Association have
been adopted on 1 February 2016 and with effect from the Listing Date.
And there were no significant changes in the Memorandum and Articles
of Association of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A2 EN RS

To the shareholders of Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 98 to 189, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
For the matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR ()

Key audit matter (Continued)

REETEE(E)

Key audit matter
BRENER
Impairment assessment of goodwill

B R (BRI

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETETNNMTEERREENSHE

In accordance with IFRSs, the Group is required to annually
test the amount of goodwill for impairment. This annual
impairment test was significant to our audit because the cost
of goodwill of RMB62,662,000 as of 31 December 2017
which consisted of goodwill of RMB35,526,000 arising from
the acquisition of Xizang Linzhi Ziguang Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., goodwill of RMB23,106,000 arising from the acquisition
of Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. and goodwill
of RMB4,030,000 arising from the acquisition of Chengdu
Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. was material to the financial
statements. In addition, management’s impairment assessment
process is complex and highly judgemental and is based on
assumptions, specially budgeted gross margins, growth rates
and the discount rate, which are affected by expected future
market or economic conditions. Management performed
the impairment assessment based on the discounted cash
flow model on the related cash-generating units (“CGUs").
A total impairment loss on goodwill of RMB38,961,000 was
recognised during the year.

The Group's disclosures about impairment assessment of
goodwill are included in note 3 headed “SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES” and note 15 headed “GOODWILL"
to the financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included:

e We obtained an understanding of goodwill impairment
assessment process to identify the risks of material
misstatement affecting the goodwill;

e We tested the impairment model selected for CGUs, by
understanding the model methodology, comparing that
to our understanding of the CGUs and checking the
mathematical accuracy;

e We accessed the cash flow projection by comparing
key market-derived estimates, including selling prices
of pharmaceutical products and discount rate, against
external data;

e We assessed the cash flow projection by comparing sales
volume and other key items to historical results, current
market conditions and management’s business strategy.
We held discussions with senior management, reviewed
documentation such as new contracts and the historical
order book; and

e We involved the valuation specialist to assist in evaluating
the key valuation parameters such as the discount rate,
terminal growth rate applied and the valuation model used
in the impairment assessment models, which are based
on complex assumptions used in the estimation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR ()

Other information included in the Annual Report
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

96

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
B AR ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Fung Terence Ho.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
reEEkEMEERER

Year ended 31 December 2017  #,E2017412 8318 ILEE

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FosE AR®T T AREFT
REVENUE Uk 4 806,723 858,894
Cost of sales S E AN (713,190) (754,326)
Gross profit EF 93,533 104,568
Other income and gains HABYA Rz 5 4,211 8,533
Selling and distribution expenses $HE AR (95,919) (11,470)
Administrative expenses TR (57,256) (62,419)
Impairment loss on intangible assets B AEREER 13 (27,531) =
Impairment loss on goodwill BEREEE 15 (38,961) =
Other expenses Hibfx (39,244) (4,459)
Finance costs EUE %N 6 (33,701) (9,187)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ADRR,(EE) 7 (194,868) 25,566
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisTiE e, (Fi%) 9 8,971 (7,229)
PROFIT/(LOSS) AND TOTAL FrER, (BB R
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ 2HEBA (BB BE
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (185,897) 18,337
Attributable to: AR AL -
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZEPN (185,896) 19,367
Non-controlling interests FEFERR S (1) (1,030)
(185,897) 18,337
Earnings/(loss) per share attributable to SAR)EBARIEE AL
ordinary equity holders of the parent: GRAF,(BE)
— Basic and diluted (RMB) —HEAREEARET) 11 (0.115) 0.013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BBIR R

31 December 2017 2017412H31H

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE ARET T AREETFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NE&E 12 191,767 103,712
Intangible assets mAEE 13 223 32,454
Payments in advance TEf SRR 14 40,736 99,858
Goodwill S 15 23,701 58,632
Deposit i) 16 3,000 3,000
Deferred tax assets BIEFIEE & 17 9,159 -
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 268,586 297,656
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 291,193 137,602
Trade and bills receivables B S EWEIE R EREE 19 37,106 19,868
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEfTEUE - k& R H M EIKZIA 16 146,683 67,115
Financial assets at fair value PEABIEEERATE
through profit or loss AR EREE
classified as held for trading 25 - 146
Available-for-sale investment A HERE 20 - 111,261
Pledged bank balances EEHIRITE 21 52,941 52,029
Cash and cash equivalents e RBEEEEY 21 22,710 102,050
Total current assets REEELE 550,633 490,071
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables Z S ENRIE 22 22,522 45,832
Advances from customers ZEE 41,503 45,665
Other payables HAb e FRIE 23 70,029 61,734
Interest-bearing bank and other loans HEBRITREMER 24 275,815 165,000
Tax payable FERT 1A 2,546 12,221
Financial liabilities at fair value PERFBIFEERA T EF AR
through profit or loss classified neRAE
as held for trading 25 218 -
Bonds &% 26 133,856 =
Total current liabilities REBEBERE 546,489 330,452
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREBEEEE 4,144 159,619
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERE 272,730 457,275
Net assets EEFE 272,730 457,275

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued) @ a3
HABBIRRE () =

31 December 2017 20174128318

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s ARBFT AR¥ETT
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to BRAREEAEGER
owners of the parent
Issued capital BEEITARA 27 130 130
Reserves B 29 273,505 458,049
273,635 458,179
Non-controlling interests IR (905) (904)
Total equity R MAEE 272,730 457,275
Huang Xiangbin Zhang Zhijie
EEW REA
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

>< 424

A\ moin

n‘/_.]_\ *ﬂh

Year ended 31 December 2017

BB

HE2017F12831 0 ILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAREEAEL
Changes  Retained
Share Share innon-  earnings/ Non-
Issued  premium Contributed  Statutory option  controlling (accumulated controlling Total
capital  account surplus  reserve  reserve interests losses) Total interests equity
HER REEA/
BRARA ROEEER EERH LERE BRERE BE29 (RHER) ai FeRER  ERSE
RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(note 27)  (note 29(@)  (note 29(b))  (note 29(c)  (note 29(d)
(Wizr) (Wioe) (Wzzam) (W#2290) (H229)
At 1 January 2016 #20165151A 9% 14,533 4,250 11,286 = 4,014 159,250 193428 126 193,554
Profit and total comprehensive FREHR2EUAES
income for the year - - - - - - 19,367 19,367 (1,030) 18337
Interim 2016 dividend declared ER0165R SRS - (4,555) - - - - - (4,555) - (4,555)
Transfer from retained earnings BRRERF - - - 3219 - - (3,219) - - -
Issue of new shares BIERG 35 271762 - - - - - 271,797 - 271797
Share issue expenses RS ES - (288%3) = = = = - (288%3) - (288%)3)
Equity-settled share option arrangements i & BRI L
(note 28) (Hi28) = = = = 995 - - 995 - 995
At 31 December 2016 and R2016512A318 R
1 January 2017 20171518 130 258,887* 4,250* 14,505* 995+ 4,014 175398* 458,179 (904) 457,275
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZEFRER
loss for the year - - - - - - (185896  (185,396) (1) (185,897)
Transfer from retained earnings BERRART - - - 24 - - (24) - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements R BRI ZH
(note 28) (Hiit28) - - - - 1352 - - 1352 - 1352
At31 December 2017 H2017%5 128318 130 25B887F 4250 14520¢ 2347+ 401 (10520 273635 (905) 272,730
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREREEFAUEKAKRTOGARBARE

RMB273,505,000 (2016: RMB458,049,000) in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

2017 4 - ARREEZRARAA)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
meBRemaRk

Year ended 31 December 2017 & Z20175F12A31BILFE

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FisE AR¥T T AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&EBFEHERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BREANEF, (B518) (194,868) 25,566
Adjustments for: AT EIEFHE -
Depreciation nE 7 10,660 5,554
Amortisation of intangible assets EREESH 7 4,700 5,112
Unrealised foreign exchange gain REIFE H e (221) (11,962)
Losses/(gains) on disposal of items of property, BREWE BEMREBEEMD
plant and equipment 18 () 7 (128) 1,435
Equity-settled share option expense PR E B AR 2 28 1,352 995
Interest income on an available-for-sale investment & B ATt &35 & 69 5 S U A 5 (2,024) (1,810)
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial assets at fair ~ DiEAFHEE SR AFE
value through profit or loss classified as held SPARRNeREEATE
for trading BB/ () 25 218 (146)
Finance costs BTG AR 6 33,701 9,187
Bank interest income RITFSUA 5 (1,155) (655)
Inventory provision FERE 18 25,213 -
Intangible asset provision B AERE 13 27,531 -
Goodwill provision EHERE 15 38,961 =
(56,060) 33,276
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills receivables %%Vé”ﬁl RPN EREE
w2/ () (17,238) 69,069
Increase in prepayments, ?Eiﬁ%(lﬁ - 7e REAMEK
deposits and other receivables IR (71,444) (29,648)
Increase in inventories FEREM (178,804) (47,864)
Increase in payments in advance TEAS IR AN (8,581) =
Decrease in trade payables B 5 R (23,310) (57,086)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hib e ZEEm,/ Cusd) 10,167 (3,937)
Increase/(decrease) in advances from customers BEEIEN, ) (4,162) 10,131
Cash used in operations 2EMARS (349,432) (26,059)
Interest received BHFE 641 655
Tax paid BERHIE (9,863) (4,499)
Net cash flows used in operating activities RS EEHFAR SR E R (358,654) (29,903)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ REEEFEHLRE
Purchase of items of property, BEME  BEMZEEE
plant and equipment (4,425) (12,037)
Purchase of intangible assets BERVEE (60) (312)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, BREWME  BENRETEIE
plant and equipment 322 1,749
Increase in payments in advance ﬁﬁ%’\lﬁiﬂﬂ (25,317) (30,431)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEENTB AR 30 (6,616) (59,688)
Redemption/(purchase) of an available-for-sale g, ( ﬂﬁ, S ) Al ERE
investment 108,081 (105,487)
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities & ZBFE,/ (FrA)HE £
e R 71,985 (206,206)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
MEEERER(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2017 2016
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
BisE AR®T R AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM RETBRERERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares BITROABRIE - 277,797
Share issue expenses RinEITRE - (25,156)
Interest paid [=AREESS 31 (33,607) (9.187)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other TERRIE ~ ke REMER
receivables FRIRE N 31 (7,048) =
Increase in payments in advance FERTFRIAE 31 (1,346) =
Net proceeds from issue of convertible BRI ERESRES
bonds and bonds 1S RUE 58 31 139,881 =
Proceeds from bank and other loans RITREMEREHE 632,537 211,039
Repayment of bank and other loans BERTREMER (520,919) (127,924)
Dividends paid BERRE - (4,648)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEFBMEREREFE 209,498 321,921
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BeRBEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS #i,/ (R )FE (77,171) 85,812
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net RGBT EFE (1,257) 8,061
Cash and cash equivalents at FReLREEED
beginning of year 154,079 60,206
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FERRERREZEY
END OF YEAR 75,651 154,079
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERRESENEHRIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the BIISIROR KR TSR & RIRE EEY
statement of financial position 21 22,710 102,050
Time deposits with original maturity of KRB ETEB=EA
less than three months when acquired, REETERABEERNESRTR
pledged as security for issuance of
letters of credit 21 22,941 52,029
Time deposits with maturity date within three FHER TR ={EH
months pledged as security for a bank loan R{ESRITEFUR IR T FH 21 30,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RenekmiRe MREEED
statement of cash flows 75,651 154,079
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB ERRMEE

31 December 2017 2017412A31H
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Corporate and Group Information

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 16 March 2015. The registered office address of
the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands. The Company'’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong is Unit 4408A, 44/F, Cosco Tower, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in marketing,
promotion and channel management services for improved human
plasma-based pharmaceutical, antibiotics and other pharmaceuticals
focused on therapeutic areas complementary to human plasma-
based products and other fast-growing categories in Mainland
China. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the Directors, Risun Investments Limited (“Risun”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the
parent and the ultimate holding company of the Company.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are as follows:

AAREEEHR

RAFAR015F3816 A EASHEEMA
SRBRATR o ANARAFEMPF S E U AP.O.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands * &EB X EL E I AF
B EEABHR 1835 IR KN E44184408A% ©

FAN - AEETERDBIAMEERE AR
B ARREINOAREREARMTERR
R E AR ERIE R B A E B R Ti5 L
i HELREEERS - AREEERXFAM
EREALEEAES) -

E E2 A  Risun Investments Limited ([Risun])
(Eﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁﬁ?ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁi
BVA: NIV =Y /NCI I SNCIPNE - e S2ulil

fE 2 REF
AREMERROFEAT :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

RAREEER ()
MELRER(E)

Place and date

of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital  to the Company Principal activities
MBS Rt B BRTEE/ KD RENG
=1 REHEEXBE LTS EzEsl  FEER
Direct Indirect
HE L3
% %
Starwell Group Holding Limited 26 November 2013 US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
B EEERERAT BVI 50,0003 7T REER
2013411 H26H
ABERRES
Bright Ritzy Limited 5 August 2016 Us$1 100 - Investment holding
REBRAF BVI (E REER
2016578 A5H
ARERRES
Hong Kong Prosperous Group Holding 20 December 2013 HK$100 = 100 Sale of pharmaceutical
Limited ("Hong Kong Prosperous”) Hong Kong 100/87T products
EREREEERERLA 201312 A20R HEZM
([&#EE]) BB
Glorious Empire Limited 26 August 2016 HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
B ER AR Hong Kong 1787 REER
20168 H26H
BB
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.9 1 April 2011 RMB50,000,000 - 100  Sale of pharmaceutical
(“Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals”) Mainland China AR #50,000,0007T products
M BN R EREREERRO 201144818 HEZEm
([Pm)I ERp 2 |) R it
Sichuan Sinco Biological 25 November 2013 RMB1,000,000 - 70 Research and

Technology Co., Ltd.®
m)|| BRI R B R AR

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

Mainland China
2013411 A25H
B A

AR#1,000,0007T

development on
pharmaceutical products
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

o8

[ekelel

——

AAREEES(E)
MEARERME)

Place and date

of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital ~ to the Company Principal activities
MR R BRTEE/ NGl
=L EER R E Sk AR A EEE . FEEHR
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
% %
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceutical 26 February 2014 RMB22,000,000 = 100 Providing warehouse

Technology Co., Ltd.®

("Chengdu Sinco Technology”)
PREBERI AR R AR EE AR

([ PREPERIARA )

Chengdu Hengsheng Ziguang

Pharmaceutical Technology Co., Ltd.®

(“Chengdu Hengsheng”)
PREPER R A BERITBREE AR
([ #piER% 1)

Xizang Linzhi Ziguang Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd.® (“Linzhi Ziguang")

RS KN EERREE RO
([EsSk])

Sinco Shanghai Trading Co., Ltd.®
("Sinco Shanghai”)

ERER( HB)EHERARF0
([ERE g )

Qingdao Yusheng Hengying Trading
Co., Ltd.?("Qingdao Yusheng")

EERRERESERATY
(5%

Mainland China
201492 A26H
Bl

4 March 2015
Mainland China

20153 A4H
B At

17 November 2014
Mainland China

2014%F11 8178
B At

25 August 2016
Mainland China

20168 H25H
Bl A,

15 November 2016
Mainland China

201611 A15H
Bl A,

AE#22,000,0007T

RMB100,000
AR#100,0007T

RMB 10,000,000
AE#10,000,0007T

RMB5,000,000
AR#5,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000
AR #30,000,0007T

100

100

100

100

facilities for
pharmaceutical products
REERRERE

Consultation on medical
and biological technology

BRI EYRIESE

Sale of pharmaceutical
products
HEEm

Sale of pharmaceutical
products
HEHEm

Investment holding

REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

1. Corporate and Group Information (Continued) 1.
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

AAREEER(E)
MEARERME)

Place and date

of incorporation/ Issued ordinary/

Percentage of

registration and registered equity attributable
Name place of business share capital  to the Company Principal activities
MBS Rt B BRTEE/ KD RENG
=1 REHEEXBE LTS EzEsl  FEER
Direct Indirect
HE L3
% %
Qingdao Ruichi Pharmaceuticals 15 May 2007 RMB10,000,000 = 100  Sale of pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. @ (“Qingdao Ruichi”) Mainland China AR#10,000,0007T products
ERhEEFR AR 20074F5 A 15H HEEm
([ 5 SmE]) B A
Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.® 17 February 2011 RMB68,000,000 = 100  Sale of pharmaceutical
("Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals”) Mainland China AR #68,000,0007T products
PREPERIA R B AR AR 20114F2 A17H HE R
([P ERERR R BR E | ) B A
(i)  Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai and Qingdao Yusheng () POl R - EmER R T SEERESR

are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the PRC law.

(i) These subsidiaries are registered as domestic enterprises under the PRC (i)

law.

During the year, the Group acquired Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals
from an independent third party. Further details of this acquisition
are included in note 30 to the financial statements.

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

B AREMAINEEEDRE -
ZEMBARREDRAEEIMARNEDRE -
FAN - AEERE—RBYE =T W ERR

Bk o GEZWENE—TFHE  SRPBHRE
FFEE30 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"), which comprise
all standards and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB"”), and International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations
Committee interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee that remain in effect and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an entity, directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on

which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

108

2.1 REEE

% EM MR IZ IR BRI 15 R 2R A ([ BIRR B 75
BELE DR REABDALERNER S

HAREE([ERSHENEES ) RARER
REBALBR et IR B ERAINBEEREs

ZA([BEFREHER D RER2EZEREN
REBARFHINBEENK - ZEMHRIIZE
SERRAERIGSE  ITESRMT AR - REHE
EREIN  REMBBRAARBTARKEDEZ
5 MATABELNBESRATT

mER%E
BAUBHRERBEARAREMNBARES
2017512 A3 B ILFEEMIBHRE o WE R
AR AEESHEEFNEE - EX5ERA
S2EG S R A KR REE B R IE AT B B 3R R R
NBEZHAIEOR  WHENERHREYHR
REN(BIEFAEBIRGRENATEREYH R
FERE SN MBL TR B SR HAEF - RIS
PRI o

HARBERAEERER IRNREHRBFHEN
KEFBRLERN - AARERNFEESEHAY
REHSNENRSERAEEREENER -
B

() HEEREHREMEBEIR[EANANOLE

(o) EtbaHLHMELNEN &
(@ AEENEREEREERTE -
BB A R M IR IR EA R RIAE R MRS HAR
g WIRAER—RNEBR - HBARNE

RAAKERGEHEE A EREHE  WEE
HARE  EERIEHIRRLZBARLE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investments retained, and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities: Clarification of
the Scope of IFRS 12

Amendments to IFRS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

None of the above amendments to IFRSs has had a significant
financial effect on these financial statements. Disclosure has been
made in note 31 to the financial statements upon the adoption of
amendments to IAS 7, which require an entity to provide disclosures
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

2.1

2.2

mEERE ()

FEEE(HE)

EME RS B RERS A  AN A 8 - BRSO
{2 AN S BARSH NEBRAEEEA
A A RIS - RAKEREDARS
BMMFARERATNEERAE - K - 1k
A X RRERBERNRABEREH -

{8 B SRR | at = TEIE IR R e H A — T8
KEHEMES - AAKEEEEHERTIIAIEF
REHSR - WEAEZGEOMNB ARG EE
HEARBRARZS °

AN SR E K KB A BRI - BIBUHHERG)
ZMBARWEE(REHE) AR  (VEME
IR REE ¢ RGN ER AN Rt
MERER  MEROIERENDTE : (TR
BEMABRENATE  Rii)FERSEEN
A - RN EME K AR A KBERG
BOEFHBERANRE BN (ER) - 2
BASEERLERREEXBBEMTERER
[@ o

B BERIEENEE
AREBRAE NI BRI TIE (T
BB 5 SR A -

BFR &£
EVEACCHIRS)

itz a1

et AR BRI TR R
F125 (85T AN) B IREE
A BTBR BT 3R REREMERER
ERI2014F 22016F W — BB BN

HERTE JB A A BB L ER
WIS 251255 F 12950980 /F
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REEARBHE - R EE R IHERIE75RIE
ST - BRI AR N R (I
AR EDE LN ABEH(BERAR
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SREAIZTHE - ERMBMAEIEI A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9
Amendments to IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10 and

IAS 28
IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16
IFRS 17
Amendments to IAS 28
Amendments to IAS 19
Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC 22
IFRIC 23

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

A woN -

110

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers!

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’

Leases?
Insurance Contracts?

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?
Employee Benefits?

Transters of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28!

Amendments to IFRS 3,
IFRS11, IAS 12 and IAS 232

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

58 4 ¢ [

2.3 © AR A R A B PR B 7 R 5 2R R

REEIW AR % EWEIRER B IAT B
RAERREVFTR] RAEIE T BIBR B TS 5 22 R

BRI T R
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i
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~

+
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2 B B 7 S e 2 B
%1558
2 B B 7 S e 2 B
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2 B B 7 S e 2 B
1658

2 B B 7 S e 2 B
F175%
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285k (1851 A)
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REZRFAREED
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B1EF)

BREREYFE

INERX G RBIIAE

FraBi
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2014F 22016 F ) BRI ESRE2ER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that address
three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction;
the classification of a share-based payment transaction with net
settlement features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated with the share-
based payment; and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes its
classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting conditions
when measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies
to cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce
an exception so that a share-based payment transaction with
net share settlement features for withholding a certain amount
in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation is classified in its
entirety as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from
the date of the modification. On adoption, entities are required
to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if they elect to adopt for all
three amendments and other criteria are met. The Group will adopt
the amendments from 1 January 2018. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing
together all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
IAS 39 and all previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January
2018. The Group will not restate comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has performed
a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9. The
expected impacts relate to the classification and measurement and
the impairment requirements and are summarised as follows:

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

2.3 CHAffmiER 4 R A BB B 35 R 22

(%)
A RATEE AR R B B B IR S R
—H AR -

et ERIRE SN 201656 A Bl BB Bf
B ELERE 25 AER] - W R =(EF EES
HRETHESEERMINRIFTENTE
HEEFREERENROEZNR ST REERE
B RINRB AR S mEE AT EEHER
HEeMDE  UREBRMO AR S FIERFEE
MIERERES R RSEES T RS EEN
FEIRE - B AEE - HEEUERAEENR
DEFNFEARTEGBREN A EHERRER S
HEHERM AT - BETANESIE—IBPIIMAE -
MR ELGHET - RO R 5+ ENR—
EHFEA M EEMTERBMEE FHREF R
D ZNR S - AT D EAREEENRD
XS o BN - BETARE - RS EENR
DI ZSWERIEHERE B E RIAERLE
BHROHEZNRS - A5 B B8R BRIER
BREENREITEERIE « FNZIETR -
EROGESMRTFEVHEREER  AEHEE
EENA LB = IBE R B E AR R R
B B[ ERABPFAEE - NEBER2018F1
A1 BRRRAZIEE] - BAZEII R TeHAS
B IR TG IRERNTE -

201457 R - B EAIR =S B mEIRE
BHREEAFIFRMRRRA - BEHBmIAER
BT A S ER ARG ARV BIFR & 522 R 395k &
RIS SR R S5 05R 2 BT FT A AR » 5%
BISIAT S ERAE  RERETSHEER
T - AEEEBE20185F1 A1 B IR
SRS REAFEIN - AEERTSBIHRE
£ WHEHERER2018F1 A1 HMHAERE
B EFREEFE - R20176F - AEEDFHA
FHE AR I RS ERIFE IR E - B
DI RFTEARRERENTERAZERMIT

111



112

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 will
have a significant impact on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets. It expects to measure at fair value all
financial assets currently held at fair value through profit or
loss, and to continue measuring at amortised cost all financial
assets currently measured at amortised cost.

Impairment

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be recorded based on an
expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month basis or
a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are estimated based
on the present values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining
life of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will
apply the general approach and record twelve-month expected
credit losses that are estimated based on the possible default
events on its other receivables within the next twelve months.
The Group has determined that no material further impairment
will be provided for upon the initial adoption of the standard.

(a)

(b)

)
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 15, issued in May 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under
IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles
in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract asset and liability account balances
between periods and key judgements and estimates. The standard
will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under IFRSs. Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of the
standard. In April 2016, the IASB issued amendments of IFRS 15
to address the implementation issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments
are also intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt IFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity
of applying the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in IFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group plans to apply the
new requirements only to contracts that are not completed before 1
January 2018. The Group expects that the transitional adjustment to
be made on 1 January 2018 upon initial adoption of IFRS 15 will not
be material. The expected changes in accounting policies, as further
explained below, will not have a material impact on the Group’s
financial statements from 2018 onwards. During 2017, the Group
has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of the adoption
IFRS 15.

The presentation and disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are more
detailed than those under the current IAS 18. The presentation
requirements represent a significant change from current practice
and will significantly increase the volume of disclosures required
in the Group’s financial statements. Many of the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 15 are new and the Group has assessed
that the impact of some of these disclosure requirements will be
significant. In addition, as required by IFRS 15, the Group will
disaggregate revenue recognised from contracts with customers
into categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic
factors.

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

2.3 CHAffmiER 4 R A BB B 35 R 22

(#8)

201445 B H8 10 B0 BB B 7 3 & 2RI 55 1 557858
T—EAFHRESEN  UEERFANELED
Wzs ABR o IRIZBIPR IS MEERIFE 155 - Ik
HERMEEEHIATFEEERIRSE M
ERESHRBNESEER - BRI BREE
BIE155R MR A Bt & RERKZIREE 4
LB % o SZ2ERITREE 2 M M R EEH
BRT  BESWRSEE  BRBITEINE
B TRPEzEAANEERARGRE &HHNE
LA R E B HET R fbAT o s 2ERE BV BIPR B 7%
REEAE T ARITREERETE © VP ER
ZERIR AT 2 B A SIS R TR B - 1
201654 A - B @ eI S S M mEIIR %
WEERIFISHAMSEI AR - RAGRREAELD
Bif - Dt ABRIERAEREEEROEREDS
LARGBIERBITRERE ° s SHER] AN IR Bh (R
B BSR40 BB B 75 R 5 2E B 281 555% B AE 5B AN
—BUbER - LA RPRERE B2 ERIM R A RIS
Moo AEEFTEIRA BRI SRS LR F 155
B MR R - ISP IRANZERIM R B &
R AEE2018F1 A1 BIRE BN BVE LN
oo Jphh o AEEFTEEEHIR T EAN2018
F1A1ARMARTHRAEL - NEBIEH - )
R ANBIPR B 15 2R S X RIEE 155% 18 + 7201841
A1BBTEEHEXNEEEFARE - S5HBERN
TEHAZEE) (N T ) i T S H AR B 53R
KT BEEB2018FME THAHEITNA T
BRBAEK)ERBEATE - R2017F  AEH
B EF AR RT SR AN B PR B 75 3R & HE R B 15 5R A 7
2,

B B B R R 1SR 25 RIFERER
RITEBESFHERIFE 185 T HHA MR E R Rt
F o 2VRERRBBTEPNBRELE  Eg
BAMIE A LB ERRAFIREE - BRI
BHRELENEISFRNRZRBERETBEHE - M
AEEEFEZERERETHE D BEREX
FE o o BRI TG IRE ERIF 155 AT
o AEBARRSEETF AN MER B
SHIAFAREOMEE - 28 KR TEEN
ARIRE MBI B EE R BRI o

113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRS 16, issued in January 2016, replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-
15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes
two elective recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-
value assets and short-term leases. At the commencement date of
a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
(i.e., the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use
asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property
in IAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment
to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also
be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence
of certain events, such as change in the lease term and change in
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments. Lessees will generally recognise
the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an
adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under IFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases
and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make
more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17. Lessees can choose
to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 from
1 January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of IFRS
16 upon adoption and is considering whether it will choose to take
advantage of the practical expedients available and which transition
approach and reliefs will be adopted. As disclosed in note 32 to the
financial statements, at 31 December 2017, the Group had future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
aggregate of approximately RMB1,606,000. Upon adoption of IFRS
16, certain amounts included therein may need to be recognised
as new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. Further analysis,
however, will be needed to determine the amount of new rights of
use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised, including, but not
limited to, any amounts relating to leases of low-value assets and
short term leases, other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and
new leases entered into before the date of adoption.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued) 2.3 CHEMERERNER BRI IE RS AL
(%)

IFRIC 22, issued in December 2016, provides guidance on how to R2016F 12 ABRMHHERMBREREZES
determine the date of the transaction when applying IAS 21 to the FE22H AR B R AINETE S TBURA B & EE%?S
situation where an entity receives or pays advance consideration —IEEEMEEN B ENER MRABBR A
in a foreign currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or BISE215R 05 N {a] & E 22 5 H IR it 45 3] - %%
liability. The interpretation clarifies that the date of the transaction BRE  MEEVREREMEE  FxsRA
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial (HEZAD)FTBERMS @ X HHATRYA
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of EE.: S TER R EBRIEEREEEEE (B
it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the non- NEE) SIS %ETE(ZZDLL%U\)E’] HE - 4
monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or non-monetary liability PEREBEE pIE BN ZE5E - QB
(such as deferred income) arising from the payment or receipt JERETE i%?ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬂﬂfmx%ﬁﬁﬁ o %‘ﬁ;
of the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or BB XA ZARENR S RS R E e
receipts in advance of recognising the related item, the entity must T;KﬁﬁEZa%%iE'\J#ﬁ%ﬁiHFaﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁiqﬂ{’Ez%ttﬁ‘ﬁﬂ
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt of Bl B9 BT — 45 HARO HE 9 AR 2 T 28 9 e A s FE 4t
the advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation JERZ2E ASBEEHEE2018F1A1HE
on a full retrospective basis or on a prospective basis, either from RNz - BTy AL EHRE
the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first ENRERERTE -

applies the interpretation or the beginning of the prior reporting
period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies
the interpretation. The Group expects to adopt the interpretation
prospectively from 1 January 2018. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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8 4 €

2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective IFRSs (Continued)

IFRIC 23, issued in June 2017, addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of IAS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or
levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with
uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
(i) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes
in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use of
hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of application
as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application, without the restatement of comparative information.
The Group expects to adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019.
The interpretation is not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.
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31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes
the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the (a) consideration transferred, (b) the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and (c) any fair value of the
Group'’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwiill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Fair value measurement
The Group measures its available-for-sale investments at fair value,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

24 TESHBEBE(E)

NHEFE
AEERSHERRFTERLIRATEFFEA A
HERE  RAFEFABSENSREERRA
HEAABRSNNERAE - AFEAMSE2H
ERHERNEEFR ST HEEERKEE
FRERIMNER - ATEFENENRER
EEENEREENRINEERBENEIET
BHETT - MEXEDS  AIREEXBEMNR
BAMSET - TRIZBANMHLA/NEE
AEANTS - BEXRBENAFERAHEE
KBBEEEFMHE2EERANBRTE - UR
RS2 EEURFRELENRTE

FERMBEENDFEFEF RMH2EELER
BENRAREEREE  JBBHELET
A—EFEREEN R RRECBEENTS
DERE N EELBNRIEET °

AEERAERBERTBEE BB BB
ETEEATE  SEERARTBESRBARK
BEREERLERTABRBARE -

119



120

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets, and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

or

(b)

122

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful lives
Leasehold land and buildings 34-60 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents items of property, plant and
equipment under construction, which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowing funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less any impairment losses and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The principal estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as

follows:
Exclusive distribution rights 9 years
Software 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Operating leases
Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating
leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with positive net changes in fair value presented as “Other income
and gains” and negative net changes in fair value presented as
“Finance costs” in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in “Other income
and gains” in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in “Finance costs” for loans and in “Other
expenses” for receivables.

58 4 ¢ [

24 TESHBEME(E)

RERHMEHMEE(F)
it E
SRAEHEEH BRARINTHM

B FlEFTARZ A2 M EE

BAFEFABRSNEREERERFEENS
BB B M AR HER IS 18 TE AR A HERT AR ZHY
THEE cREEMAEMEESBENME
B A BARERE - RATFEFABREN
ERMEERMBEIMNKRAIZAFEIIR - EAF
BEEHEFRAINBEAZ25) R HAEARK

@] MATEEBEFEZIAIFABEA] -
ZEANTHEFREHI T EERZEEREER

B EARERME - ZFEWARE T X Wk
HER PR IER ©

EREWHE

ER RN SRR A EENRERE
BEEBRMSHRENIITESRMEE - RV
Bi& - ZEEERRUERNTERE K AR
EAREZE R E o 8K AR RREBE M
AFERRERNE - W EEEAKERNE—
DEVERARA - BERA R AM A AR
[EBARMES | o B &SRR EE £
1R IR ROl B TSR A | B[ LA B2 | e

27
e °

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are those which
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category are those
which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss in other income, or until the investment is determined to be
impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability
and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until
maturity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in
a collective assessment of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or decreased by adjusting the allowance amount.
If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and borrowings,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, interest-bearing
bank and other loans and bonds.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by
the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Loans and borrowings (including bonds)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in “Finance costs” in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

If the conversion option of convertible bonds exhibits characteristics
of an embedded derivative, it is separated from its liability
component. On initial recognition, the derivative component of
the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented as
part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess of proceeds
over the amount initially recognised as the derivative component
is recognised as the liability component. Transaction costs are
apportioned between the liability and derivative components of
the convertible bonds based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and derivative components when the instruments are
initially recognised. The portion of the transaction costs relating to
the liability component is recognised initially as part of the liability.
The portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average method. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in “Finance costs” in
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,
are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to profit or loss by way of a reduced
depreciation charge.
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31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(c) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Subject to the
shareholders’ agreement, the Company may also allot and issue
certain new shares in the Company for the purpose of providing
incentives for specific employees to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to strive for the further development and expansion
of the Group. Employees (including the co-chief executive) of the
Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances, further details of which are given in note 28 to the
financial statements.

18 4 & m

24 TESHBEME(E)

Wz TR
WEREE RS R AT R AR EE B gL A AT B
RERERR - EDEMT ¢

(a) HEEYVWE  RAAENEXRRNE
BEHEREHRTUER  EAXKETE
SE-REMBEAMNER  HMER
VT BEERIZEIE

(b) FEBWA - AEERF LR B E A
R RARESE T AR F &G M
(AER) B AR KR S WA ERRERE
CREERTMFENNE &

@ BBUA - TOBER KBRS SR 4 I Sy
TR

LA £ B E R BV 7R

AAREITRERETE - EERHAKBERBEK
DELERNEERSBEREER REE - 1R
BRI - AR B IRA AR E 1B B A3 3T T
ARBETHRNIEAEBERNEEWER - I
HERERAEENE—SHRLBERNS S -
AEERE (BREFEITHRAR)ARN SERR
T BB - R 1R B IR AR /= X
BARTANKE(BEEERS]) °

HESETHREEERZRATDSERELA
HIRAT AN R FEFE - A FETIRIMBHE
EARZ (EIER T BEE A ERMEE @ E—
FHBENPEHRRME28

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)
The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the subsidiaries in Mainland China are required
to participate in a defined central pension scheme managed by the
local municipal government of the areas in Mainland China in which
they operate. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant part of the payroll of these employees
to the central pension scheme. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement benefits beyond the annual contributions.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

In addition to the above, the Group also participates in a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for its employees in Hong Kong. The Company’s
contributions have been capped to HK$1,500 per month since
1 June 2014 for each of its employees in Hong Kong and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Housing fund

Contributions to a defined contribution housing fund administered
by the Public Accumulation Funds Administration Centre in Mainland
China are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared. In the event that the interim dividends
are paid out of the share premium account, shareholders’ approval
at an extraordinary general meeting is needed. When these interim
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and declared,
they are recognised as a liability.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Foreign currencies
These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria
is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.
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3. Significant Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

@  Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2017 was
RMB23,701,000 (2016: RMB58,632,000). Further details are
given in note 15 to the financial statements.

(b)  Impairment of receivables

Impairment of receivables is estimated based on an assessment
of the recoverability of receivables. The assessment of
impairment of receivables involves the use of estimates and
judgements. An estimate for doubtful debts is made when
collection of the full amount under the invoice is no longer
probable, as supported by objective evidence using available
contemporary and historical information to evaluate the
exposure. Bad debts are written off as incurred. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in the future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will affect the carrying
value of receivables and thus the impairment loss in the period
in which such estimate is changed. There was no impairment
provision for receivables during the year (2016: Nil).
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3. Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

©

(@

(e)

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”)

The Group's operating subsidiaries in Mainland China are
subject to PRC CIT. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to PRC CIT have not been confirmed by the relevant
local tax authorities, objective estimates based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies are
required in determining the provision for PRC CIT to be made.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact
the income tax expense and tax provision in the period in
which the differences realise. The carrying amounts of PRC CIT
payable as at 31 December 2017 was RMB2,546,000 (2016:
RMB12,221,000).

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated,
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The useful
lives of property, plant and equipment are disclosed in note 2.4
to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of a similar nature. Management
reassesses these estimates at the end of each reporting period.
The carrying amount of inventories as at 31 December 2017
was RMB291,193,000 (2016: RMB137,602,000) and the total
impairment provision for inventories as at 31 December 2017
was RMB25,213,000 (2016: Nil).

3. EEEsHEET(E)
fhET TRERZ(E)

(c)

(@

(e)

BT AR R ([ B e ))

75 [ 7 R B R i ) 4 ST BB /1 B ZE AR
PRI ZEATISHR o R MR R M 5 T TS 4 S
MAERBETRCEMSHNE TS
H - BAETRBECEMSHRERAER
BIRATRE AR REMEEBRELE
Bifhat - WZSBENSRBEKLEREY)
RS REAR  REEERFEMEH
S kRS E AR IBEE - 72017
F12A318 - ERHFRECEMRSHNER
EAARM2,546,0007T (20164 : AR
12,221,0007T) °

YIFE BB RREL A FR

AEEBEEYE - BERRENGA
ERFHMABTERS - ZAEHER
HERNERENDE BELRENE
BRAMERFHRBELR o Al ERFH
RRERIEET - BIEERS LA ERx
FM RO B HERAHIHED
FRBEUEEE - WX - BB RRENAE
RERRERM B RAMF2.4 -

FE A& FE
GEMNERFEN—MEFBRER M
EERTKREEMEEMTTHLN - %5
HETRER BRI MR REEHEREEMD
RBTESH REREHR  BEEEN
ST - N20178F 128318 &
EMERAEEAARE291,193,0007T(2016
£ . AR#¥137,602,0007T) © MH20174F
12A318 - FEMREREEEAARE
25,213,0007T(2016%F « £) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

3. Significant Accounting Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

W)

)

(h)

Research expenses

Research expenses are expensed in accordance with the
accounting policy for research and development costs in note
2.4 to the financial statements. Determining the amounts to be
expensed requires management to make judgements on the
research and development progress. Research costs charged to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted
to RMB1,996,000 (2016: RMB5,089,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses can be utilised based upon the likely timing and level
of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets at 31
December 2017 was RMB9, 159,000 (2016: Nil). Further details
are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets with definite lives are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of sell and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data
from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction
of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

3. EEEsHEET(E)
fhET TRERZ(E)

(")

(9)

(h)

HEHZ

T IE R X TR B B RS SRR Y 52 AFT S AR 8%
AR EETBURS 8 - EEE XS R -
BEEERABMMELEE - HE2017F12
A31BIEFE - A BT HBROMIETAR
A ARM1,996,0007C (2016 F : AR
5,089,0007T) °

BT B E

AR 15 7T B B P 3R % oK 2R B AR B Ui I K
AR KR RIIBETEIKEE - WRATER R
SAE) FE SR 052 1) AT PR DA S5 AT 40 05 B
EHERBAABSATRIERE - B
EAMREREZERADAREEIBRE
RELEHBEEE - BEEMRBEEER=-F
—+F+- A=+ BNEEAEAARE
9,159,000 T ( = ZT— /N4 « ) o #E— 5
BRI IS RERMFET

A ERE(BEEI)
AEEREREHRIEMBFTHEE
EERHREMAREDR - BEERFHN
FEREENNE N RBENRE(E ] L&
FWEEETRENR c BEERREE
EBEMMEREERSE TR SER - B
DFERLEXRAEFERENRSE - Al
FHERME © fTEQFEROERAE - 1%
NAFEERBUEEETEAORDHEE
RHHNABEE - ATEMHERRL
EEENDENKARFL - BEFtERAE
B BEREEAMAENEEXRSELE
M ARBESRE  ITEFTESOREX
NEtEZERERENRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2017 20174128318

Sam L

Revenue and Operating Segment Information
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net of
various types of government surcharges.

The Group's revenue and contribution to consolidated results are
mainly derived from its sales of human albumin solution, antibiotics
and other pharmaceutical products focused on therapeutic areas
complementary to human plasma-based products and other fast-
growing categories in Mainland China, which is regarded as a single
reportable segment in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior management

Wi R & & o E R
W te 0 & B YR ZRE (FNkk 2 EERATH A0
) o

REEN NS MEGEEENEREERGER
REIAMEAMBEREFIR - UER - FER
B A BB AR B B A H R AR g o R H A PRIR
EREARINHER  RMGEIABE—FwED
B EARENBRAARESREEEREER
AR UEETERD A RKFTME o 1t
Hh - AEEFEANEZERBDEEDLNFEA

for purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. In i o Eitt - RIAERBABMHERIN  RBEY
addition, the principal non-current assets employed by the Group DEBDHT ©
are located in Mainland China. Accordingly, no segment analysis is
presented other than entity-wide disclosures.
Entity-wide disclosures LERABNMEE
Information about products Ep B
The following table sets forth the total revenue from external TRETIEFNIREME DR BINEE P AN
customers by product and the percentage of total revenue by MEERFTGEREE DT
product during the year:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T % ARBFIT %
Sales of goods: HEEY -
Human albumin solution AMIBERIER 407,321 50.5 514,265 59.9
Antibiotics* Pz 326,070 40.4 272,069 31.7
Otherst H b 73,332 9.1 72,560 8.4
806,723 100.0 858,894 100.0
& Axetine, Medocef and Trifamox IBL * LA~ ZE N &%? T
# Taurolite, Diphereline, Etiasa, Tanakan, Smecta and Esafosfina # VEARNE « EIEM - XS - ERNEE C BRERE
Eig
1% E

Geographical information

All external revenue of the Group during each of the two years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 was attributable to customers
located in Mainland China, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. The Group’s non-current assets are all located in
Mainland China.

AEBMPEE2017F %20165F12 4318 LEME
FESFOAMBIINRREIREMARTEAM
(AEEEEERFM)NES - REBATAIE
REVEEHM AR E AN o

Information about major customers FTEEFEH
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to REETEEF MW (5 RKEER10% 3
10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: BT
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e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

4. Revenue and Operating Segment Information 4.

(Continued)

58 4 &

Wk EETHER(E)

[ekelel

——

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Customer A =EA 91,626 @
Customer B =B * 159,587
*  Lessthan 10% * D R10%
5. Other Income and Gains 5. EUg AR Uk
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: BRI A RUEE AT -
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Bank interest income FRITABUA 1,155 655
Government grants* T fE Bh 883 1,205
Foreign exchange gains, net bE W W aF 5 - 4,231
Interest income on an available-for-sale R E A E R E RSB
Investment (note 20) (Kiz£20) 2,024 1,810
Net gains on disposal of property, RELEYE « BEMRED
plant and equipment Wzs 358 128 -
Fair value gains on financial assets at fair value RESBAREEESBER
through profit or loss classified as held for BAFEFENESREE
trading NS L& - 146
Others Hi 21 486
4,211 8,533
* There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the * A BB TR R BTG SSHAEE -

government grants.

6. Finance Costs 6. BIFERAS

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: RV EKAHHTOT :
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT
Interest on bank loans and other loans RITERREMEFKFIE 18,348 8,627
Interest on discounted bills receivable (note 19)  FEURZE 3£ ALIRFI B (H77%19) 4,376 560
Interest on bonds BEHF B 10,977 -
33,701 9,187

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR
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8 4 &

——

7. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 7. BRBEAEF,(ER)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax was arrived at after charging/ REBHRADER, (E8) T4k, (Gt A)
(crediting): LATEIEERE
2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE AR¥TRT AREETFTT
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKA 713,190 754,326
Employee benefit expense RERAMAX
(including directors’ remuneration (BIEME8FEES
as set out in note 8): ) -
Wages and salaries IENFS 11,641 9,152
Welfare and other benefits & F) Fe B R 25 310 1,078
Equity-settled share option expense ARG HE A E R BB IR B =2 28 1,352 995
Pension scheme contributions RIS EEIHR
— Defined contribution fund —ERHERES 1,300 1,080
Housing fund FEAES
— Defined contribution fund —ERHRES 479 466
Total employee benefit expense EERMMAZ 2% 15,082 12,771
Depreciation of items of property, M - WE &
plant and equipment REIERITE 12 10,660 5,554
Amortisation of intangible assets A R 13 4,700 5112
Depreciation and amortisation FE RN 15,360 10,666
Impairment losses recognised on: BUA T B IERERL
BEEE
Intangible assets mEEE 13 27,531 =
Goodwill SRS 15 38,961 -
Write-down of inventories to FERRZEZIFE
net realisable value 25,213 -
Research expenses FFERI 1,996 5,089
Operating lease rentals LERKNES 1,682 1,418
Foreign exchanges losses/(gains), net & EE, (e ) F8E 2,068 (4,231)
Loss on disposal of an exclusive R BB R A THER ET1E
distribution right - 1,435
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEDE BEM
plant and equipment SRAEIE H B E 5 (128) =
Loss on settlement of derivative financial TS BT ASEER
instruments 8,055 =
Fair value losses on financial liabilities BEBRERATENEN
at fair value through profit or loss SRAEATEEE 25 218 =
Auditors’ remuneration T2 A 2,700 2,680
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees
Directors' and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
HKSE, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERIETRARHFMURTEERR
S#HES
RIETBMRFAES ETRA - EEDRAEHIE
383(1)(a) * (b) ~ (O RMIERAF (FEEEH %
ER)APIB2HHE - FRESRESTRA
BHMOT :

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREEFTT

Fees poaleny 640 565

Other emoluments: HibMe

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He R REWET 2,543 2,274

Equity-settled share option expense AR A E A BB R A =2 (166) 166
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET S

— Defined contribution fund — £ 23 4

3,040 3,009

During the year, a co-chief executive officer was granted share
options, in respect of his services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 28 to the financial statements. The fair value of such options,
which has been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period,
was determined as of the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors' and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

TR REBEARRIBBIERTE - BETRAZH
AASEREAREGER TREE  E—2F8
R BMERME28 - ZFENFBHRERE
REERNBEREN D FEINRH B BETE
Mt AR FEFHHRROSEHN DAEER T
EITHABNFMEEE R

(a) BAFHTES
FASMBLIFRITESNRES D

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREBTFT

Mr. Chow Siu Lui ;W= RE 160 145
Mr. Liu Wenfang B35kt 160 145
Mr. Wang Qing TR 160 145
480 435

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year.

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

FABERMN TELIFNTESOE M

S
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8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration
and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive

58 4 &

[ekelel

——

8. EERFETHAEBHFMURTEER
EHES(E)
(b) BITESRERTHASR

Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense contributions Total
e R URBEEH Birg
e  REWEN  BREREX HE [5E0 @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT AREFT
2017 2017%
Executive directors: HITES
~ Mr. Huang Xiangbin —BEWEE 1,774 - 16 1,790
—Mr. Hao Jinghui* —MEBEE 606 (166) 440
—Mr. Wu Qingjiang* —RETRE" 163 7 170
—Ms. Zhang Zhijie —REHERT 160 160
160 2,543 (166) 23 2,560
2016 20165
Executive directors: WiTEE:
~Mr. Huang Xiangbin —EHIEE - 1,554 - 4 1,558
- Mr. Hao Jinghui* —MRBEAS - 720 166 = 886
- Ms. Zhang Zhijie — Rt 130 - - - 130
130 2,274 166 4 2,574

* Mr. Hao Jinghui resigned as co-chief executive officer of the
Company on 5 May 2017. Mr. Wu Qingjiang was appointed as
the new co-chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 5 May 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

@ BRBB L EMR20174E5 A5 B BHEAA RIEE
BITRAE - RETALERZRTARAR
B EITBAE - 8201758584
o

FAMEBESEHELARBRREMFHMO
2HE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

8. Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Remuneration

and Five Highest Paid Employees (Continued)

(c) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid employees during the year included
one director and the co-chief executive officer (2016: one
director and the co-chief executive officer), details of whose
remuneration are set out above. Details of the remuneration
during the year of the remaining three (2016: three) highest
paid employees who are neither a director nor a chief executive
of the Company as follows:

EERFTETHAEFMURERER

SEES(E)

(0 EEEmaHES
FN hEREHEERE—REERE
JEITHAAE (20166 « —REEREETT
BB - EEIFEEN L - Hp=%
(20165 : =R ) A FIFEARREFHE
BITRABRENRFANFTIFENAT ¢

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREFT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RN EYEA 908 1,025
Pension scheme contributions RINEETEIHR 72 71
Equity-settled share option expense LA RS 45 B ) i i el <2 855 292
1,835 1,388

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:

HHN T TIHENZSHIFESTRIEE
RITBRABRENWAZBMT

2017 2016

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T

During the year, share options were granted to three non-
director and non-chief executive highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 28 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as of the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees' remuneration disclosures.

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

FR - ZBRSFHFEERIFERTERA
SRESAAAEERENOREER FHEK
7 E— SRR AMBIRERM T8
BEHNA - ZECNEENEERRER
REOBRAEN A FEIRR L BHETE
Mt ARFEREHBRROSBHN L&
BEFIFEENIFEETHRABRS M
REEH -
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31 December 2017 20174128318

9. Income Tax/(Credit)
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on
the Group’s assessable profits derived from Hong Kong. No provision
for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had no
assessable profits derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the
year.

The provision for PRC CIT is based on the respective PRC CIT
rates applicable to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of Mainland China for the year. Except for certain
subsidiaries domiciled in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) that were
entitled to a preferential income tax rate, other PRC subsidiaries
were subject to PRC CIT at a rate of 25% during the two years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

The major components of income tax expense/(credit) are as follows:

58 4 ¢ [

gt (%)
REANSRSREBEMRBBORAAR
FEBBASMHSHEREBEBRRESNE
AFRSHE -

AEEREFBNERTHABERIRBBNEHMK
F16.5%FH - AR AKBERFALEREELD
HAEEBRINNERTAE - BRBREEHN
SEEE -

B S FT{S BB B THAR R &8 P B Rt A BA AT
1SR Bl KA AR ETIEE TE 2 31388 FR A AR 2R A 3t PR JeB
AR R BEBERBHBERTIR - HZE20174F
2016512 A31HIEMEFE - BRI B
WETHBAR(TENBAR ] EEZEESR
FriSTiRi RN - Epthrp BB A B AR P B3
FRS i R 25% 81 -

PRSHRS, (ER) T BEKBOT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Current tax: BNEA#RIE -
Income tax in Mainland for the year R R A R ET IS AR 188 5,961
Income tax in Hong Kong for the year BEBEFRNATER - 1,268
Deferred tax: RERIR
Deferred tax in Mainland for the year (hote 17) PR B (A 3t A (R R E F T
(H17E17) (8,023) -
Deferred tax in Hong Kong for the year (note 17) ~ &BFNIELEFIE(H1:£17) (1,136) =
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FARBERAY (KR )B58 (8,971) 7,229
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

9. Income Tax/(Credit) (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss)
before tax at the applicable tax rate for companies within the Group

Frsst, (%) (&)
AR BT A AE BB B ER R BIAT
(BB MBUER S (BR) RERKRBIE

to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rate is as follows:

ATEMTIARS (ER) BRI -

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Profit/(loss) before tax BEERDER](EE) (194,868) 25,566
Added: disallowed expenses incurred by the AN - ANA R FTHR AN AT
Company* S 15,929 14,012
Profit before tax generated by Hong Kong B KB B A F FTEERIBR
and PRC subsidiaries AR (178,939) 39,578
Tax at the respective statutory tax rates REBAEBREAENTIE
— PRC subsidiaries at 25% — BB A RIR25% T E (34,601) O1598
- Hong Kong subsidiary at 16.5% —EEWNBRARIE16.5%:TE (6,597) 199
Lower tax rate for certain subsidiaries (note (a)) H T B A BB R =
(Bi3t(a) 16,580 (4,977)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAHHFAX 10,027 1,233
Tax effect on deductible temporary AR SR ESEN RS E
differences not recognised 3,782
Income not subject to tax BRI A (12) (447)
Tax losses not recognised REERBIEEE 1,850 1,628
(8,971) 7,229

* Expenses incurred by the Company during each of the two years

ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 mainly consisted of listing fees,
consultancy service fees, equity-settled share option expense, interest

HE2017F KR2016F 12 A3MB IR EFES
F o RNRABFMEANRATEEBRERNDRIMES
WETER  FARSER - AREEENER
BHAY - EFFERERZHE - 2SR BEHA

on bonds and foreign exchange differences incurred by the Company.
These expenses are not expected to be tax deductible.

Notes:

(a)

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals is entitled to a preferential tax rate
of 15% according to the “Western Development Policy” until 31
December 2020.

From year 2015 to year 2017, the income tax rate of the Tibet
Autonomous Region has changed from 15% to 9%. Accordingly, Linzhi
Ziguang was entitled to the 9% preferential tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2017.

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

TR

Bt -

(@ REIABRFEEBER] DIIBNEEXZE

15%MERFE - HE2020F12831H

2015 F 20176 81 - AR BRARKFTEHE
KEMI15%EE A9% - Bt - BE2017412
A31BLEFE  MEEXBEZEI%NEERR
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e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

9.

Income Tax/(Credit) (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement has been effective from 1 January 2008 and applied
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The withholding tax rate for the
Group is 10%.

As of 31 December 2017, no deferred tax liability has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the Directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future after their assessment based on factors which
included the dividend policy, the level of working capital required for
the Group’s operations and the expansion of the Group’s operations
in Mainland China. The aggregate amount of temporary differences as
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB 140,067,000 (2016: RMB188,224,000).

10. Dividends

11.

At a meeting of the Board held on 29 March 2018, the Directors
resolved not to pay final dividends to shareholders for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016 final dividend: Nil).

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Company

The calculation of basic loss (2016: earnings) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is based on the loss (2016: profit) for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,615,220,000
(2016: 1,535,776,448) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share for the
Reporting Period in respect of a dilution as the exercise prices of the
Company’s outstanding share options were higher than the average
market prices for the Company’s shares during the Reporting Period.
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share for
the prior period as no diluting events occurred during the prior
period.

9.

——

&3

Frig®t, (ER) (&)
HisE ()

REBEFREAEHRAEER - SRR BEARKS
RISNE R ERINRIZE E SRR EEK10%
R TEFIRL © 5% R E E 200841 B 1B A - I
BARMR2007F 12 A31BEMHNAF - P B R
HINRIEE E I R AR B BT B s - Al
ARARENENTRE - AEEMNBINFH XA
10% °

()

HZE2017F12A318 » WERAEERFBEA
K ST HY 3 T F B A RS B R BB HH & R Fr s 4
MENHEREEHIERE - EFRA - ERR
BHR - AEBEBENEELESKFERASE
EiEARBE A EEEERETTHE  ZF
ME A RN A RASHR A AIBE D R B RAEF] ° &
BB BER P B At A S KT B A R IR E B E ks
M= B BN AR 140,067,0007T (20164 :
AR#188,224,0007 ) iERELERBE E -

10. RS

11.

BEDN2018F3A29BFBITNES S HoRE
TemEE2017F12 A31 B IEFE AR IR
REARELE (2016F REAR S ) -

AATREERBEAELCERAER,
(E18)
HE2017F12A31MHIEFENBRELRNEE
(20164 : &F|]) - BRERARRIEBBIFE A
FEMEFEEEB(2016%F  &F]) - REANBET
R A Y D 5 201,615,220,0008% (20164 :
1,535,776,4480% )5t & -

RRARA B HARITEBRENTTRESNREH
AARBIRAD ) FTE - EAERREHA
BREABEFEDEAEEAE - AR BEHRE
W IREEEM - Rt B AT RN SR
ERBRIELHE -
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GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

12. Property, Plant and Equipment 12. W% - BERRZE

Leasehold Construction
land and Office Motor  in progress
buildings equipment vehicles (“CIP”) Total
HETHR WAE HEIR
7 B "E ((ERIE)) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT ARETT AREFT AR%ETR
31 December 2017 2017%12A31H
Cost: R
At 1 January 2017 M2017%1818 92,570 4,464 17,089 3,372 117,495
Additions NE 115 5,947 2,635 90,018 98,715
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30)  YiE—RMB AT
(Biz#30) - 126 68 - 194
Transferred from CIP EaERTE 91,645 - - (91,645) -
Disposals/written off HE /5 - (156) (1,319) - (1,475)
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12A318 184,330 10,381 18,473 1,745 214,929
Accumulated depreciation: REHE
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 5,507 2,072 6,204 - 13,783
Provided for the year (note 7) FREEMNZ7) 4,197 2,267 4,196 - 10,660
Disposals/written off HE /5 - (146) (1,135) - (1,281)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318 9,704 4,193 9,265 - 23,162
Net carrying amount; BREHE :
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818 87,063 2,392 10,885 3,372 103,712
At 31 December 2017 M2017912A318 174,626 6,188 9,208 1,745 191,767
31 December 2016 2016F12H31H
Cost: R
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A18 91,417 3,729 10,005 - 105,151
Additions NE - 399 7,084 4,525 12,008
Acquisition of a subsidiary YefE—RE AR - 336 - - 336
Transferred from CIP BETRTRE 1,153 = = (1,153) =
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12A31H 92,570 4,464 17,089 3,372 117,495
Accumulated depreciation: REHE
At 1 January 2016 R20165F1A1H 3,233 1,312 3,684 - 8,229
Provided for the year (note 7) FREEMZ7) 2,274 760 2,520 = 5,554
At 31 December 2016 20165128318 5,507 2,072 6,204 - 13,783
Net carrying amount: BREFE
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1A18 88,184 2,417 6,321 - 96,922
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12A31H 87,063 2,392 10,885 3,372 103,712

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R PR RAR M ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

12. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(0)

154

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's buildings with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB100,506,000 (2016:
RMB14,090,000), were erected on the land where the Group is
still in the process of applying for the land use rights certificate.
The Directors are of the view that the Group is entitled to
lawfully and validly occupy and use the above-mentioned land.
The Directors are also of the opinion that the aforesaid matter
will not have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
position as of 31 December 2017.

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's buildings with a net
carrying amount of RMB84,725,000 (2016: RMB76,145,000)
were pledged to two banks to secure the bank loans (note 24

(@)

The Group's land included in property, plant and equipment
is situated in Mainland China and held under medium lease
terms.

58 4 &

[ekelel

——

12. Y% - BERRZE(E)

(@ M2017F 128318 REEKREFED
A R #100,506,000 7T (2016 F : AR
14,090,0007T ) I F RN A K EHE B F
T E RN L - EERAAEE
EREEERABEGRARER Lt - &
ENRAE - Ll EEHAEENR2017F12
A3BMEM BT S EERERTE -

(b) M2017%12A318 ' AEBEEERFEA
AR #84,7250007C (2016 F + AR
76,145,0007T ) FEFEHER T RMERTT -
ERIRITERMER (FiFE24(@)) ©

(@ FAYE  BERRENAREE AR
TEAM - P BEEOEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

13. Intangible Assets

13. BEEE

Exclusive
distribution
Software rights Total
B BREHE st
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREET T AREET T ARET T
Cost at 1 January 2017, 201741 B 1BIRAKA -

net of accumulated amortisation R Rty 334 32,120 32,454
Amortisation provided during the year FREEERE(MZ7)

(note 7) (111) (4,589) (4,700)
Impairment during the year FRRE - (27,531) (27.531)
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H 223 - 223
At 31 December 2017: 20179128318 -

Cost BN 403 41,298 41,701

Accumulated amortisation Sty (180) (13,767) (13,947)

Impairment A - (27,531) (27,531)
Net carrying amount BREDFE 223 - 223
Cost at 1 January 2016, 7201641 A1 BIRAMA -

net of accumulated amortisation kR 25T 30 40,348 40,378
Additions INE 372 - 372
Disposals BRE - (3,184) (3,184)
Amortisation provided during the year FREERE(M27)

(note 7) (68) (5,044) (5,112)
At 31 December 2016 20165F12 A31H 334 32,120 32,454
At 31 December 2016: 720169128318 :

Cost BN 403 41,298 41,701

Accumulated amortisation Sty (69) (9,178) (9,247)
Net carrying amount BREFE 334 32,120 32,454

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR
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31 December 2017 20174128318

13. Intangible Assets (Continued) 13. BELEE(E)

In order to adapt to the new pharmaceutical policy and market changes, BEENNEEBRMMSE(L  AEEHERES
having conducted prudent business assessment and thorough review of its EITTRENESTHEANBERF%Z  A£EREE
product portfolio, the Group has taken steps to terminate or suspend the 201712 A3 B IEFEER SR IESPIETHHIEE
business of some non-major products, such as Taurolite and Esafosfina, DEMEREFLREBRSER  RAREUHETERE
during the year ended 31 December 2017, and concentrated resources on ARAEEZOERANAEDISFTRENMAERS R
the marketing and promotion of the Group’s core products such as Human BT 5 8 & MR HEE RS - HRNETHEEBE
Albumin Solution and antibiotics. Such business restructuring resulted 4 BE2017F12A31B L FEIETEEMHER
in a plunge in the sales revenue of Taurolite and Esafosfina and the full EERNEEREAER D REHEBTERBEARKE
impairment of the distribution rights of RMB27,531,000 for the year ended 27,531,0007C(2016%F : TEA) °

31 December 2017 (2016: Not applicable).

14. Payments in Advance 14. FEFRKIE
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETFIT

In respect of: R -

Prepaid long-term technique service fee AR REARM RS & 8,581 =
Prepaid long-term consulting service fee AN REE ARG E 1,346 -
Construction of a warehouse EZREE 30,809 99,858

40,736 99,858

1 56 Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

15. Goodwill 15. &
RMB’000
AREFT
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of accumulated impairment 720161 A1 BIRKA - 1Bk 2FHRE 35,526
Acquisition of a subsidiary U i — IR B A A 23,106
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2016 12016512 A31 BRI A M AR EDFE 58,632
At 31 December 2016: 20169128318 -
Cost B®N 58,632
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE =
Net carrying amount BREVFE 58,632
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of accumulated impairment 7201791 A1 BIRKA - 1Bk 2FHRE 58,632
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 30) W iE — KB A R (Af7230) 4,030
Impairment during the year FARE (38,961)
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2017 MK2017F12 A31 BRI A M EAREDFE 23,701
At 31 December 2017: R20174128318 -
Cost BN 62,662
Accumulated impairment ZERE (38,961)
Net carrying amount BREFE 23,701

Goodwill is acquired through the business combination of Chengdu
Hengsheng and its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely, Linzhi
Ziguang on 31 March 2015 (Linzhi Ziguang Goodwill), the business
combination of Qingdao Ruichi on 22 December 2016 (Qingdao ) R ED R B B0 2017F9 A 19 A Ay
a0 (R ERIRRIA B8 B2 B ) P4 o

Ruichi Goodwill) and the business combination of Chengdu

Sinco Pharmaceuticals on 19 September 2017 (Chengdu Sinco

Pharmaceuticals Goodwill).

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units (“CGU") for impairment testing:

e Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals CGU (Linzhi Ziguang Goodwill o WIERAREXREEESBM(MNEEKXE

and Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals Goodwill); and

. Qingdao Ruichi CGU (Qingdao Ruichi Goodwill)

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

2R ER

REEE B EER M E2EWBE AR KRN
2015F3 A3 ANERAH(MEZENEE) - &
BEIENN20165E12 322 B 24 0 (S B IRED

BESAHMBREDBEETIRSELEN

VA

(MR EAEM DIERERR

ERRBEMAEXBE) &

s EREMREELBU(TEHRHHE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

15. Goodwill (Continued)

Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals CGU

The recoverable amount of the Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals CGU
has been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 20.1% (2016: 20.1%), which is
determined by reference to the average rates for a similar industry
and the business risk of the relevant business unit. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period were assumed to be stable.

Qingdao Ruichi CGU

The recoverable amount of the Qingdao Ruichi CGU has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 21.3% (2016: Not applicable), which is
determined by reference to the average rates for a similar industry
and the business risk of the relevant business unit. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period were assumed to be stable.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the CGU is as

15.

GEESIED)

PR R IREEEEN

Ul RV B IR E A B M AT B SR TR
BEREAEEERBRE AT HHNMBEEE
EEMBRESRERAZFEABESEETE - B
mETERTHEAMNE XS F/20.1% (2016
F:201%) BB EBUITENF L X
ARG BRI M ESRBREET - AFU LR

RERERR/IBE °

BRI EELE N

SEmMESEEBMMATKRESEIERAER
EAEEERARS AT HEANVSEEELD
REeRBBAREABETEET - ReRER
BIFTER AR E S 5 521.3% (20165 © iE
) g2 EUITEN T R KRR
BBEMNMEBRBREET - AFUENBESRE

EReELBMMABENREBEREELT

follows:
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals Qingdao Ruichi Total
W) ENEER ERR @t
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT ARMTR  AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR
Carrying amount of goodwil EEREE 23,585 58,632 116 - 23,701 58,632

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing
of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased
for expected market development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external
information sources.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

16. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 16. ANRIE - HERHMEKFIR

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BitEE ARET T AREETFTT
Current portion mENE D
Prepayments in respect of: L TIE B B97E1T30 -
— purchase of inventories —-BEFE 3,128 21,123
— financing consultation service fee —MEFZAREGE 7,048 -
— marketing and promotion service fee — A NHEERGE (a) 74,608 =
— consultation service fee —BHAREE 397 5,443
— others —E 61 469
Deposits e 1,818 1,748
Other receivables in respect of: LA TIE B AR M YR -
— value-added tax recoverable — AT UR [E] 1 EF 57,763 36,049
— purchase rebate — BB 1,048 874
— staff advances —BI#K 214 297
— interest receivable for time deposits with —REIB=EA LA LR
original maturity of over three months T EATF RRE IR 2, 514 =
— others —Hi 84 1,112
146,683 67,115
Non-current portion SERENEL D
Deposit in respect of: ATIEE B%SE -
— property, plant and equipment — W - BEREE (b) 3,000 3,000
149,683 70,115

Notes: et -

(@) The balance as at 31 December 2017 represents a prepayment of (@ F2017F12A31BNERERTE2BYE=F
RMB74,608,000 in relation to promotion service provided by ten D IHE R A E R TR A R % 74,608,000
independent third-party distributors. The total service prepayment JC ° 20179F9 A 1B E20184 10 A31 B AR AR
amounted to RMB85,485,000 covering the period from 1 September BN L EE A ARKSS,485,0007T © EHA
2017 to 31 October 2018, of which RMB10,877,000 has been released R#10,877,000t 2 B E=H 2017912 A31H
to profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2017. IEFEMELR ©

(b) The balance represents a deposit paid to an independent third (b) #HHRERERAEEEEN —SZHERREEE
party, which is controlled by State-owned Assets Supervision EEBEERZEERHNBIE=T X MR
and Administration Office of Shuangliu District, in respect of the Eal
construction of the Group’s warehouse.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial it EESERESRE - 5T A AR 2R

assets included in the above relate to receivables for which there B B B AR R G SR FENGRIB B -

was no recent history of default.

2017 %45 + MHABEERARAT 159
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2017 20174128318

17. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax assets are as follows:

17. EEFE

EIEIREENEFHINT

Changes in
fair value
of financial
liabilities
at fair value Losses
through profit available for
or loss offsetting
classified as  against taxable
held for trading profits Total
SEARHEEE
BERBHE AT PR 86
AFEFEMN FERB
cREELTE il [:0] =1 #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT ARBTR
At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 818
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss in FREFAPBEAMIEER)
Mainland China during the year (note 9) BRI (M 729) 33 7,990 8,023
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss in ERFFATBERNELT
Hong Kong during the year (note 9) I (H7:29) - 1,136 1,136
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A318 33 9,126 9,159

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had accumulated tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of RMB6,885,000 (31 December 2016: Not
applicable) that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the company in which the losses arose.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group also had accumulated tax
losses arising in Mainland China of RMB53,267,000 (31 December
2016: Not applicable) that would expire in five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
tax losses arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss making as it was
not considered probable that tax profits would be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets related to the subsidiary in Hong Kong have been
provided at the enacted profits tax rate of 16.5%. Deferred tax assets
related to the PRC subsidiaries have been provided at the enacted
corporate income tax rate of 15%.

20176128318 - REEREBEENRGT
TRIEEE A A R#6,885,0007T (2016412 A 31
A:TNEfA)  JERAAEREEESEND
AIBAR R FERBLR T

R2017F12A318 » REBERFBEAHE £/
2RISR A ARES3,267,0007T (2016412
A318 : ER) - BRAFANEE - aJRER
SHE F BB A BRI AR R ERTEF] o WAESLES
HEBEOK B R R EENTEBBERETH
BEE  REABHEWNBARMEATIEERE
R R A K SRR BB 18 o

BEEHE R R ERNELETHIBEE ECIRMBEM
BRI S HBIRLR16.5% 11 - AP EHB AT EH
MEERBEECIRAMBEMOLEMSHRTE
15%FE ©

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

18. Inventories
At the end of the reporting period, all inventories represented
purchased pharmaceutical products.

At 31 December 2017, the Group's inventories with a carrying
amount of RMB125,739,000 (2016: Nil) were pledged to secure the
Group’s other loans as further detailed in note 24(d) to the financial
statements.

18.

w5
RIRERR - FTEFERMESNES -

R2017F 128318 » AEBUGFEEREAR
#£125,739,0007C (20164 « T ) (e AAREEH
HERNER - PFBEHRNTBERERM T
24(d) °

19. Trade and Bills Receivables 19. EZERREREREE
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Trade receivables E S EWFIE 26,481 11,751
Bills receivable U EE 10,625 8,117
37,106 19,868

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on full
payment in advance of delivery either in cash or in bills receivable
accepted by a bank, except for certain customers which are granted
credit terms ranging from 45 days to 90 days. The Group maintains
strict control over the settlements of its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

Based on the invoice date, all trade receivables of the Group as of 31

December 2017 were aged within three months and were neither
past due nor impaired.

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

AEFREZEPHEZEREZ /AR NEMR
RIAR S HRITAR BB RBEZ2HNR(ET
EFRRIN - HEENEERNF45HEI0R) °
SR H i R [B] ) PR IR A B A A AR
# - WHAEEZEGEM - U EERREER
1K o B RUGRIBRTE S MBI -

BIFZREEHE - AEBEHZE2017F12A3188
2 EE SREWGRIERREN =@ AN BT &8
HASKR(E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e BIERRME (E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

19. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group discounted certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC, with a carrying amount in
aggregate of RMB200,920,000 (the “Derecognised Bills”) (2016:
RMB94,687,000). The Derecognised Bills had been accepted by
reputable banks in the PRC like Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, China Merchants Bank, Bank of Dahua, Bank of China and
Chengdu Rural Commercial Bank and had a maturity within three
months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with
the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the
Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the
PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion
of the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has
derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised Bills and
the associated advances on discounting. The maximum exposure to
loss from the Group's Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their face amounts. In the opinion of
the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement
in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year, the Group has recognised interest expenses of
RMB4,376,000 (2016: RMB560,000) (note 6) on discounted bills
receivable. No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The discounting
has been made evenly throughout the year.

58 4 ¢ [

19. EZEWFEREWRERE(E)

M2017F12A8318 » AEEMRE TERELY
BITERRNERERE  ZERKEEEREES
H A5 A R1200,920,0007T ([ &R IEHERZE])
(20164 : AR#94,687,0007T) ° #&X FFERE
BREFE TR - BERT - KERIT - PE
RIT R R ERITEP BB RITER -
RB|EHR  ZEZEMNIHAHE=MAIN
A o RIF(REARLFBEZEE) © i EAR
TEY  RIBREBRNSAEARLREEREER
RE([FE2H]) - EERE - NEECERS
REPHEKIIEREEFENRKRXOE - B
It HERIE RS IR IR RARRRRIR AR
MEERAE - AREREKIEERAZENRE
LEMAHHRARIBRRARKEEZERIEHER
ZENABERCREREMERE - 2R
B AEEHRITERZENFESEHNATE
P REK e

FR - AEBHEREWINREENFSAT AR
#4,376,0007C (20164 : AFRE560,0007T) (M
#6) - MENFRR R ERSELEHIRE
SE1E o EERARED T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
GRETERERMEE(E)

31 December 2017 20174128318

20. Available-For-Sale Investment 20.
The available-for-sale investment as at 31 December 2016
represents a one-year fund of HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB103,500,000), namely William Merger and Acquisition Fund
No. 9 (the “Fund”) issued by Shenzhen City William Financial
Holding Limited, an independent third party, on 13 July 2016. The
fixed return rate of the Fund is 3.6% per annum based on the
stable income from investment portfolio including bonds, reverse
repurchase bonds, bank deposits, negotiable certificates of deposit,
exchange market funds, other financial products which is having low
risk profile with high liquidity. The Fund is redeemable by the Group
at any time after the subscription upon giving a written notice of
not less than five days in advance of the redemption. Therefore,
the above investment is designated as an available-for-sale debt
instrument. Pursuant to the underlying contract, the Fund is principal
guaranteed upon redemption or maturity. The principal and accrued
interest income of the Fund have been fully collected at the end of
July 2017.

During the year, the accrued interest income on the Group's
available-for-sale investment recognised as “other income” in profit

or loss amounted to RMB2,024,000 (note 5) (2016: RMB1,810,000).

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Bank 21.

AfHERE
2016512 A3 1B AN ERER—FHE
120,000,000/ 7T (#8 & 7 A R #103,500,000
JL) c BB B =R E RS BT AR
ANREIR2016F7 A13BBITHE RS IEHIEINR
E&([E2]) - HeBFETEOHREAR3.6% -
RIRERIEES - PREES - RITFR - 1
FERE  INETBESUREARREAR NS R
FEMEMSRERNZEAS IEBTEWAG
HoREORTA RABREERMBNE - A&
ErAREEBERERERES - Bty - il
BWIEEAAEHEERFLIA - BIEBEMBEEL
AR HEE o B BrS 1R o ]A20174F7
AR B¢ REFFBWRABREKE -

FRN - AEBPNBRER B E M A IR
ERENERFEWABARE2,024,0007T (Ff
#5)(2016%F : AR™1,810,0007T) °

REeRREEEYREERRTES

Balances
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Cash and bank balances RE NRIRTTHEE 75,651 154,079
75,651 154,079
Less: Pledged bank balances* B BERRI TR (52,941) (52,029)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 22,710 102,050

* The balances represent time deposits of RMB22,941,000 with original
maturity of less than three months pledged for issuance of letters of
credit for the purchase of pharmaceutical products and a one-year
fixed deposit of RMB30,000,000 with a maturity date in February
2018 pledged at Bank of Shanghai by the Group for the bank loans of
RMB28,500,000 as mentioned in note 24(b) to the financial statements.

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

* EHRERIBBTHA=EAREREATIUR
B S IR A E BiTF SR A R #522,941,0007T &
AN 65 [k JE B B G5 R 5K BT RE 24(0) FT A SR 1T B 3K
AR ¥28,500,000 T A L/GHRITERE A A
201842 A #)—F HAE HiTF ;A R 30,000,000
=0
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R PR RAR M ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

21. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged Bank

22,

Balances (Continued)

The Group’s cash and bank balances at the end of the reporting

period can be further analysed as follows:

o8

[ekelel

——

21. RERASFTEYRCEMRITER

(%)

RBERR - AEENRE MRITERTE—F

DT :

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETIT

Denominated in RMB AARETE 70,897 100,945
Denominated in US$ AETTEHA 3,303 36,467
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 1,451 16,251
Denominated in Euro ABRTETHE - 416
75,651 154,079

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for the period of three months
and one year, and earn interest at the respective deposit rates. The
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Trade Payables
An aged analysis of trade payables as of the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

ARETREERABRREMEY - AW - Rig$
B OMNEE IR DI ) R HEEE - EERSEE
ERE)  AREERBERERRINERTH

RITHARE S RIEMER -

RITRSRIRES RRITERM X E R ZEF
Tt B o EHERNERHA=ZEAR—F X
BEBNTFERNER  RITEBRIEBFRTD
FRIOMEIER LR A EBRFHRT -

22. B BARR

RBEMR - BZENFAENER B HMRE

X CINE

2017 2016

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Within three months =EARN 22,522 45,832

Trade payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within 90 days.

AEENE ZENFKARTET S RBENROR

NEEE °
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23. Other Payables

[ 3
~/'°'"

23. HbENRIE

&3

——

2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BT AR®ETT ARBFT
Payables related to: BRALATIE B BIFERTFRIE -

Payroll and welfare payable B T& KEF 1,108 1,219
Property, plant and equipment ME R N ERE 1,323 1,399
Intangible assets B AE - 60
Deposits received Biuze €) 34,931 54,362
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB B B A A - 2,100
Consulting and professional fees BAREEER 30,978 1,296
Tax other than income tax FTiSFiBR SN T T8 333 372
Interest payable FERIFIE 94 -
Other payables H b fEATROE 1,262 926
70,029 61,734

Note: Vorzan

(@) The balances represented refundable deposits received from the
Group's distributors according to the sales contracts in order to
guarantee their performance under the distribution agreement.

All other payables of the Group are non-interest-bearing and

unsecured.

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

() HEHIERAREAEEEHEIEREHEBAEROM

REBESHERESHIRERS -

AEE A AN TR R 5 KRR o

S
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24. Interest-Bearing Bank And Other Loans

166

o8

24. FFRBRTREMER

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BIsE AR®T T AREFT
Bank loans: PITER -
Secured and guaranteed BERREER (a) 88,000 =
Secured BHEA (b) 58,500 35,000
Guaranteed BER (0) 11,213 110,000
Unsecured AR - 20,000
157,713 165,000
Other loans: HEMER
Secured BHEA (d) 118,102 =
275,815 165,000
Bank and other loans repayable: JEEBIRITREMER -
Within one year —FR 275,815 165,000
Notes: Hiat
(@)  The balance as at 31 December 2017 represents (i) a one-year bank (@) FM2017F12A31BNERIE(RBRETEER

loan of RMB50,000,000 bearing interest at the rate of 6.525% per
annum granted by Mianyang City Commercial Bank Co.,Ltd with
a maturity date on 24 July 2018, which is guaranteed by Sichuan
Development Financing Guarantee Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan Development”).
The guarantee provided by Sichuan Development is secured by the
Group's equity interest in Chengdu Sinco Technology and Group's
buildings located in Chengdu High-tech District and Chengdu High-tech
Western District; (i) two six-month bank loans totalling RMB20,000,000
granted by Bank of China bearing interest at the rate of 1.58% above
the one-year China Inter Bank Offered Rate (“CIBOR") with respective
maturity dates on 1 June 2018 and 5 June 2018, which are secured
by the Group’s certain building located in Chengdu Shuangliu District
and jointly guaranteed by the Company, Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
and Chengdu Hengsheng; and (iii) a six-month bank loan of
RMB 18,000,000 granted by Bank of China bearing interest at the
rate of 2.01% above the one-year CIBOR with a maturity date on 28
February 2018, which is secured by the Group's certain building located
in Chengdu Shuangliu District and jointly guaranteed by the Company,
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals and Chengdu Sinco Technology;

TROBRAREEN —FHETERARE
50,000,0007T (3= F 7| %6.525% 51 £.) * 122018
F7R24R BN )| BEREERBDER
AR R DER - W)IIERATRENER
FA N 55 [ A B AP LR BT 0 A R AN R B
PR ER = TR A ER i #T P R AR R (i)
FERITRENMBEAEABTEREEAR
#20,000,0007¢ + HE—FHARERITRERS
([FREIRITRIZERES ) IN1.58% K FI R B &
H42018F6 A1H K%2018F6 ASHEIH - A
REBA A EBETERE TEFEERLHR
AR ) ERE B K BB B RIER
KGR ERITEEONEARTERARE
18,000,0007T & —4F Hish B8R 1T R E 47 200
2.01% AR BIH2018F2 A28 EIH - B
BAASEA R EE REMNE TEFIEERRLA
ARE] - PO FRFAR B2 I B EB RN A i R
BR
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24. Interest-Bearing Bank And Other Loans
(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  The balance as at 31 December 2017 represents (i) a one-year bank
loan of RMB28,500,000 granted by Bank of Shanghai bearing interest
at the rate of 4.3935% per annum with a maturity date on 13 February
2018, which is secured by a one-year fixed deposit of RMB30,000,000;
and (ii) a one-year bank loan of RMB30,000,000 granted by Bank
of Shanghai bearing an interest rate of 5.655% per annum with a
maturity date on 22 January 2018, which is secured by the Group's
100% equity interests in Linzhi Ziguang and 40% equity interests in
Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals.

(©)  The balance as at 31 December 2017 represents three-month bank
loans of US$558,000 (equivalent to RMB3,648,000) and US$1,158,000
(equivalent to RMB7,565,000) granted by China Merchants Bank to
the Group, both of which bear interest at the rate of 2.5% above
three-month LIBOR with maturity dates on 27 March 2018 and 26
March 2018 respectively. They are jointly guaranteed by Sichuan
Kelun Pharmaceutical Trading Co., Ltd, an independent third party
incorporated in Chengdu, coupled with the Company.

(d)  The balance as at 31 December 2017 represents other loans borrowed
from two independent third parties with principal of RMB118,102,000
in aggregate, which bear interest at effective interest rates ranging from
17.7% to 20.7% per annum with maturity dates in March 2018. Such
loans are secured by the Group's inventories with a carrying amount of
RMB125,739,000 (note 18).

Management has assessed that the fair values of the above interest-
bearing bank and other loans approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

24,

B4R HiER(E)
MiaE : (48)
(b) 2017912 A31 BRI RIE() R E/ERTREH

()

K —FHRTER AR K28,500,0007T * ZFF
&4.3935% 5T B 201842 B 13E EIE - B
— F Hi[E £ 17 5 A R #30,000,000 T {EH 38
Rl ESRTREO—FHRITERARE
30,000,0007T * & FF#L5.655% 7 2142018
F1R285H - BRASERMZRAHZE
P4 SR PA D) || FREA B340 % HO AR AE (EHCHR o

R20176F12 A31 BMEABRIEPRBERITET
REBH =8 ARITERE58,0005 T (HHERA
R ¥3,648,0007T) 1,158,000k T (HHER AR
#57,565,0007T) @ MEIE=E A mBERTTRIZ
FEM2.5%MF KB - WA FIR2018F3 A
278 %2018 3 A28 R H - fRTEAERFEMAN L
KB E =) | BHe SR M BR8] RAR
A EHER o

R2017F 12 ANV BMERENEAMEBLE=
FEHR2018F3 B BHASERAFARE
118,102,000 TH B « N FFEF £17.7%
E20.7%HWEBRF K L) - ZERURAEBEA
R 125,739,000 T AN £ B 17 EEHE R (M &E
18) ©

EIRERE - A RERTREMERNAFE
HEENERMERS  TEARZETANEY
B ER -
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25. Financial Assets/(Liabilities) at Fair Value

58 &) ¢ [

25. PERFFEREEBERRIE A FER

through Profit or Loss Classified as Held for ENSREE (88
Trading
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Currency forward contract BEHREEH (218) 146

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss classified as
held for trading represented fair value losses on currency forward
contract at fair value as at 31 December 2017.

As of 31 December 2017, the outstanding currency forward
contract of US$1,706,000 with maturity date in January 2018
were entered into by the Group and the Bank of East Asia, Limited
("BEA") and were designated by the Group as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss classified as held for trading upon
initial recognition. The fair value of the currency forward contract
was estimated by an independent professional valuer by using the
discounted cash flow model.

DEABIFEESBIEREATEHENERA
ERMR2017F12 A31BIEAFEFENEER
HIA WM A FEEE -

20175612318 - AEBEEFHRTER
AR ([REHRITDITBERFBPELRBFED
1,706,000 7T * BIHAH A20184 18 » AR
RN EEIEE AN EAFEEERRA
SR AT EFENEREE  EBRBGHNHA
FEHBEEGEMEAMERS TSR G
B @

26. Bonds 26.B%

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiaE AR®T T AREFT
June 2017 Bonds 201756 AES (a) 100,152 -
December 2017 Bonds 201712 AEH (b) 33,704 =

Carrying amount of bonds R20176F12A31HH
at 31 December 2017 BEHRAEE 133,856 =
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26. Bonds (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

On 27 June 2017, the Company issued unlisted bonds in the aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (equivalent to RMB104,150,000)
(the “June 2017 Bonds”). The Company'’s obligations under the bonds
are unconditionally guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin, the Chairman,
executive Director and Co-chief executive officer of the Company, and
secured by (i) 1,049,990 shares of the Company held by Risun; and (i)
the entire issued share capital of Risun. The maturity date of the bonds
falls 24 months after the date of issue. The nominal effective interest
rate is 10% per annum and the interest should be payable quarterly.
Pursuant to the bond supplemental deed executed by the Company
in respect of amendments of certain terms and conditions of the June
2017 Bonds which took effective on 12 October 2017, the nominal
effective rate was amended to 15% per annum with interest payable
quarterly and the maturity date was amended to 27 March 2018.

The related interest expense of the June 2017 Bonds for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB8,117,000 (2016: Not
applicable).

On 30 June 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB34,717,000). The Company’s obligations under the convertible
bonds are unconditionally guaranteed by Mr. Huang Xiangbin and
secured by (i) 1,049,990 shares of the Company held by Risun; and
(i) the entire issued share capital of Risun. Pursuant to the convertible
bond supplemental deed which took effective on 18 December 2017,
all rights and obligations of the holder of the convertible bonds and the
Company in relation to the conversion rights were deleted. Meanwhile,
the maturity date was amended to 30 March 2018 and the interest
rate was amended to 15% per annum with interest payable quarterly.
Management was of the view that the revised terms and conditions of
the convertible bonds were substantially different and the modification
was automatically required to be treated as an extinguishment. Hence,
the Group derecognised the existing liability and recognised a new
bond (the “December 2017 Bonds").

The related interest expense of the December 2017 Bonds for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB2,860,000 (2016: Not
applicable).

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

26.8% (&)

BAE -

(a)

R2017F6 A27H * ARAIBITACRER
120,000,000/ 7T (FHE M AR #E104,150,0007T)
HIFEETEH([2017F6 AEH]) - AARIGE
FAEENBRTHEARBERF - JITESRIET
TRAREERE W 28 A SR AR HE R » QL BA() RisunFR
AR RE]1,049,99088 87 + (i) Risunfy2
BEBITRAMEAER - EHFMEIEIR AEITH
HBm4EAER - FEERFNEAE10% -
FEBREL - IRIBEM2017F 108128 £
R AR B FIER]2017F6 A BEHE TIRR &
HMEINEFEARZE  FEERFRX%A
15%MmA S AEESM - FIH AR A2018F3 A
278 °

REZE2017F12A31B IEFEM2017F6 AE
FHEEN SR A ARKS 117,0007(2016
& NEA) -

MR2017F6 A30R + RRAIBTACRER
40,000,000 7T (8 E 7 A R #34,717,0007T )
K PJIRARE S - AR R IR ES EENET
R EEW e AR IER - WLA() RisunFrFE A
) 7K A 7] 1,049,990 & A% 13 F(ii) Risun 89 2 #F
BBEITRAERER - RIEMR2017F12H18H
SRR AR ESF R - ATRREFIFEA
RARRE@RREN AR REEE MR -
B - BIHAKA2018F3 308 » £FRkA
15%MABERELN - ERERA  AHARE
FERARIGHRETAKRTIER © ZIEFTEES
WRARB - Bt - NEBKILHERIRE ABERTE
REEE([2017F12AEE]) »

REZE2017F12A31BIEFER2017F12AEF
FHMERBFEH S A ARY2,860,0007T (2016
& NEA) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) @ 33 \t’ @ ‘E‘E‘E‘
GABSRRME (8) ] = e
31 December 2017 2017412 A31H
27. Share Capital 27. B&
Shares B 13
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFTT
Authorised: VERE ¢
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2016: 10,000,000,000/%

3,800,000,000) ordinary shares of
HK$0.0001 each

Issued and fully paid:
1,615,220,000 (31 December 2016:
1,615,220,000) ordinary shares of

HK$0.0001 each

(20165128318 :

3,800,000,0004%)

IR (E0.00018TTHY

LAk 822 304

BRTRARE
1,615,220,000/%
(20165128318 :
1,615,220,0008%)
FHE(EO0.000178 TTHY

EiR 130 130
During the year, the authorised share capital was increased from FR - EAERAKE BEIMNEE6,200,000,0000%
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000,000 shares of HK$0.0001 each & /%0.00017% 7T B 7 217 B 15 F 380,000/ 7T
to HK$1,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.0001 (43 /3,800,000,0000% &A% 0.0001 7% 7T K B 17)
each by the creation of 6,200,000,000 additional unissued shares #h0 Z 1,000,0007% 7t (% £ 10,000,000,000 fi%
of HK$0.0001 each. The increase in authorised share capital was FRZ0.0001E TTHIAR D) © EINETEIRAD &
approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting PR ERA2017F 12 B29B M R R R E ([ R
(the "EGM") on 29 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the HRlKe |) EbE - R2017F128310 - AAQ
Company had 1,615,220,000 shares in issue and 8,384,780,000 AIE 8171,615,220,0000% i 17+ REFTHRID A

unissued shares.

8,384,780,0000% °

A summary in the Company'’s issued share capital is as follows: ARABBETRARENT :

Number of Nominal value of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares

HBERBE EEREE

RMB’000

ARMT T

At 1 January 2017 20171 A18 1,615,220,000 130
At 31 December 2017 20176124318 1,615,220,000 130
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28. Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a Share Option Scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the development of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Share Option Scheme are employees (whether full time or part
time) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”), including
directors (including independent non-executive directors) and senior
management of the Company, its subsidiaries and any Invested
Entity. The Share Option Scheme was approved by the Company'’s
shareholders on 1 February 2016 and became effective upon the
listing of the shares of the Company and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from 1 February 2016.
Please refer to the 2016 annual report of the Company for details.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

28.

BRAERE

RARRABRETS - BEMENEBEEEE
LEBAE BB EERE R R E R - BARE
SFEMAER2HEEAARNNT - B AR SA
EEBFETEMBRENER((RETR]NES
(EmEBRE) - BE4AAR) - EMBAR K
AR EERBNES(BEBYIFENTES) KD
BREEE - BRETEIEN2016F2A1HER
A RIREBLEL AR R g e - Bk
FESITEUESER] - BAIAGH2016F2A1H B
HTEREEAER - FEBEL2HAAR2016F
;ﬁ °

AT RER R AR BB BITTRABARE :

Weighted
average Number of
exercise price options
AT HITREE BREHE
Notes HK$ per Share ‘000
FisE BRERHET T4
As of 1 January 2017 120171818 (i) 0.568 30,000
Forfeited during the year FARZI (ii) 0.568 (12,150)
As of 31 December 2017 2017128318 0.568 17,850
Notes: Wiz -

(i)  The share options outstanding as at 1 January 2017 represented
30,000,000 share options granted by the Company on 21 September
2016 at an exercise price of HK$0.568 per share to certain eligible
participants of the Company in respect of their contributions to the
Group's development under the Share Option Scheme.

(i) The share options granted to certain eligible participants under the

Share Option Scheme were forfeited following their resignations during
the year.

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

(i)  F2017F1A1BHRITENBRERRARD
MARARETRERSHEHASEERREMED
RIEE - BIEBARERT 8IIR1 T E&AR0.56874%
JLH20164F9 A21 A A% F# 1 #930,000,0001%
RERRAE -

(i)  FA - REBRETINETRERZEERE
ARB R I S RHEIRORUR -

m
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28. Share Option Scheme (Continued) 28.
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as

172

follows:

31 December 2017

[ekelel

—

S m &

BRESTE(E)
72017412 431 A &20164 12 A31 A M A1THE
BRI TEE AT T

20175128318

Number of Exercise price
options per share Exercise period
BREHE BRITEE TEEH
‘000 HK$
T BT
7,140 0.568 From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022
20179F9A21HZ=202249H20H
5,355 0.568 From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022
20189 A21H=202249H20H
5,355 0.568 From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022
201969 A21HZE202249A20H
17,850

31 December 2016

2016%12H31H

Number of Exercise price
options per share Exercise period
BRERHE BRITEE TR
‘000 HK$
T3 BT
12,000 0.568 From 21 September 2017 to 20 September 2022
20179 A21H=202249H20H
9,000 0.568 From 21 September 2018 to 20 September 2022
2018%F9A21HZ=202249H20H
9,000 0.568 From 21 September 2019 to 20 September 2022
2019F9A21H=202249H20H
30,000

The Company recognised a share option expense of RMB1,352,000

during the year (2016: RMB995,000).

FRAREERBRERS B ARY1,352,000
7L(2016%F : AREE995,0007T) °

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited * Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

28. Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme was estimated as of the date of grant, using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) Nil
Expected volatility (%) 48.75
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.72

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily
be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company had 17,850,000 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 17,850,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$1,785 and share premium of at least HK$10,137,015
(before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 17,850,000 share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 1.1% of the Company's
shares in issue as of that date.

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

28.

BRERTEI(E)

IRIB BRI AT 811 B AR R4S H A BB A Y 12
FETDIARH B A ZBREA G5 WK
P BB AR R RO IR B AR 1 © TREDIFTERAHY
BA2E

BB (%) =z
TR 1R (%) 48.75
R R (%) 0.72

TR HROR VR R S2 R W TR R oK B SR R
BRBAERESR -

AAEATERBEMACRLBRENEME
e

2017612 A318 - REBEREE - XA A
Y75 17,850,00017 # AR T LAY BB AR #E o RIZAR
AR B AT EARZEE - WEEITERRITER
BENRHE - A5 EREEHNEETT 17,850,000 8 AN A A
3R AR A R S8 AN A% 2K 1, 7857 T K ik {7 i (B =
10,137,0158 7T (F0BRZE1TRZAT) ©

MZEMEHRAER S - RIBBIESTE - &
N AIHEF 17,850,00017 = ARTTEHORBAE - (HA
RAERZ A #ITRDA1.1% °
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29. Reserves
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(a)

(b)

()

174

Share premium account

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium is distributable as dividend
on the condition that the Company is able to pay its debts
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business at the
time the proposed dividend is to be paid.

Contributed surplus

The contributed reserve represents the aggregate nominal
amount of the paid-up capital of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the
respective articles of association of subsidiaries domiciled
in Mainland China, each of the PRC subsidiaries is required
to allocate 10% of its profit after tax, as determined in
accordance with PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus reserve (the
“SSR") until such reserve reaches 50% of its registered capital.

As Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals, Sinco Shanghai and Qingdao
Yusheng are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises, allocation
to the SSR is not required. According to the Rules for the
Implementation of Foreign-funded Enterprise Law of the PRC
and articles of association of Sichuan Sinco Pharmaceuticals,
Sinco Shanghai and Qingdao Yusheng, they are required to
allocate 10% of their profit after tax in accordance with PRC
GAAP to the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF") until such
reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered capital.

The SSR and the SRF are non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation and subject to certain restrictions set out
in the relevant PRC regulations. They can be used to offset
accumulated losses or capitalised as paid-up capital.

29. {#E
AEENREESEREIRAAEE RBEFEHS
BB RE NS A S EBHR 2T -

(@)

(b)

(c)

IR A7 B AR

ERBRMEERIFASESEARERE °
RESEXMHRASHSARE  WAR
ARIKERR SEFEEHERERTEELS
RHRHREER - BIROEER 2R SR

=1
B

BERAER
REBRBIEARARAE AREED)| EE
BRERGRAREE -

EE R

ARIE A B2 BE KL B A 3 A B B
AEBEMNAERERMAR - STEHERF
BREBEEN10% (REFEARES
RAEE) BEEAERRFH(DEERS
) BEEZFREZINEEMELRH
50% /3 1E °

R B AR - BHR(LE) R
SRBRTIINBELE  WBARKEZA
ERHREHRE - RETBESINELRAEEA
AIA R O )1 R A B2 - ERPR (L8) &
EEERMEMERRAR  ZFEQFAR
ERBEAREFRADBLE 10% B LEF
srEREES(DEEREEE])  BHE
ZEREEENEEMEANS0%RLE

BRBRBEARZBBTBREARMEETR
HIFTERSN - EAEBBREEIEEFHBES
ARk - MEF AR R EIERE R
ERERRA
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29. Reserves (Continued)
(d) Share option reserve

29. fEE(E)
(d) EBERfERE

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either
be transferred to the share premium account when the related
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits

BREREEECRBERRITEBRE
HRFE  E—THBERPBRRME2.4
BRI RER A A & 5 R AR
o 5% BRI AR B R A S 1T (o By A
ERMEER - KN EERERED B
R B ERE R

should the related options expire or be forfeited.

30. Business Combination

On 19 September 2017, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest
in Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals from an independent third
party, namely Chengdu Jisi Feili Pharmaceuticals Technology Co.,
Ltd.. Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals is primarily engaged in the
trading of pharmaceutical products. The acquisition was made for
the application for the land use right certificate where the Group’s
warehouse was located. The total purchase consideration for the

30. ¥¥KE6t

2017698198 » AEBBEBILE=FKEH
BIEF B R A IR A 5 U BB AR HP R B A
B2 EPARAE - RAPERI A B EEEZNEELE
SEW - WEDNARBAEEE EMTMA T
HEFRAEEMEL - WEBBEREAARE
4,520,0007T ' EREZE2017F12A318IEFE
St e

acquisition was RMB4,520,000 which was paid during the year

ended 31 December 2017.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Chengdu

RUEE A IR A B N A BB EER AR

Sinco Pharmaceuticals as of the date of acquisition were as follows: BAFENT :
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
4153
BN
ATE
RMB’'000
ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment (note 12) M - B RREHE12) 194
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEED 4
Other receivables H b pe kI8 562
Other payables H b e 518 (270)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATESROAI B EEFERRE 490
Goodwill on acquisition (note 15) W E AR B (ML 15) 4,030
4,520

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR
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30. Business Combination (Continued)

176

30. ¥BE6(E)

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
Wi B
[BEiE3:
AEE
RMB’000
AR¥ETT

Satisfied by: ATRBARSZ AT :

Cash Re

4,520

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of a
subsidiary is as follows:

WE—XMBARNABRSRESNTET

RMB’000

ARBTFT

Cash consideration ReRE (4,520)
Cash and bank balances acquired i8R & RIRTTHE SR 4
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Re RN EEWRLIFE (4,516)

Since the acquisition, Chengdu Sinco Pharmaceuticals contributed
RMB607,000 to the Group's revenue and RMB25,706,000 to the
consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 would have been RMB806,723,000 and
RMB 186,778,000 respectively.

BUEBNAR  KBER BB AEEEHE
2017F 12 A31 B IEFEN KRR KRG EEER
AR#607,0007T % AR #25,706,0007T °

BREBAGHRFVET  MAKERBE

2017F12A31B EFENKREREEBD RIES
AR #806,723,0007T & AR ¥ 186,778,0007T °
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31. Note to the Consolidated Statement of Cash

Flows

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

000
000

@o,

31. REBEERERME

BMELDAGRER

Interest Dividends Bank and

Bonds payable paid other loans

RITR

&% EAFE BRERE HitE™®

RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBFIT ARBTT ARETT ARETET

(note 26) (note 23) (note 36) (note 24)

(Hiz#26) (Hfz#23) (H:#36) (Kis#24)

At 1 January 2017 201751818 - - - 165,000
Changes from financing cash flows ﬁ%ﬁ 139,881 (33,607) - 111,618

Non-cash changes:
Foreign exchange movement (6,025) - - (803)
Interest expense - 33,701 - -
At 31 December 2017 M20175128318 133,856 94 - 275,815
At 1 January 2016 E/\2016fﬁ1ﬁ1 H = = = 81,915
Changes from financing cash flows ,ﬁ%ﬁ@} - (9,187) (4,648) 83,115
Non-cash changes:
Foreign exchange movement e - - 93 (30)
Share premium vyl = = 48555 -
Interest expense FMEFREZ = 9,187 - -
At 31 December 2016 R20165F12A31H = = = 165,000
Changes in assets arising from financing activities BB RS EES
Prepaid

long-term Prepaid

consultation consultation

service fee service fee

BN RE K0

AR BRI E

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AR¥T T

(note 14) (note 16)

(Ktat14) (Hfat16)

At 1 January 2017 M2017F1A1H - -
Changes from financing cash flows RMERESREY 1,346 7,048
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12H31H 1,346 7,048

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

é O
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32. Operating Lease Arrangements 32. REMENRH
As lessee fERAEMBA
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating AEBIREBLKEHRAOTHHEE THAYE - ¥
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms ¥HPETAENT—ZE=F - RBREHER  £%
ranging from one to three years. At the end of the reporting BIRBE T ARG E AN R AR R KEBEER
period, the Group had total future minimum lease payments under TEAAZEINT -
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFT
Within one year —FR 979 925
In the second to fifth years, inclusive EEZRFRN(BEERME) 627 1,121
1,606 2,046
33. Commitments 33. &iE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the AREBNREARNERFALEL T -
reporting period:
2017 2016
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMEES T
— Construction of a warehouse —EREE 84,691 2,265

34. Related Party Transactions
(@) During the year, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties:

34. BEARS

(@) MFEA - NEEEA T ERETETH
BEARS :

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFIT
Bonds guaranteed by HEEW L
Mr. Huang Xiangbin RROES 133,856 -
Bonds secured by LARisunfFis B 8RR Al
Risun’s shares over the Company R E IR ES 133,856 -

178
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34. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 34. BEARZ (B)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of (b) XEEFTEEIE AESIRM
the Group
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERREWER 2,543 2,274
Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIHK 23 4
Equity-settled share option expense LARR I 45 E B R I P 2 (166) 166
2,400 2,444

35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35,

Policies

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and bank
balances, pledged bank balances, trade and bills receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, which arise directly
from its operations. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly include
trade and other payables, financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss classified as held for trading, interest-bearing bank and
other loans and bonds.

Risk management is carried out by the finance department which
is led by the Group's executive directors. The Group’s finance
department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close co-
operation with the Group'’s operating units. The main risks arising
from the Group'’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that
adequate resources are available to manage the above risks and to
create value for its shareholders. The Directors regularly review these
risks and they are summarised below.

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR

MBEREREBERBE

AEENEREETREBRLEERESTNRS
KRR - CHEMRITER - BHRERER
FEWERE - FANFIR - ImEUREMRKGRIA
AEENSREEIZETEI REMENK
B PRAREEERATEFABSENERE
& FFERTREMENRRES

MBI EARERTERNRE TETRRE
2 o REEMMBEFIREEELTYEE A
Hp RFHAM R - KEARESRTANE
ZRBATERR  INERR - FERR KRS
BB -

REBNIMEE R EIERRSKBRATHER
FANER bt REB R AR REIEEE - EFEH
mal i SRR AR AT
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to the
Group’s bank deposits and interest-bearing bank and other loans.
The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing bank
loans are disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk exposure arising
from all of its interest-bearing loans through the use of floating rates
or a mix of floating and fixed rates. The Group also holds certain
borrowings at floating interest rates so as to manage part of the
fair value interest rate risk. In addition, the Group has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge against interest rate risk.

As of 31 December 2017, floating interest rate borrowings
accounted for about 23% (2016: 18%) of the Group’s borrowings,
and fixed interest rate borrowings accounted for about 77% (2016:
82%) of the Group’s borrowings). Management would adjust the
proportion of floating rate borrowings based on changes in the
market interest rates to reduce the significant impact of the interest
rate risk.

If there would be a general increase/decrease in the market interest
rates by one percentage point, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s consolidated pre-tax profit/loss would have decreased/
increased by approximately RMB2,758,000 (2016: RMB1,650,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2017, and there would be no
impact on other components of the consolidated equity, except for
retained earnings, of the Group. The sensitivity analysis above has
been determined assuming that the change in market interest rates
had occurred at the end of the year and had applied the exposure to
interest rate risk to those financial instruments in existence at those
dates.

58 4 ¢ [

35. MR EREREBERBEGE)

e
AEEEE EZHABITFREGERITREM

EFERR N R R o ME R BRITEFER
HIR BRI IR EE24

AEREFEBEREEN EZE M EE N KRS
BEREEMARERMEENRSREN XA
@ o REBIFAE TRFBNERTBNEEN
BB R FHENRER © 5 - ANEEIL EE
FR{EA IR R BRI R R o

20176128318 B EEEGARERE
B#123%(2016%F : 18%) * METEFEEE(
REBEELNT7% (20165 : 82%) - BEIREE
RIS S B AL ZEFREE LG - LARRE
FEREBRNERTE o

RS F REE EF /TR —EAEH % - &
EHMEERBFITENERT  REBREE
201712 A3 B L FENERABIEF, (5
B)ERL,En A R 2,758,000t (2016
F : AR¥1,650,0007T) + HAEELEETA
HE s (RBEFIBRINIERE o GRS
DM TR S REHENFERREAAEED
KB BB ZE SR T AELFRER KD

R MEE °
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk
The Group’s purchase of products from the overseas suppliers is
denominated in US$. Most of the Group's assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, except for certain items of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank balances, other receivables, bank
borrowings, bonds and trade payables that are denominated in US$
and HK$.

The Group does not enter into any hedging transactions to manage
the potential fluctuation in foreign currencies. Management
monitors the Group’s foreign currency exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5.0% change
in RMB against US$ and HK$. The 5.0% is the rate used when
reporting currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in the foreign currency rate. The sensitivity analyses of
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of each
reporting period have been determined based on the adjustment of
translation of the monetary assets and liabilities at the end of each
reporting period for a 5.0% change in RMB against US$ and HK$,
respectively, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before tax for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016
(due to changes in the fair value of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank balances, other receivables, bank borrowings, trade
payables and bonds denominated in US$ and HK$):

5. MERKREERERBK(E)

HNEE B
KBS E A R IA L TEAHE - A%
BABHEEREEAARKE - HETHS
RESEEY  BEMRTES - LbmkR
RIS - (RS RN E BRI AE T R
TERHE -

AEE W BT TIN5 A IR BT R INE
KE) - EREEERAEEINERR - WAKESR
FHEREZREIHTERINERS

TRIRARE KT RATTEREE5.0%
BREE - 5.0% AR EBERE A B 2HRINE
ERBRATALLE - AEEEHINEIERSIEA] g
FEETHE o AEER S IRE 2R £ R INE R SR
BREDN - TR M2 RIFTER
BT RARERETRABITEEEE5.0%
DRARSREPREREERABHREBEYAE
EEEE2017FK%2016F12 A31 B ILFERT
AR A W 2T (AR AETT B THENER
S MRSEEY BERBRITES - HaEUER
1 RITEE - BNESREREFNATEE
AR ¢

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETTT

Increase/(decrease) in profit before tax BB I (L)
If RMB weakens against US$ and HK$ M AR R ETRABTRE (8,879) 9,276
If RMB strengthens against US$ and HK$ i ARHE N T RABTTHHE 8,879 (9,276)

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Credit risk
Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
and time deposits are held in major reputable financial institutions
located in Mainland China, which management believes are of high
credit quality. The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise trade and bills receivables, and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group has
no other financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit
risk.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy customers
with no requirement for collateral. It is the Group’s policy that
except for certain customers which are granted credit terms ranging
from 45 days to 90 days, customers should make full prepayment
either in cash or bank accepted bills receivable. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and senior
management of the Company keeps reviewing and assessing the
creditworthiness of the Group's existing customers on an ongoing
basis. The Group’s exposure to credit risk is also influenced by the
individual characteristics of each customer and default risk of the
industry in which the customers operate. As the Group’s exposure to
credit risk spreads over a diversified portfolio of customers, there is
no significant concentration of credit risk.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of funds by
considering the maturity of both its financial liabilities and financial
assets and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and
other loans, bonds and its own funding sources.

58 4 &

35. MR EREREBERBEGE)

FERRE
AEBRRBO B KRS EBYWASEREFH
FRNPEARAERFEEN T RS REE -
EEENEZSERKEARREEER - K
SEEMEREE(REEIERFARELR
BAREMERUKBE)NEERBREEH T2
%) REERMOEERZE TANKEE - K
SEVEEGHEEAEERBRNSREE

AEEERERANBEEFPETRS  TEK
Hif - REBEAKEORE  REREEHN T
45HEQHMETERIN  BEFRAR S HE
WIRTTA R RIBET2RERN - XEERIR
H 1 AR U Bl B0 FE MR M A B AR E I - AARNAR]
BREREFERS LA AKERARFNE
2 AEEEHENERERARTEEREFHES
FEEEPEEMETENENRRNTE - &
RASEEHNEERBRERZTILEFAES
AW |mBARTHEERR

A - MR A SR  EEEEE  TAEE
BEERRLTEA -

REBEESRR
FTEEFBHERSHMBBERSRAENTIH AL
REEEEEENBESRBERESEROE

G o
AA

AEEE B 1R AR B A BT R B
EHRAASEL TR A SH BRI RBTY
B8 -
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35. BiEKREEEERKE (&)
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) hREIE SRR (E)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end UTALER SR A ERREHRERE LR
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted WAREHER

payments, is as follows:

2017
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
RERE LR=EA ==+=EA BE

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR AR®T:R

Interest-bearing bank and other loans &t 8817 & E B 3k - 209,696 71,512 281,208
Trade payables B 5 8 - 22,522 - 22,522
Other payables H b e~ 08 1,262 32,395 34,931 68,588
Bonds &% - 138,569 - 138,569
1,262 403,182 106,443 510,887
2016

Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Total
REREF LIR=ER ==+={@A ks

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT AREBTT ARBTT ARETT

Interest-bearing bank loans STESRTTER = 10,092 158,623 168,715
Trade payables 2 N HRIE = 45,832 = 45,832
Other payables H b 3R E 926 2,755 54,362 58,043

926 58,679 212,985 272,590

2017 64 - BEEBERARAT) 183
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35,

Policies (Continued)

Fair values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time and are
based on relevant market information and information about the
financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature
and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgement
and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash deposits and interest-
bearing bank and other loans approximated to their fair values based
on the prevailing borrowing rates available for deposits and loans
with similar terms and maturities during the reporting period.

The fair values of financial liability at fair value through profit or
loss classified as held for trading are estimated based on valuation
techniques. The model incorporates observable inputs of certain
foreign exchange rates and risk-free interest rates. The carrying
amounts of financial liability at fair value through profit or loss
classified as held for trading are the same as their fair values. The fair
value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss classified as held for trading measured
at fair value required observable inputs (Level 2) as of 31 December
2017 and 2016.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial instruments
approximated to their fair values due to the short term to maturity at
the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group'’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or raise new capital from its investors.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing financial risk during the year.

184

000
000
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BHEREERRRBEE(E)
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ERENERFE - B2017F K%2016F12 A31
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 35,

Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group is currently funding its capital expenditure through
internal generated funds from its operations, proceeds from the
bonds and new bank and other borrowings. The Group monitors
capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity
plus net debt. Net debt is defined as interest-bearing bank and other
loans, trade payables, other payables, tax payable and bonds, less
cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank balances, excluding
liabilities incurred for working capital purposes. Equity includes
equity attributable to the owners of the parent and non-controlling
interests. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period is as

BHEREERRRBEE(E)

EXEE(E)
REEREEBEEEMSARES  BEFAE
ARG RIT R EMEERNEEARFRX - K
SENMRAGLX(AEFERESRBEMNERE
FR)EREN - AEFRIE RRTEAEME
K BHEMNFR - EMEMFOR - BATIRR
BErpRe kR EBYREERRITERD
BEALEESBENMELNER) - BB
BRRIEA ARIGER R IFERER - EHR
MWEELENT

follows:

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREFTT

Interest-bearing bank and other loans HESRITREMER 275,815 165,000
Trade payables Z S EMFE 22,522 45,832
Other payables H b fEATRUE 70,029 61,734
Tax payable FERI B 2,546 12,221
Bonds (E6 133,856 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B HERIESEEY (22,710) (102,050)
Less: Pledged bank balances B BEBRITARR (52,941) (52,029)
Net debt BEFERE 429,117 130,708
Equity s 272,730 457,275
Equity and net debt A EFE 701,847 587,983
Gearing ratio BEHE 61.1% 22.2%

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company

o8

36. AD A AR TR

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

[ekelel

——

BRARRRBE PBROFBAAREROT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEHEATMEE 306 306
Payments in advance TERTFRIE 1,347 -
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 1,653 306
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments TEfTERIR 6,415 313
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW M B A Bl kT8 409,706 259,242
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEED 395 15,908
Total current assets REBEELE 416,516 275,463
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENBE
Other payables H A R FRIE 296 61
Amounts due to a subsidiary e —EM B A RFIA 26,503 3,618
Bonds &% 133,856 -
Total current liabilities REEEEE 160,655 3,679
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 255,861 271,784
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEERABAR 257,514 272,090
Net assets EEFE 257,514 272,090
EQUITY e
Issued capital BEITRA 130 130
Reserves (note) & (H1E) 257,384 271,960
Total equity ERER 257,514 272,090
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36. Statement of Financial Position of the Company 36. & R KR AT (&)

(Continued)

Note: B
The movements in the Company's reserves are as follows: RATRUZESBOT -
Retained
Share Share earnings/
premium option (Accumulated
account reserve losses) Total
RERF,
ROBER BRRERE (RFHER) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT ARBFT AREBFIT ARETT
At 1 January 2016 201651 A81H 14,533 - (681) 13,852
Issue of new shares BEITEIR 277,762 - - 277,762
Share issue expenses RID BT (28,853) = = (28,853)
Interim 2016 dividend declared FIR2016FH HIRE (4,555) = = (4,555)
Equity-settled share option VARG #E 5 55 1) B P
arrangements (note 28) ZHE(f77228) - 995 - 995
Profit and total comprehensive income FRHEMRZEBA
for the year Fk] - - 12,759 12,759
At 31 December 2016 #20164F12 4318 258,887 995 12,078 271,960
At 31 December 2016 and MR20165F12A31B R
1 January 2017 20171818 258,887 995 12,078 271,960
Equity-settled share option VARRAE 4 E O B AR A
arrangements (note 28) ZHE(f15£28) = 1,352 = 1,352
Loss and total comprehensive loss FAEBBELREEER
for the year 4azE = = (15,928) (15,928)
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 258,887 2,347 (3,850) 257,384

2017 3 » EIRIARBEZERER AR
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37. Events After the Reporting Period

(a) Issue of the first tranche of the first part CB and
conversion of the first tranche of the first part CB
On 12 October 2017, the Company and Crede GG Il Ltd.
(the “Subscriber”) entered into a subscription agreement
(the "Subscription Agreement”). On 6 December 2017, the
Company and the Subscriber entered into an amended and
restated subscription agreement (the “Amended and Restated
Subscription Agreement”) to amend, restate, supersede and
replace in its entirety the Subscription Agreement. Pursuant
to the Amended and Restated Subscription Agreement, the
Subscriber shall subscribe for, and the Company shall issue, the
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) with an aggregate
principal amount of up to US$150,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,170,000,000) to be issued in up to 30
tranches, comprising the first part of the Convertible Bonds
in the principal amount of up to US$50,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$390,000,000) (the “First Part CB”) and
the second part of the Convertible Bonds in the principal
amount of up to US$100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$780,000,000). The maturity date of the Convertible Bonds
is falling 36 months after the issue date of such tranche of the
Convertible Bonds or, if that is not a business day, the first
business day thereafter. The nominal interest rate is 4% per
annum and the interest should be paid semi-annually.

On 17 January 2018, the first tranche of the First Part CB (the
“First Tranche”) in the principal amount of US$5,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$39,000,000) has been issued
to the Subscriber. The initial conversion price in respect of
the First Tranche is HK$0.50869, being 70% of the volume
weighted average price of the shares of the Company in the 20
trading days prior to 17 January 2018.

On 17 January 2018, the Subscriber exercised its conversion
rights attached to the First Tranche in full. As a result,
76,670,585 conversion shares were issued to the Subscriber,
representing approximately 4.7% of the issued share capital
of the Company before the issue of the conversion shares
and approximately 4.5% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the issue of such conversion shares.

37. REHEREH
() BITEHE-—BITBRBREERRT

BE#E Do TBRRES

MR2017F 108128 » &2 A E Crede GG
I Ltd. ([ 3REE 1) 5T R B o ([ REE W
#1) o M2017F12A68 - ARQRIERE
FEIMEET REREHE ([ EBTT R
EYREWE]D - MBET - FH - IR K
BFBMENRERE - BELETRESR
Bie RBABREBMARABEZ S
30#L 3 TR E AN S 4858 4150,000,000F 7T
(FEET491,170,000,0007 7T ) &9 AT HR A% (F
H([IiRES]  EPeEEaLeER
50,000,000 7t (#8 & 7 390,000,000 7
TL)RE— IR AR ES ([ E—3 D
& E% ) M&mA£%4100,000,000F T
(FE 7 49780,000,0005%8 7T ) K 55 — ZR 5 ]
HRES) - THRESMEIEIE AR
EEA BN THH%36ME A K ME B
WIEEE¥R  AAKEHEEEHEE - F
EFFEABIY%  TFBHEFFINL—IK -

M2018%F 1 8178 » A& %8 45,000,000
7T (FE 72 #939,000,00078 7T) (I & #L 55
— B A RES([EH ) BEBITTRE
75 o BRI HR(E A0.50869/8 7T + Al
AANRIF2018F1 17 HER0MER 5 HR
R A AZE T H(ERI70% ©

R2018F1 5170 * REBABHEITEEHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e ERMEE ()

31 December 2017 20174128318

37. Event After the Reporting Period (Continued)

(b) Further amendments to June 2017 Bonds and
December 2017 Bonds
On 27 March 2018, the Company executed the June 2017
Bonds further supplemental deed and the December 2017
Bonds further supplemental deed by way of deed poll pursuant
to which maturity dates of the June 2017 Bonds and the
December 2017 Bonds have been both amended to 30 April
2018. Furthermore, the transferability of the June 2017 Bonds
and the December 2017 Bonds have been changed. As of 27
March 2018, all the conditions in respect of the amendments
above have been fulfilled. Therefore, the June 2017 Bonds
amendments and December 2017 Bonds amendments took
effective from 27 March 2018.

38. Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 29 March 2018.

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR
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DEFINITIONS

" affiliate”
[EEEBATL

"AGM"
[RRBEFAE]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”

[ 4R8Ik L =2 4R ]

“Board”

[E5g]

“Cayman Companies Law”

NEES=o NG

“China” or “the PRC"
[FEE ]

“Company"” or “our Company" or
“the Company”
NI

“Controlling Shareholders”

[ =R AR R

“Director(s)”
[£%]

noon noou

“Group”, “our Group”,

"

the Group”,

we”, “us”, or “our”

[ZRSR M |~ [3RAPT ISR TR0

"HKS"
(7]

any other person, directly or indirectly, controlling or controlled by or under direct
or indirect common control with such specified person

B MR RIE E A T X H B R o R R s B R T A T E R sk R A
PRSI e E ] EoAtb A £

annual general meeting of the company

ARABBRBFAE

the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time),
conditionally adopted on 1 February 2016
RRAR20165F2 A1 B AR ERA BB Z T2 (B AEHERT)

Board of Directors

=g

the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961), as amended or supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
FEMHEENFE22E (1961 F E35EM) A RVE(2013FEFTM) » KL TRKREET
St 7 S A EAth 75 =B 2k

the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose of this report,
Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

o ANRSAE - AREFFREES AP TRERAE

Sinco Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (B 712588 B2 f5 A BR /2 7)), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 16 March
2015
FRARBEERAR AR - R2015F3R16BEHSHETMK N EREER
NS

Mr. Huang and Risun
44 KRisun

the director(s) of the Company
RNRRES

our Company and our subsidiaries and, in respect of the period before we became
the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the businesses operated by such
subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be)
KRR RBEMEE A RIAR (R MR AR EHE AR 2 ERQRIFTAEE M
= MR B R RIS E AT & (R BRI E ) 4 & B 555

Hong Kong Dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BT BRAEE
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Definitions (Continued)

Bx(E)

"HKSE"
[ BERE P

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar”
[BERAFERLD ]

“Human Albumin Solution”

[AMAEREHR]

“Institute of Chinese Medical Sciences”

GEEEETY

“Listing Rules”
[ Erma 8]

“Main Board”
[EMR]
“MPCM"

rag - BEREEEE |

“Mr. Huang”
[EEAE

“Prospectus”

[HERE ]

“Reporting Period”
[#REH]

“Risun”
[Risun ]

2017 4 - ER AR EERAR AR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEMERXHMBER AR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
HEEBRRITTHE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

BRERRBHFERLRABRA

refers to Octapharma’s human albumin solution 20% (containing 200 grammes
of total protein per litre) and human albumin solution 25% (containing 250
grammes of total protein per litre). The term Human Albumin Solution refers to
both products or either one of them as the context requires

BRI EEMN20% AMBERTFR(BASHEEH200%) R25% AMH
EHHIR(BAESHEED2507%) - AMBEREIIRETMEEME T —1&
(BFXE)

the Institute of Chinese Materia Medica, China Academy of Chinese Medical
Sciences (HP B 7 B8 B}y A BB 2 FR)
rh B R B R B R BB SR T

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HKSE, as amended or
supplemented from time to time

BABIAES EMRR - BREHERTMET

Main Board of the HKSE
BB FTER

refers to marketing, promotion and channel management for the sale and
promotion of pharmaceutical products for pharmaceutical manufacturers

ABELEREE MEHEERETNEN HEIREEE

Mr. Huang Xiangbin (&Z#£#2), our Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive
Officer and one of our Controlling Shareholders

BERWEL  BANIE  RTEF  TREHFRERRRZ —

the prospectus issued by the Company dated 29 February 2016
AARIR20165F2 A29 8 FIEHBI’RE

the financial year ended 31 December 2017
HZE2017F 128318 L BRFEE

Risun Investments Limited, a limited company incorporated under the laws of BVI

on 16 January 2015, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mr. Huang

Risun Investments Limited * 74201551 16 AfE RE# R R B S M I AR
REEEZERBHNBRR
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Definitions (Continued)

B (&)

“RMB”
AR

“SFO”
BT

“Share(s)”
[ A& ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A%3R

U

“Share Option Scheme’
[FERcHERTE ]

“U.S. dollars” or "US$”
E

“Vast Surplus”
(52

In this Annual Report, the terms “associate,

a

person,

close associate,

connected transaction,” “controlling shareholder,

Renminbi Yuan, the lawful currency of China
ARKTT - FEVEEEH

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
BREGIESTERH LB - ETREETSETT

ordinary share(s) in the capital of the Company with nominal value of HK$0.0001
each

AARARFZIEE0.0001E A E B

holder(s) of Shares
SEEST=DN

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 1 February
2016, the principal terms of which are summarised in “Statutory and General
Information — D. Other Information — 1 Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VII
to the Prospectus

RRRNR20165F2 A1 BB G SRAN RS - K 2GR B S K
BEEER—MER —D. HER — 1 BEARETE]

U.S. dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America
Eit 0 ENBREREDEERE

Vast Surplus Corporation Limited, a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong on 6 October 2004 and wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Xiangbin
BERARRR - N2004F10R6 HEFEEMALNBRAR - AEFWELER
BHER

“ “connected ~ HEARFEIE - X EAZBHIEN  [HEAN] [ BE
" core HBA| [BEAL] [BEXZ] [FRRE] -

connected person,” “subsidiary” and “substantial shareholder” shall have
the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules, unless the context
otherwise requires.

The English translation of the PRC entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities,
regulations in Chinese are translations of the Chinese names. To the
extent there is any inconsistency between the Chinese names of the PRC
entities, enterprises, nationals, facilities, requlations and their English
translations, the Chinese names shall prevail.

[BLBEAL ) [HBREIR[EERRIAF LT
MERYBTHE 7152

FEVERE - 13 - BIZHEIE © Rt DAREIEXE R
FXELHZE - P EERE - 2% Bx#EE &K
Bt~ DERR R XA TR 5 X GE A A A EE - B
FXEFERE -
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